STATE OF CALIFORNIA ARNOLD SCHWARZENEGGER, Governor

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
505 VAN NESS AVENUE Tel. No. (415) 703-1691

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3298

September 20, 2006 Advice Letter 2747-G

Rose de la Torre

Pacific Gas & Electric

77 Beale Street, Room 1088
Mail Code B10C

San Francisco, CA 94105

Subject: Section 851 transaction — sale of gas gathering pipeline and assignment of an
easement of Vintage Production California, LLC
Dear Ms de la Torre:

Advice Letters 2747-G is effective September 9, 2006. A copy of the advice letter is returned
herewith for your records.

Sincerely,
j Y/ foito -

Sean H. Gallagher, Director
Energy Division
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Pacific Gas and Electric Company
P. 0. Box 770000
San Francisco, CA 94177

415.973.4977

Internal: 223.4977

Fax: 415.973.7226
Internet: BKC7@pge.com

July 26, 2006

Advice 2747-G
(Pacific Gas and Electric Company ID U 39 G)

Subject: Section 851 Transaction —-Sale of a Gas Gathering Pipeline and
Assignment of an Easement to Vintage Production California, LLC

Public Utilities Commission of the State of California

Purpose

Pacific Gas and Electric Company (“PG&E”) requests Commission approval under
Public Utilities Code § 851 for the sale of a segment of operating gas gathering pipeline
with associated appurtenances (the “Facilities”), and the assignment of associated
easement agreements (“Assignment”) to Vintage Production California, LLC (“Vintage
Production”).

PG&E anticipates submitting similar sales of operating gas gathering pipelines with
associated appurtenances and assignments for Commission approval in the future.

Background

In D.89-12-016, the Commission “strongly encourage[d] PG&E to sell gathering plant
when it is offered net book value or more for the plant, consistent with our view that
PG&E should phase out its gathering operations...”” The Commission stated that its
intent was to promote more efficient investments in plant and improve pricing signals
among gas supplies from various sources. During the intervening period, PG&E has
attempted to implement the Commission’s directive.

On August 11, 2005, PG&E initiated its most recent attempt, a bidding process for
PG&E’s Line 304 River Crossing and Adjacent Pipeline. PG&E accepted Vintage
Production’s bid to purchase a segment of PG&E’s Line 304 River Crossing and

! California Public Utilities Commission D.89-12-016 [1.88-1 1-012] (December 6, 1989), page 24.
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Adjacent Pipeline with associated appurtenances, and it is this proposed sale for which
PG&E now seeks Commission approval. The Purchase and Sale Agreement
(“Agreement”) is attached hereto (Attachment 1).

In accordance with Resolution ALJ-186, Appendix B, Section 1ll.B, PG&E provides the
following information related to the proposed transaction:

(a) Identity of All Parties to the Proposed Transaction:

Pacific Gas and Electric Company  Vintage Production California, LLC

Andrew L. Niven c/o Richard W. Oringderff

Peter Van Mieghem P.O. Box 1002

Law Department 28590 Highway 119

P.O. Box 7442 Tupman, CA 93276

San Francisco, CA 94120 Telephone: (661) 869-8023
Telephone: (415) 973-2902 Facsimile: (661) 763-6198
Facsimile: (415) 973-5520 Email: Dick Oringderff @ oxy.com

Email: PPV1@pge.com

(b) Complete Description of the Facilities Including Present Location,
Condition and Use:

The operating gas gathering pipeline segment PG&E proposes to sell is 8 inches
in diameter and approximately 3,523 feet long. It runs along either side of, and
crosses, the San Joaquin River within Sections 4 and 5, Township 1 South,
Range 6 East, Mount Diablo Base and Meridian (“MDB&M”), San Joaquin
County, California. The pipeline condition is considered poor and obsolete due
to its age and lack of operational value to PG&E. Replacement or retirement
would be costly.

In addition, PG&E has easements for the Facilities, pursuant to those certain
Grants of Easements dated July 20, 1962 and recorded in Book 2587 of Official
Records at page 571, San Joaquin County Records; dated September 5, 1962
and recorded in Book 2602 of Official Records at page 542, San Joaquin County
Records; and dated September 7, 1962 and recorded in Book 3035 of Official
Records at page 106; San Joaquin County Records (Attachment 2). PG&E will
assign the easements to Vintage Production as part of the sale transaction, as

proposed in the standard Form of Assignment attached to the Purchase and
Sale Agreement.

(c) Intended Use of the Facilities:

There is no change in the use of the Facilities. This pipeline section is currently
in operation transporting Vintage Production’s gas well production, and does not
impact any other PG&E customers. Upon completion of the sale, Vintage
Production plans to operate the gas gathering pipeline segment and its
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associated appurtenances as a private pipeline. However, Vintage Production
agrees that upon request it will make any capacity in excess of its requirements
available to third party producers of natural gas in the area served by the subject
pipeline segment for the transport of natural gas. No other PG&E customer is
currently being served or will be impacted.

The sale of the Facilities is beneficial to PG&E’s ratepayers because it alleviates
the need for pipeline maintenance or future replacement/retirement, and
improves efficiencies by promoting competition between California gas and out-
of-state suppliers.

(d) Complete Description Qf Financial Terms of the Proposed Transaction:

As provided for in the Agreement (Attachment 1), Vintage Production has agreed
to pay a one-time fee of Sixteen Thousand and Five Hundred Dollars
($16,500.00) for the Facilities. PG&E is not collecting any fees associated with
the Assignment of the gas gathering pipeline easement. Because of the
significant maintenance and future replacement costs associated with the
ownership of the Facilities, it will benefit PG&E and its customers to assign the
easement and sell the Facilities.

(e) Indication of How Financial Proceeds of the Transaction Will Be
Distributed:

In Decision (D.)89-12-016, the Commission ordered PG&E to record sales of gas
gathering facilities “in appropriate accounts for future consideration of gain-on-
sale issues. The gain on sale issues were addressed in Rulemaking (R.)04-09-
003, and a final decision (D.06-05-041) was issued on May 25, 2006. D.06-05-
041 established a gain on sale policy for sales of depreciable assets which
allocate 100% of the gain to ratepayers. Therefore, PG&E’s proposed allocation
of the financial proceeds allocates one hundred percent of the fee ($16,500.00)

to ratepayers as a credit through the Depreciation Reserve, consistent with D.06-
05-041.

(f) Sufficient Information and Documentation (Including Environmental Review
Information) to Indicate that All Criteria Set Forth in Section lI(A) of
Resolution ALJ-186 Are Satisfied:

PG&E has provided information in this advice letter to meet the eligibility criteria
under the advice letter pilot program. The proposed transaction will not have an
adverse effect on the public interest because it will not interfere in any way with
the operation of PG&E'’s facilities, or with the provision of service to PG&E’s
customers. In fact, the proposed transaction will serve the public interest by
eliminating significant maintenance costs and potential replacement or
retirement costs associated with the ownership of the Facilities. PG&E estimates
this liability at $100,000, which would be transferred to the buyer as a result of
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the sale. The proposed transaction meets the financial threshold of $5 million
since PG&E is only collecting $16,500.00 for the sale of the Facilities.

No CEQA review is required under the existing circumstances of the Facilities
Assignment. The Commission previously ruled that if the Facilities “will be used
in the same manner as previously, and neither applicant seeks authority from the
Commission for a change in the existing use, there is no substantial evidence of
any change to the environment, and no CEQA review is required.” (D.99.03.033
(1999) Cal. PUC LEXIS 408).

In this instance, ownership of the Facilities is merely being transferred from
PG&E to Vintage Production. There are no plans under the agreement to alter
the use of the Facilities, and neither PG&E nor Vintage Production seeks

authority to change its use. Therefore the transaction should be deemed exempt
from CEQA review.

(g9) Complete Description of any Recent Past (Within the Prior Two Years) or
Anticipated Future Transactions that May Appear To Be Related to the
Present Transaction:

PG&E is currently conducting auctions of various sections of its operating gas
gathering facilities. PG&E’s gas gathering system is expansive and not
consolidated. Therefore, PG&E expects to conduct separate sales of multiple
segments of its gas gathering facilities to various purchasers in the near future.
Each proposed sale would be governed by a standard Pipeline Purchase and
Sale Agreement (Attachment 3), which would be identical in form to the
proposed agreement attached to this advice letter. In addition, each sale would
be nearly identical, with the exception of the identity of the purchaser, description
of the specific gas gathering facility, and the purchase price.

(h) For Sales of Real Property and Depreciable Assets, the Advice Letter Shall
Include the Original Cost, Present Book Value, and Present Fair Market
Value, and a Detailed Description of How the Fair Market Value Was
Determined (e.g., Appraisal):

The Original Cost of the pipeline is $104,069. The pipeline is fully depreciated,
and Present Net Book Value is $0. The estimated liability (including significant
maintenance activities and possible replacement or retirement costs) of the
pipeline, which will be transferred to Vintage Production as a result of the sale, is
approximately $100,000.

The Present Fair Market Value for the Facilities was determined through a
bidding process conducted using Protocols and Procedures for a Standard
Auction Process, details of which are provided in Attachment 4.
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(i)

)

At the conclusion of the bidding process, PG&E accepted Vintage Production
California, LLC’s bid for $16,500 for the Facilities.

For Leases of Real Property, the Advice Letter Shall Include the Fair Market
Rental Value, and a Detailed Description of How the Fair Market Rental
Value Was Determined:

Along with the sale of the Facilities, PG&E is also assigning its easement of the
property to Vintage Production, since it will no longer be needed. PG&E will not
be collecting any fees associated with the Assignment as it does not rise to the
level of a right that has any realizable economic value to PG&E.

Additional Information to Assist in the Review of the Advice Letter:

Not applicable.

(k) CEQA Checklist

Exemption

(1) Has the proposed transaction been found exempt from CEQA by a
government agency?

The proposed transaction has not been found exempt from CEQA by a
government agency.

(a) If yes, please attach notice of exemption. Please provide name of
agency, date of exemption, and state clearinghouse number.

Not applicabie.

(b) If no, does the applicant contend that the project is exempt from
CEQA? If yes, please identify the specific exemption or exemptions
that apply, citing to the applicable CEQA guideline(s).

The Commission previously ruled that if the Facilities “will be
used in the same manner as previously, and neither
applicant seeks authority from the Commission for a change
in the existing use, there is no substantial evidence of any
change to the environment, and no CEQA review is
required.” (D.99.03.033 (1999) Cal. PUC LEXIS 408).

Prior or Subsequent CEQA review
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(1) Has the project undergone CEQA review by another government
agency? If yes, please identify the agency, the CEQA document that
was prepared (EIR, MND, etc.) and its date, and provide one copy of
any and all CEQA documents to the Director of the relevant Industry
Division with a copy of the advice letter. Be prepared to provide
additional copies upon request.

This project has not undergone CEQA review by another government
agency.

(2) Identify any aspects of the project or its environment that have
changed since the issuance of the prior CEQA document.

No aspects of the project or its environment have changed.

(3) Identify and provide section and page numbers for the
environmental impacts, mitigation measures, and findings in the prior
CEQA document that relate to the approval sought from the CPUC.

Not Applicable

(4) Does the project require approval by governmental agencies
other than the CPUC? If so, please identify all such agencies, and
the type of approval that is required from each agency.

Not Applicable.
Need CEQA?

If no exemption is applicable, and no prior review has occurred,

please identify what applicant believes is the correct level of CEQA
review.

Not Applicable.

Protests

Anyone wishing to protest this filing may do so by letter sent via U.S. mail, by facsimile
or electronically, any of which must be received no later than 30 days after the date of
this filing, which is August 25, 2006, 2006. Protests should be mailed to:

CPUC Energy Division
Attention: Tariff Unit, 4™ Floor
505 Van Ness Avenue

San Francisco, California 94102
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Facsimile: (415) 703-2200
E-mail: jjr@cpuc.ca.gov and jnj@cpuc.ca.gov

Copies of protests also should be mailed to the attention of the Director, Energy
Division, Room 4004, at the address shown above.

The protest also should be sent via U.S. mail (and by facsimile and electronically, if
possible) to PG&E at the address shown below on the same date it is mailed or
delivered to the Commission:

Pacific Gas and Electric Company
Attention: Brian Cherry

Vice President, Regulatory Relations
77 Beale Street, Mail Code B10C
P.O. Box 770000

San Francisco, California 94177

Facsimile: (415) 973-7226
E-mail: PGETariffs @ pge.com

Effective Date

Pursuant to the review process outlined in Resolution ALJ-186, PG&E requests that this

advice filing become effective on September 9, 2006, which is 45 calendar days after
the date of filing.

Notice

In accordance with General Order 96-A, Section Ill, Paragraph G, a copy of this advice
letter is being sent electronically and via U.S. mail to parties shown on the attached list.
Address changes should be directed to Rose de la Torre at (415) 973-4716. Advice
letter filings can also be accessed electronically at:

http://www.pge.com/tariffs

%\3(0\\\@2

Vice President, Regulatory Relations

Attachments 1-4 (Two engineering diagrams in Attachment 1 are too large to include
electronically and are available for Commission hardcopy only. The diagrams are
available upon request).

ccC: Service List - GO 96-A
ALJ Peter V. Allen, CPUC
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ALJ Lynn Carew, CPUC

Andrew Barnsdale, CPUC — Energy Division
Junaid Rahman, CPUC - Energy Division
Brewster Fong, DRA

Richard W. Oringderff, Vintage Production California, LLC
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Advice Letter (AL) #: 2747-G
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Pending advice letters that revise the same tariff sheets: N/A
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505 Van Ness Ave.,

San Francisco, CA 94102

jir@cpuc.ca.gov and jnj@cpuc.ca.gov
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PIPELINE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

This PIPELINE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made as of
2006, by and between Pacific Gas and Electric Company, a California corporation (“PG&E”), and Vintage Productlon .
California LLC, a Delaware corporation (“Buyer”).

RECITALS

A, PG&E owns certain pipelines and {accessory equipment] which are used for gathering natural gas, all as
more particularly described in Schedule 1 “DESCRIPTION OF PIPELINE(S) TO BE SOLD,” attached hereto
(collectively, the “Subject Pipeline(s)”) and all located as shown generally on the map attached hereto as Schedule 1.1
“PIPELINE MAP.”

B. PG&E desires to sell, and Buyer desires to purchase, the Subject Pipeline(s), for the consideration and on
the terms set forth in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT
The parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:
1. DEFINITIONS

1.1 Defined Terms. For purposes of this Agreement (and the Schedules attached hereto), the following
terms, and the singular or plural thereof, have the meanings specified or referred to in this Article 1:

“Affiliate” -- with respect to a specified Person, any other Person that (a) directly or indirectly controls the specified
Person; (b) is controlled by or is under direct or indirect common control with the specified Person; or (c) is an officer,
director, employee, representative, manager, partner or agent or subsidiary of the Person. For the purposes of this
definition, “comtrol,” or “controlled by” when used with respect to any specified Person, means the power to direct the
‘management or policies of the specified Person, directly or indirectly, whether through the ownership of voting securities,
partnership or limited liability company interests, by contract or otherwise.

“Agreement” - this Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement, together with the Schedules and Exhibits specified in
Section 12.12 hereof.

“Article” -- a numbered article of this Agreement. An Article includes all the numbered sections (“Sections”) of this
Agreement that begin with the same number as that Article.

“Assumed Liabilities” -- as defined in Section 3.2,
“Audited Financial Statements” -- as defined in Section 4.2(f).

“Balancing Agreement” - the California Production Balancing Agreement (CPBA) to be entered into by PG&E and
Buyer before the Closing (Exhibit F).

“Buyer” -- as defined in the introductory (first) paragraph of this Agreement.



“Buyer Group” - as defined in Section 8.2.

“Capital Expenditure” -- any additions to or replacements of property, plant and equipment and any other expenditures
or repairs that would be capitalized on PG&E’s balance sheet in accordance with PG&E’s capitalization policy.

“Certificate of Incumbency” -- with respect to the Party delivering it, a certification satisfactory to the other Party in its
discretion, from the corporate secretary (or if applicable the assistant corporate secretary) that the officer signing this
Agreement has been duly authorized to sign and execute this Agreement on behalf of that Party.

“Closing” -- the consummation of the Transaction and transfer of the Subject Pipeline(s) contemplated by this
Agreement, as set forth in Section 7.4.

“Closing Date” -- as defined in Section 7.4.

“Closing Deadline” -- as defined in Section 7.6(b).

“Closing Document” -- any document required to be delivered at the Closing pursuant to this Agreement.
“Commercially Reasonable Efforts” - efforts which are reasonably within the contemplation of the Parties at the time
of execution of this Agreement and which do not require the performing Party to expend any funds other than
expenditures which are customary and reasonable in transactions of the kind and nature contemplated by this Agreement
in order for the performing Party to satisfy its obligations hereunder.

“CPI” — The Nationwide, All Items, Consumer Price Index for all Urban Workers (CPI-U) as published by the United
States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, using the most recent index published prior to execution of this
Agreement by Buyer as the base year index.

“CPUC” -- the California Public Utilities Commission, or its regulatory successor, as applicable.

“CPUC Approval” -- the decision of the CPUC approving the sale of the Subject Pipeline(s), this Agreement and the
consummation of the Transaction contemplated hereby on terms and conditions acceptable to PG&E and Buyer, in their
respective sole discretion, and in a form which is final and unconditional and unappealable, including exhaustion of all
administrative and judicial appeals or remedies and the running of time periods and statutes of limitation for rehearing
and appeal.

“Creditworthiness Requirements” — as defined in Section 12.10.

“Dollars” — United States dollars.

“Due Diligence Period” - as defined in Section 5.1.

“Due Diligence Related Termination Period” -- as defined in Section 5.3
“Effective Date” -- the date of execution and delivery of this Agreement by PG&E and Buyer.

“Environmental Costs” — all claims, judgments, damages, losses, penalties, fines, liabilities (including strict liability),
encumbrances, liens, costs and expenses of investigation and defense of any claim, whether or not such a claim is
ultimately defeated, and any good faith settlement, of whatever kind or nature, contingent or otherwise, matured or
unmatured, foreseeable or unforeseeable, including reasonable attorneys fees and disbursements and consultants’ fees,
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any of which are incurred as a result of the existence of Hazardous Substances upon, about or beneath the Subject
Pipeline(s), emitted or released from the Subject Pipeline(s), or migrating or threatening to migrate to or from the Subject
Pipeline(s), including, without limitation:

(a) Damage for personal injury;
(b) Damages for injury to property, both real and personal;
(c) Environmental clean-up and remediation costs;

(d) Reasonable fees incurred for the services of attorneys, consultants, contractors, experts, laboratories and all
other costs incurred in connection with the investigation or remediation of such Hazardous Substances, including the
preparation of any feasibility studies, reports or the performance of any Remediation required by any Governmental
Authority, and including any attorneys fees, costs and expenses incurred in enforcing this Agreement or collecting any
sums due under it; and

(e) Liability for the indemnification of any Third Party or Governmental Authority for costs expended in
connection with the items referenced in this definition of Environmental Costs, mncluding oversight costs of any
Governmental Authority.

“Environmental Laws” - any applicable statutes, regulations or ordinances relating to storage and use of hazardous or
toxic substances, generation, treatment, storage, and disposal of hazardous wastes, wastewater discharges and similar
environmental matters, including, but not limited to, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
Liability Act (42 U.S.C. § 9601, et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act (49 U.S.C. § 1801, et seq.), the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. § 6901, et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C.
§ 1251, et seq.), the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401, et seq.), the Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. § 2601, et
seq.), the Oil Pollution Act (33 U.S.C. § 2701, et seq.) and the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act
(42 U.S.C. § 11001, et seq.), the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act (Cal. Wat. Code § 13020, et seq.), the Safe
Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 (Cal. Health & Safety Code § 25249.5, et seq.), the Hazardous
Substance Account Act (Cal. Health & Safety Code § 25300, et seq.), and the Hazardous Waste Control Act (Cal. Health
& Safety Code § 25100, et seq.).

“Environmental Requirements” -- means all applicable present and future laws, statutes, regulations, rules, ordinances,
codes, policies, rules of common law, licenses, permits, orders, approvals, plans, authorizations, concessions, franchises,
and similar items, of all Governmental Authority and all applicable judicial, legislative, administrative, and regulatory
decrees, judgments, and orders relating to the protection of human health or the environment, including:

(a) All requirements pertaining to reporting, licensing, permitting, investigation and remediation of
emissions, discharges, releases, or threatened releases of Hazardous Substances, chemical substances, pollutants,
contaminants or hazardous or toxic substances, materials or wastes, whether solid, liquid or gaseous in nature, into the
air, surface water, groundwater or land, including all Environmental Laws, or relating to the manufacture, processing,
distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport, or handling of chemical substances, pollutants, contaminants or
hazardous or toxic substances, materials or wastes, whether solid, liquid or gaseous in nature; and

{b) All requirements pertaining to the protection of the health and safety of employees or the public.

“Existing CPIOA” -- means the California Production Interconnection and Operating Agreement, between Buyer and
PG&E, existing and entered into prior to the execution of this Agreement by Buyer and PG&E.



“Facility,” “Facilities” -- any of the gathering pipelines or appurtenances specified in Schedule 1 “DESCRIPTION OF
PIPELINE(S) TO BE SOLD” that constitute a portion of the Subject Pipeline(s) or collectively constitute the Subject
Pipeline(s).

“Governmental Authority” — any federal, state, local or other governmental, regulatory, or administrative agency,
governmental commission, department, board, subdivision, court, tribunal, or other governmental arbitrator, arbitral
body, or authority with jurisdiction, but excluding Buyer and any subsequent owner of the Subject Pipeline(s).

“Guaranter” -- any person or entity, acceptable to PG&E, that executes a Guaranty Agreement unconditionally
guaranteeing payment to PG&E of all or a portion of Buyer’s obligations as set forth in this Agreement.

“Guaranty” - that certain guaranty attached hereto as Exhibit A, to be executed by Guarantor in favor of PG&E.

“Hazardous Substances” -- any chemical, material or substance that is listed or regulated under applicable
Environmental Laws as a “hazardous” or “toxic” substance or waste, or as a “contaminant,” or is otherwise listed or
regulated under applicable Environmental Laws because it poses a hazard to human health or the environment.

“HSR Act” -- as defined in Section 6.8(c).

“Interconnection Agreement” -- an agreement based on the standard California Production Interconnection and
Operating Agreement (also referred to as “CPIOA”) to be entered into by PG&E and Buyer before the Closing, (in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit E or in its then current standard form, if amended) for the purpose of interconnection of
the Subject Pipeline(s) to PG&E'’s gas transmission system and establishing the terms and conditions for the delivery of
gas into that system.

“Knowledge” -- (i) in the case of PG&E, the actual, current knowledge of the PG&E officers and employees listed in -
Schedule 12 “SCHEDULE OF PG&E OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES” on the Closing Date of this Agreement (or, with
respect to the certificate delivered pursuant to Section 7.2(j) “PG&E’s Certificate of Compliance,” on the date of delivery
of the certificate); (ii) in the case of Buyer, the actual, current knowledge of Buyer’s officers and employees listed in
Schedule 13 “SCHEDULE OF BUYER OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES” on the Closing Date of this Agreement (or,
with respect to the certificate delivered pursuant to Section 7.3.(r) “Buyer’s Certificate of Compliance,” on the date of
delivery of the certificate).

“Losses” — all costs, losses, expenses, damages, claims, causes of action, demands, judgments, fines, penalties,
assessments, attorneys’ fees, accounting expenses, and liabilities.

“Necessary Capital Expenditure” -- any Capital Expenditure which, in the exercise of Prudent Utility Practices, is
reasonably necessary for the continued operation or maintenance of any of the Subject Pipeline(s) or that is required by
applicable law (except for any Remediation required by applicable Environmental Laws).

“Ordinary Maintenance Expenditures” -- those expenditures which, in the exercise of Prudent Utility Practices, are reasonably
necessary for the continuing day-to-day operation, maintenance, administration, and management of any of the Subject Pipeline(s)

during all seasons of the year and as required by applicable law (except for any Remediation required by applicable Environmental
Laws).

“Party or Parties” -- “Party” means either PG&E or Buyer; “Parties” means PG&E and Buyer.

“Person” -- includes any individual, partnership, joint venture, corporation, limited liability company, firm, trustee,
association, or unincorporated organization, governmental authority, or other entity.
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“PG&E Group” -- as defined in Section 8.1.

ZPG&E Remediation Liability Cap” — Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) or the Purchase Price set forth in Section
3.1, whichever is the greater amount.

“PG&E Remediation Time Limit -
One (1) calendar year if the Subject Pipeline(s) consist of 15 miles or less;
Eighteen (18) months if the Subject Pipelines consist of more than 15 miles but no more than 100 miles;
Two (2) calendar years if the Subject Pipelines consist of more than 100 miles.

“Post-Closing Environmental Conditions” - the presence of Hazardous Substances introduced into, on, over or about
the Site(s) or the soil or groundwater at the Site(s) after the Closing, as a result of releases from the Pipeline(s) or the
operation thereof by Buyer or its transferees, or successors or assignees of Buyer or its transferees, or by their respective
employees, agents or contractors, including any migration of such Hazardous Substances through soil or groundwater.

“Pre-Closing Fnvironmental Conditions” - those Hazardous Substances present prior to the Closing in the soil or
groundwater at or adjacent to the Pipeline(s) as a result of releases of Hazardous Substances by PG&E from the
Pipeline(s) or the operation thereof by PG&E, its employees, agents or contractors, prior to the Closing, and any
migration of those Hazardous Substances through soil or groundwater after the Closing. Pre-Closing Environmental
Conditions do not include any molecules of Hazardous Substances that were not actually and physically present in the
soil or groundwater or both at the Site(s) prior to the Closing as a result of releases of Hazardous Substances from the
Pipeline(s) by PG&E or the operation thereof by PG&E, its employees, agents or contractors, except that the Pre-Closing
Environmental Conditions include those molecules of Hazardous Substances which migrate onto the Site(s) after the
Closing and which were actually and physically present on the property adjacent to the Site(s) prior to the Closing as a
result of releases of Hazardous Substances by PG&E or the operation of such adjacent properties by PG&E, its
employees, agents or contractors. '

“Prudent Utility Practices” -- any of the practices, methods and acts required by applicable laws and regulations, or
engaged in or approved by a significant portion of the natural gas industry during the relevant time period, or any of the
practices, methods or acts which, in the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known at the time the
decision was made, could have been expected to accomplish the desired result at a reasonable cost consistent with good
business practices, reliability, safety and expedition. Prudent Utility Practice is not intended to be limited to the optimum
practice, method or act to the exclusion of all others, but rather to be acceptable practices, methods or acts generally
accepted in the geographical region where the Subject Pipeline(s) are located.

“Related Contracts” -- Contracts related to the Subject Pipeline(s), or their maintenance or operation, including without
limitation the contracts listed on Schedule 10 “RELATED CONTRACTS.”

“Remediation” -- any or all of the following activities to the extent they relate to or arise from the presence of
Hazardous Substances in soil or groundwater: (i) monitoring, investigation, cleanup, abatement, closure, containment,
remediation, removal, mitigation, response or restoration work; (ii) obtaining any permits, consents, approvals or
authorizations of any Governmental Authority necessary to conduct any such work; and (iii) preparing and implementing
any plans or studies for or related to such work.



“Required Consents” - as defined in Section 6.8(b).

“Rights-of-Way” -- the easements, permits, licenses and other rights which are necessary for the ownership, operation
and maintenance of the Subject Pipeline(s), including access thereto.

“Site(s)” -- the real property on or in which any portion of the Subject Pipeline(s) (or a Facility as applicable) is located.

“Tax” or “Taxes” — any federal, state, local or foreign income, gross receipts, license, payroll, employment, excise,
severance, stamp, occupation, premium, windfall profits, environmental (including taxes under Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended, Sect. 59A), customs duties, capital stock, franchise, profits, withholding, social security (or similar),
unemployment, disability, real property (including assessments, fees, or other charges based on the use or ownership of
real property), personal property, sales, use, transfer, registration, value added, alternative or add-on minimum, estimated
tax, or other tax of any kind whatsoever, including any interest, penalty, or addition thereto, whether disputed or not,
including such item for which liability arises as a transferee or successor-in-interest, including liability therefor as a
transferee or successor-in-interest.

“Third Party” -- a Person that is not a Party to this Agreement.
“Third Party Claim” -- a claim by a Person that is not a Party to this Agreement.
“Transaction” -- the purchase and sale of the Subject Pipeline(s) pursuant to this Agreement.

“Yolunteered Line” -- pipelines, valves and other appurtenances owned by PG&E, which are located between the
measurement facility and a producer’s gas well(s) and are identified on Schedule 15 “Volunteered Line(s).”

2. SALE AND PURCHASE OF PIPELINE(S)
2.1 Sale and Purchase of the Subject Pipeline(s). On the terms and subject to the conditions of this

Agreement, at the Closing, PG&E will sell, convey and transfer to Buyer, and Buyer will purchase and accept from
PG&E, all of PG&E's right, title and interest in and to the following natural gas pipeline(s) (collectively, the “Subject
Pipeline(s)™): ’

The pipeline(s) and [appurtenances) that are specifically listed and described in Schedule 1
“DESCRIPTION OF PIPELINE(S) TO BE SOLD” and located as shown on Schedule 1.1
“PIPELINE MAP”, Schedules 1 and 1.1 are attached hereto and made part of this
Agreement. The Subject Pipeline(s) shall include only those Pipeline(s) which are included
in both Schedule 1 and Schedule 1.1.

22 No Other Pipeline(s) Transferred to Buyer. Other than as specifically set forth in Section 2.1 “Sale

and Purchase of the Subject Pipeline(s),” nothing in this Agreement shall constitute or be construed as conferring on
Buyer, and Buyer shall not acquire any right, title, or interest to or in any pipelines, metering stations, properties, or
assets of PG&E or any business, operation, subsidiary, or division of PG&E, or any other asset of PG&E, whether
tangible or intangible, real, personal or mixed.

2.3 Rights-of-Way and Other Permits. Buyer acknowledges that, the Subject Pipeline(s) are located on
property owned in fee by Third Parties. PG&E claims easement rights to maintain and use the Subject Pipeline(s) on
some, but not necessarily all, of the property owned by Third Parties on which the Subject Pipeline(s) are located.
Attached hereto as Schedule 7 “LIST OF EASEMENTS TO BE ASSIGNED” and Schedule 7.1 “LIST OF EASEMENTS
TO BE PARTIALLY ASSIGNED” are descriptions of those easements of which PG&E is currently aware. PG&E
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makes no representation that the information concerning such easements is complete or accurate, and makes no
representation that the list of easements included on Schedules _7and 7.1 constitute a full list of all easements which are
owned by PG&E in connection with the Subject Pipeline(s). The list of easements on Schedules 7 and 7.1 may be
supplemented by agreement of the parties from time to time prior to the Closing Date. To the extent that it is legally able
to do so, PG&E shall assign to Buyer those easement rights listed on Schedule 7, and partially assign to Buyer rights
under those easements listed on Schedule 7.1 as set forth in paragraph 2.3.1 “Easements.” PG&E shall have no obligation
to obtain for Buyer the Rights-of-Way or other rights, permits or approvals necessary or required for the ownership,
operation, or maintenance of the Subject Pipeline(s). Buyer acknowledges the need and requirement to obtain various
such Rights-of-Way and other permits and approvals.

2.3.1 Easements.

(a) Subject to any restrictions that may be contained in the documents granting such easements to
PG&E, PG&E will at the Closing assign to Buyer its rights and obligations under easements held by PG&E for the use,
operation and maintenance of the Subject Pipeline(s), to the extent that PG&E may have the legal right to do so; such
assignment will be made by instrument in substantially the same form as attached hereto as Exhibit H “FORM OF
ASSIGNMENT OF EASEMENT,” provided that, if PG&E at its sole option elects to retain such easements for its own
operations, then PG&E has the right to do so and to provide only a partial assignment of rights under such easements to
the extent necessary for Buyer to own, operate and maintain the Subject Pipeline(s). Such partial assignment will be
made by instrument in substantially the same form as is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 “FORM OF PARTIAL
ASSIGNMENT OF EASEMENT.” With respect to all easements assigned or partially assigned to Buyer pursuant
to this Article 2, PG&E hereby reserves the right to enter upon those easement areas in order to conduct
remedial work and otherwise meet its obligations or exercise its rights set forth in Article 9. Any and all
easements assigned pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to the aforestated reservation of rights.

) Before the end of the Due Diligence Period, PG&E will provide to Buyer a list of easements to
be conveyed to Buyer and identifying those easements under which PG&E will make a partial assignment only (retaining
easement rights for PG&E’s use). Such list will consist of Schedules 7 and 7.1, as confirmed or amended by additions or
deletions prior to the Closing. If at the time at which such list is delivered to Buyer less than thirty-five (35) days of the
Due Diligence Period remain, then Buyer shall have thirty (30) calendar days to determine whether or not the easements
to be assigned by PG&E will be sufficient for Buyer’s acquisition of the Subject Pipeline(s), regardiess of the expiration
of the Due Diligence Period. Buyer may terminate this Agreement within that thirty (30) day period if Buyer determines
that such easements will be insufficient for Buyer’s acquisition.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 2.3.1, Buyer acknowledges and agrees that
any assignments of easements made by PG&E will be made without any representation or warranty by PG&E (express or
implied) with respect to the validity of such assignments or in any other respect and without recourse against PG&E.
PG&E shall not be obligated to obtain any consents from property owners regarding such assignments. Buyer shall
indemnify and hold PG&E harmless against and from (i) all liabilities, damages, claims and costs arising out of or
resulting from any assignment of such easements by PG&E to Buyer, as set forth in Section 8.1(a)(7), and (ii) any and all
future liabilities and obligations under or arising from such easements. The Parties shall comply with Public Utilities
Code Section 3255(b), and Buyer shall reimburse PG&E for the cost of the notifications to property owners required by
Public Utilities Code 3255(b) within ten (10) calendar days of PG&E'’s invoice for such costs.

(d) Effective as of the date of the assignment or individual assignments (“Effective Date of
Assignment”) that may be made by PG&E pursuant to this Section 2.3.1, Buyer will accept and agrees to assume, pay,
perform and discharge, as and when due, all of the agreements and obligations of PG&E under or related to all easements
or portion thereof assigned by PG&E to Buyer pursuant to this Section 2.3.1, and Buyer agrees to be bound by all of the
terms and conditions of such easements, except to the extent retained by PG&E under Section 3.3(a).



(e) Except for those easements listed pursuant to Section 2.3.1 (b) above, PG&E reserves the right to
refuse to assign (or partially assign) to Buyer any of PG&E’s easement rights referred to in this Section 2.3.1, if an
assignment or an attempt to make such an assignment without the consent of a Third Party would (1) breach a contractual
or equitable obligation owed to a Third Party, or violate any law, decree, order or regulation of any Governmental

Authority, or (2) result, or potentially result, in PG&E incurring additional costs or liabilities that will not be paid by
Buyer before the Closing.

2.3.2  Franchises, Licenses and Other Rights. Buyer acknowledges that PG&E does not intend to assign or
transfer any franchise rights, licenses, or other rights or permits that it may have, other than the assignment of easements
subject to the conditions set forth in Section 2.3.1 “Easements” above.

3. PURCHASE PRICE AND PAYMENT

3.1 Purchase Price. In consideration of the transfer of the Subject Pipeline(s), Buyer will pay Sixteen
Thousand and Five Hundred Dollars ($16,500.00) at the Closing, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to such
account as will have been designated by PG&E (the “Purchase Price.”)

3.2 Assumption of Liabilities. Upon the Closing, and subject to other terms of this Agreement, Buyer will
assume and retain all obligations and liabilities of any kind or nature whatsoever related to, arising from or associated
with any of the following (collectively, “Assumed Liabilities™):

(a) Ownership Liabilities. Ownership or possession of the Subject Pipeline(s) after the Closing,
including without limitation: (i) liability for any Remediation determined by Buyer to be necessary or appropriate with
respect to any Hazardous Substances in, on, under, about or incorporated in the Site(s) or the Subject Pipeline(s) or
migrating through soil or groundwater, to or from the Site(s); (ii) liability for compliance with Environmental
Requirements as well as liability for any and all Post-Closing Environmental Conditions and costs associated therewith;
(iii) liability for any Hazardous Substances present in, on or incorporated into the Subject Pipeline(s), improvements,
buildings, structures, containers, or equipment, or stored or contained within the Subject Pipeline(s) or in containers
present at the Sites; and (iv) liability arising from the ownership or possession of the Subject Pipeline(s), equipment,
structures, surface impoundments or any other facility used for the treatment, storage, handling or disposal of Hazardous
- Substances; excepting from Buyer’s liabilities set out in this subparagraph only those obligations and liabilities expressly

retained by PG&E in Section 9.1 “PG&E’s Rights and Responsibilities,” and Section 8.2 (a)(1), (2) and (3)
“Indemnification by PG&E.”

®) Use and Operation Ligbilities. The use or operation of the Subject Pipeline(s) or the business
conducted with the Subject Pipeline(s) after the Closing, including without limitation: (i) any obligation to remove,
deactivate, demolish, dispose of, or close any Facility or the Subject Pipeline(s) or any portion thereof, and any obligation
to restore the Site(s) to its/their natural state, and (ii) any obligation arising from the use or operation of surface
impoundments or any other facility used for the treatment, storage or disposal of Hazardous Substances, excepting only
those obligations and liabilities expressly retained by PG&E in Section 9.1 “PG&E’s Rights and Responsibilities,” and
Section 8.2 “Indemnification by PG&E.”

(c) Compliance Liabilities. Obligations to comply with all permits, licenses and approvals that
relate to the Subject Pipeline(s).

d Assigned Lisbilities. Obligations arising or accruing from and after the Closing under any
casements that relate to the Subject Pipeline(s) or under any Related Contracts that are assigned to Buyer. To the extent
that they are assignable to Buyer and PG&E wishes to assign them, Buyer will accept the assignment of Related
Contracts of which Buyer was furnished a copy during the Due Diligence Period.
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(e Other Specified Liabilities. All other obligations and liabilities expressly allocated to Buyer in

this Agreement.

33 Retention of Liabilities. Upon the Closing and subject to other terms of this Agreement, PG&E will

remain responsible for and retain all obligations and liabilities accruing prior to the Closing relating to any of the
following: ’

(a) Assigned Obligations. Obligations to the extent their performance is due prior to the Closing
under easements or contracts that relate to the Subject Pipeline(s). Payments that become due after the Closing for goods
or services consumed by PG&E prior to the Closing or a prorated portion of such payments, as applicable. In the event
that PG&E makes or is required to make any payment pursuant to this subparagraph (2) and a portion of such payment
applies to a time period after the Closing, Buyer shall promptly pay to PG&E Buyer’s pro rata share of such payment to
the extent that it applies to such a time period. Conversely, if Buyer pays for any such goods or services consumed by
PG&E prior to the Closing, PG&E shall promptly reimburse Buyer for such payments.

®) Other Specified Liabilities. All other obligations and liabilities expressly allocated to PG&E in
this Agreement.

4. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

4.1 Representations, Warranties and Disclaimers of PG&E. PG&E represents, warrants and, where

specified, disclaims to Buyer as follows:

(a) Organization and Existence. PG&E is a duly organized and validly existing corporation in good
standing under the Laws of the State of California.

©) Execution, Delivery and Enforceability. PG&E has full corporate power to enter into and carry
out its obligations under this Agreement. Except as specified in Schedule 8, “PG&E AUTHORIZATION AND
ENFORCEABILITY,” the execution and delivery by PG&E of this Agreement and the consummation of the Transaction
contemplated by it have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action required on the part of PG&E. Except as
specified in Schedule 8, “PG&E AUTHORIZATION AND ENFORCEABILITY” and Schedule 11, “REQUIRED
GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS,” and assuming Buyer’s due authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement,
this Agreement constitutes a valid and legally binding obligation of PG&E enforceable against PG&E in accordance with
its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or other

similar laws of general application relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights and by general equitable
principles.

(c) No Violation. Except as specified in Schedule 8 “PG&E AUTHORIZATION AND
ENFORCEABILITY,” and Schedule 11 “REQUIRED GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS” and subject to (i) PG&E
obtaining the release of the Subject Pipeline(s) from the lien imposed by PG&E’s First and Refunding Mortgage, dated
December 1, 1920, as supplemented through the Closing Date, and (ii) the Parties satisfying their respective obligations
to obtain or process (as applicable) the consents, approvals, permits, licenses, filings and notices described in Section 6.8
“Regulatory Matters and Other Consents,” neither the execution and delivery by PG&E of this Agreement, nor the
compliance by PG&E with any provision hereof, nor the consummation of the Transaction contemplated hereby will:

(A) violate or conflict with, or result in a breach of the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of PG&E, or (B) violate any
material law or regulation applicable to PG&E.



(d) No_Consents. Except as may be specified in Schedule 8 “PG&E AUTHORIZATION AND
ENFORCEABILITY” and Schedule 11 “REQUIRED GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS,” and subject to (i) PG&E
obtaining the release of the Subject Pipeline(s) from the lien imposed by PG&E’s First and Refunding Mortgage, dated
December 1, 1920, as supplemented through the Closing Date, and (ii) the Parties satisfying their respective obligations
to obtain or process (as applicable) the consents, approvals, permits, licenses, filings and notices described in Section 6.8
“Regulatory Matters and Other Consents,” no consent or approval of, filing with, or notice to any Person is required to be
obtained or made by PG&E in connection with PG&E’s execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement or the
consummation by PG&E of the Transaction contemplated hereby, which if not so obtained or made, will prevent PG&E
from performing its obligations hereunder.

(e) Litigation. As of the Closing Date and except as set forth on Schedule 9 “PG&E LITIGATION,”
PG&E has no Knowledge of:

@) any action, investigation or request for information by any Governmental Authority or
other Third Party which could result, or has resulted, in: (A) the institution of legal proceedings to prohibit or restrain the
performance of this Agreement or the consummation of the Transaction contemplated by this Agreement, or (B) a claim
for damages as a result of this Agreement or the consummation of the Transaction contemplated by this Agreement; or

(ii) 'any pending or threatened litigation, claim, investigation or proceeding, private or
governmental, against PG&E which, if adversely determined, would have a material adverse effect on (1) PG&E’s ability
to perform this Agreement or (2) the ownership, use, operation or value of the Subject Pipeline(s).

® Compliance with Laws. To PG&E’s Knowledge and except as set forth on Schedule 14,
“Compliance Exceptions,” as of the Closing Date PG&E has received no written notice that PG&E’s current use and
operation of the Subject Pipeline(s) violates in any material respect any applicable laws, orders, ordinances, rules or
regulations of any Governmental Authority in existence as of execution of this Agreement.

(g Brokers. All negotiations relative to this Agreement and the Transaction contemplated by it have
been carried on by PG&E without the intervention of any Third Party that would give rise to any valid claim against
Buyer (by reason of PG&E’s actions) for a brokerage commission, finder’s fee or other like payment to any Third Party.

(h) DISCLAIMERS REGARDING THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S). PG&E EXPRESSLY
DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND OR NATURE, EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE CONDITION, VALUE OR QUALITY OF THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S) OR THE
PROSPECTS (FINANCIAL OR OTHERWISE), RISKS AND OTHER INCIDENTS OF THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S),
AND PG&E SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY, USAGE, SUITABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH RESPECT
TO THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S), OR ANY PART THEREOF, OR AS TO THE WORKMANSHIP OR
CONSTRUCTION THEREOF, OR THE ABSENCE OF ANY DEFECTS THEREIN, WHETHER LATENT OR
PATENT. WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE
EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, PG&E EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL REPRESENTATIONS AND
WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND REGARDING THE CONDITION OF THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S) OR THE
SUITABILITY OF THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S) FOR OPERATION AS GATHERING FACILITIES. THE SUBJECT
PIPELINE(S) ARE BEING SOLD “AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS” ON THE CLOSING DATE.
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NO SCHEDULE OR EXHIBIT TO THIS AGREEMENT, NOR ANY OTHER MATERIAL OR
INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OR COMMUNICATIONS MADE BY PG&E, ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR
CONSULTANTS, SHALL CAUSE OR CREATE ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE
CONDITION, VALUE OR QUALITY OF THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S). WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY
OF THE FOREGOING, PG&E SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS AND BUYER ACKNOWLEDGES THE FOLLOWING:

1) JITLE AND PROPERTY INTERESTS. PG&E expressly disclaims any and all representations
and warranties as to the condition of, or PG&E’s rights in, or its title to, the Subject Pipeline(s), or any part thereof, or
whether PG&E possesses sufficient real property or personal property interests to own or operate the Subject Pipeline(s)
or to convey the Subject Pipeline(s).

)] HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES. PG&E disclaims any representation or warranty regarding the
absence of Hazardous Substances or liability or potential liability arising under Environmental Laws or as to compliance
with Environmental Laws with regard to the Subject Pipeline(s) or any of the Site(s) on which they are located.

(k) RIGHTS-OF-WAY, OTHER PERMITS, LICENSES. ETC. PG&E makes no representation or
warranty regarding the transfer or transferability of easements or any other permits or licenses, and PG&E makes no

representation or warranty regarding which Rights-of-Way or other permits or licenses must be obtained by Buyer to
operate the Subject Pipeline(s).

() REAL PROPERTY SITE(S). PG&E makes no representation or warranty as to the physical
condition of the Site(s) or as to the uses of the Site(s), or any limitations thereon, including, but not limited to, zoning,
Environmental Laws or other laws, regulations or governmental requirements; the conditions of the soils or groundwaters
of the Site(s); the presence or absence of Hazardous Substances on or under the Site(s); or any other matter bearing on
the use or condition of the Site(s).

(m) NO RECOURSE. Buyer agrees that to the extent the transfer, conveyance, assignment and
delivery of the Subject Pipeline(s) or easements to Buyer as provided in this Agreement is accomplished by bills of sale,
.subleases, subcontracts, or other instruments of transfer, whether executed at.the Closing or thereafter, such instruments

shall be without representation or warranty by, or recourse against, PG&E, except as expressly provided in this
Agreement.

4.2 Representations and Warranties of Buyer. Buyer represents and warrants to PG&E as follows:

(a) Organization and Existence. Buyer is a duly organized and validly existing corporation in good
standing under the Laws of the State of Delaware. Buyer is qualified to do business in the State of California.

(b) Execution, Delivery and Enforceability. Buyer has the requisite corporate power to enter into
and carry out its obligations under this Agreement. The execution and delivery by Buyer of this Agreement and the
consummation of the Transaction contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on
the part of Buyer. Assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by PG&E, this Agreement constitutes a legal,
valid and binding obligation of Buyer enforceable against Buyer in accordance with its terms, except as such
enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or other similar laws of general
application relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights and by general equitable principles.
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(c) No Violation. Subject to the Parties satisfying their respective obligations to obtain or process
(as applicable) the consents, approvals, permits, licenses, filings and notices described in Section 6.8 “Regulatory Matters
and Other Consents,” neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by Buyer, nor the compliance with any
provision hereof, nor the consummation of the Transaction contemplated hereby will: (i) violate or conflict with, or
result in a breach of any provisions of the organizational documents of Buyer; or (ii) violate any material law or
regulation applicable to Buyer.

(@ No Consents. Subject to the Parties satisfying their respective obligations to obtain or process
(as applicable) the consents, approvals, permits, licenses, filings and notices described in Section 6.8 “Regulatory Matters
and Other Consents,” no consent or approval of, filing with or notice to any Person is required to be obtained or made by
Buyer in connection with Buyer’s execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, or the consummation of the
Transaction contemplated hereby, which, if not obtained or made will prevent Buyer from performing its obligations
hereunder or thereunder. :

(e) Litigation. As of the Closing Date and except as set forth on Schedule 2 “BUYER
LITIGATION,” Buyer has no Knowledge of:

6) any action, investigation or request for information by any Governmental Authority or
other Third Party which could result, or has resulted, in: (A) the institution of legal proceedings to prohibit or restrain the
performance of this Agreement or the consummation of the Transaction contemplated by this Agreement, or (B) a claim
for damages as a result of this Agreement or the consummation of the Transaction contemplated by this Agreement; or

(ii) any pending or threatened litigation, claim, investigation or proceeding, private or
governmental, against Buyer which, if adversely determined, would have a material adverse effect on Buyer’s ownership
or acquisition of the Subject Pipeline(s) or Buyer’s ability to perform this Agreement.

® Financial Statements. Buyer has delivered to PG&E true and complete copies of the audited
balance sheet of Buyer and of Guarantor as of the last day of Buyer’s most recently completed fiscal year, and the related
audited statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended (collectively, “Audited
Financial Statements”), together with the related auditors’ opinion letter, Buyer’s and Guarantor’s quarterly financial
statements for each of the fiscal quarters ended after the date of its most recent Audited Financial Statements. Except as
may otherwise be indicated in the auditor’s opinion letter, the Audited Financial Statements have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, and present fairly the financial position
and results of Buyer’s operations and its cash flows on the dates and for the periods stated.

() Brokers. All negotiations relating to this Agreement and the Transaction contemplated hereby
have been carried on by Buyer without the intervention of any Third Party that would give rise to any valid claim against
PG&E (by reason of Buyer’s actions) for a brokerage commission, finder’s fee, or other like payment to any Third Party.

4.3 Certain Acknowledgménts and Risk Allocations.

(a) Buyer’s Responsibility. Buyer is an experienced gas producer/gas well operator and investor,
and is represented by counsel in connection with this Transaction. Buyer has the responsibility under this Agreement to
inspect the Subject Pipeline(s) and Site(s) in sufficient detail to fully satisfy itself with respect to the environmental
conditions and the physical conditions affecting the Subject Pipeline(s) and Site(s). As of the Closing Date, Buyer will
have reached its conclusions based upon its own analysis and without relying upon representations by PG&E, its
employees, agents, consultants or other representatives, except for the representations expressly set forth in Section 4.1,
“Representations, Warranties and Disclaimers of PG&E.”
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(b) Acknowledgment by Buyer. In making its decision to execute this Agreement and to purchase
the Subject Pipeline(s), Buyer has relied and will rely upon the results of its own independent investigation and
verification of the Subject Pipeline(s). THE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN SECTION
4.1 “REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMERS OF PG&E” OF THIS AGREEMENT
CONSTITUTE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PG&E IN
CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. There are no representations, warranties,
covenants, understandings, or agreements among the Parties regarding the Subject Pipeline(s) or their transfer other than
those incorporated in this Agreement. Except for the representations and warranties expressly set forth in Section 4.1
“Representations, Warranties and Disclaimers of PG&E” of this Agreement, Buyer disclaims reliance on any

representations, warranties, or guarantees, either express or implied, by PG&E, its officers, directors, counsel,
representatives or agents.

(c) “AS IS” SALE. BUYER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE SUBJECT
PIPELINE(S) ARE BEING ACQUIRED “AS IS, WHERE IS” ON THE CLOSING DATE, AND IN THEIR
CONDITION ON THE CLOSING DATE, AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 4.1(h) “DISCLAIMERS REGARDING

THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S),” AND THAT BUYER IS RELYING ON ITS OWN EXAMINATION OF THE
SUBJECT PIPELINE(S).

{d) Buyer acknowledges and agrees that any easement rights in or to the Site(s) that may be assigned
to and accepted by Buyer will apply to the Site(s) in its/their present condition, “AS IS, WITH ALL FAULTS;” and
subject to the obligations of PG&E in Sections 9.1 and 8.2, Buyer hereby assumes the risk that adverse physical

characteristics and existing conditions, including, without limitation, Hazardous Substances, may not have been revealed
by its investigation.

(e Buyer acknowledges that portions of the Site(s), or adjacent or neighboring lands, were or may
have been used by present or prior owners or operators for the disposal of wastes, substances, and materials of unknown
type, nature or origin, some of which may have been or may now be Hazardous Substances. As a result of such uses and
activities and the seepage and leaching of materials, physical, chemical, or other changes may have occurred in, on, or
under the Site(s), including, without limitation, the release of Hazardous Substances. By completing the Transaction, as
of the Closing, Buyer shall be deemed to acknowledge that Buyer had the opportunity to inspect the Site(s) and observe
its/their physical characteristics and existing conditions and-had the opportunity to conduct such investigation and study
on and of the Site(s) as it deems necessary. Consequently, as of the Closing Date, Buyer shall be deemed to have waived

any and all objections to or complaints about any and all Hazardous Substances, subject to PG&E discharging its
obligations under Sections 8.2 and 9.2.

4.4 Survival of the Parties’ Representations, Warranties, Disclaimers, and Acknowledgments.

(a) Survival Period of Certain Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties
of PG&E contained in Section 4.1 “Representations, Warranties and Disclaimers of PG&E” will survive until the first
anniversary of the Closing Date, at which time these representations and warranties will terminate; provided that the
representations and warranties of PG&E contained in paragraphs () and (f) of Section 4.1 shall terminate upon the
Closing. The representations and warranties of Buyer contained in Section 4.2 “Representations and Warranties of

Buyer” will survive until the first anniversary of the Closing Date, at which time these representations and warranties will
terminate.

(®) Survival of Disclaimers. All disclaimers of PG&E contained in Article 4 or in any other
provision of this Agreement shall survive the Closing or termination of this Agreement without a time limitation.
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{c) Survival of Buyer’s Acknowledgments. All provisions of Section 4.3 “Certain

Acknowledgments and Risk Allocations” shall survive the Closing or termination of this Agreement without a time
limitation.

5. DUE DILIGENCE:; PRE-CLOSING INSPECTIONS

5.1 Due Diligence.

(a) For a period not to exceed forty-five (45) days following the Effective Date of this Agreement
(the “Due Diligence Period”), during normal business hours and subject to any rights of Third Parties and the conditions
stated below, PG&E shall make available as may be requested by Buyer from time to time for inspection by Buyer (i) the
Subject Pipeline(s), at their location, and (ii) documents in PG&E’s Possession to the extent that they are reasonably
available and relate materially to ownership or operation of the Subject Pipeline(s), including easement records; Related
Contracts; “as-built” drawings; alignment drawings (pipeline survey sheets); engineering drawings or pipeline plat sheets;
leak records; CPUC required maintenance records; environmiental investigation and remediation reports relating to
hazardous substances in soil or groundwater; closure reports for environmental remediation and “No Further Action”
letters. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that PG&E shall have no obligation to and shall incur no liability as a result of
refusing to provide access to any information which PG&E determines is either (i) subject to privilege in accordance with
the California Evidence Code, or (ii) proprietary or confidential and not related exclusively to the Subject Pipeline(s), or
(iil) not material or relevant to Buyer’s due diligence investigation. Nothing contained in this Section 5.1 requires PG&E
to develop or provide to Buyer any information or material that is not in PG&E’s Possession. For purposes of this
Article 5, “PG&E’s Possession” shall mean the possession by employees of PG&E’s Land Department and the following
work groups located in PG&E’s System Maintenance & Technical Support Department offices at Walnut Creek:
“Pipeline Engineering & Estimating”; “Environmental, Health & Safety”; and “Operations Support,” whose functional
duties are directly related to the operation, maintenance or ownership of the Subject Pipeline(s). For the purposes of this
Section 5.1, “reasonably available” shall mean a reasonable search of the PG&E files of documents that relate to the
operation and maintenance of the Subject Pipelines. The Due Diligence Period may be extended or reduced subject to
mutual agreement of the Parties, by a number of days not to exceed thirty (30) days.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 5.1 and its subparagraphs, Buyer shall be
solely responsible for conducting an independent investigation and verification of the Subject Pipeline(s) and the Site(s).
Buyer shall inspect, review and otherwise perform whatever acts Buyer deems necessary to determine the condition of
the Subject Pipeline(s) and the Site(s), so as to ensure that, after the Closing Date, Buyer may use, operate, repair and
maintain the Subject Pipeline(s) in their present location and condition; provided that, the activities of Buyer at the
Site(s) are subject to Buyer obtaining any approvals of landowners (or lessees) that may be required; and provided further
that, Buyer shall not test, collect or make environmental investigation of Site(s), or remove any soil, groundwater or other
materials, until Buyer’s testing plans and procedures have been approved in writing by PG&E, which approval shall not
be unreasonably withheld; however, reasonable grounds for withholding such approval shall include, but not be limited
to, potential exacerbation of site conditions or interference with PG&E’s operations. PG&E’s failure to approve, or
request modification of Buyer’s submittal within ten (10) business days, shall be construed as a rejection. If PG&E
withholds such approval or Buyer reasonably disagrees with the conditions of approval imposed by PG&E, or if the
landowner withholds an approval required for Buyer’s due diligence or investigation, Buyer may terminate this
Agreement pursuant to Section 5.3 “Buyer’s Right to Terminate” below. Such termination rights shall constitute Buyer’s
sole and exclusive remedy in the event that PG&E withholds such approval.

(c) Buyer’s investigation or inspection of the Site(s) or the Subject Pipeline(s) shall not

unreasonably interfere with any of the business or operations of the Subject Pipeline(s) or of the owner (or the lessee or
tenant) of the real property comprising the Site(s).
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(@ Buyer shall bear all of its own costs, expenses, liabilities and charges incurred in connection
with its access to the Subject Pipeline(s), the Site(s), or in connection with any reviews, inspections or investigations,
pursuant to this Section 5.1.

(e) Buyer shall notify PG&E by telephone or facsimile, at the numbers provided for that purpose in
Section 12.1 “Notices,” no later than two (2) working days prior to any inspection of the Subject Pipeline(s), Site(s), or
information, in each instance. PG&E shall have the right to have a representative accompany Buyer on each such
inspection.

® Buyer shall, promptly upon receipt by Buyer, provide to PG&E copies of all reports and studies,
and with respect to environmental investigations also raw data, collected or prepared by or on behalf of Buyer in
connection with Buyer’s due diligence or the matters addressed in this Article 5.

5.2 Indemnification. Buyer shall indemnify, defend (with competent independent counsel), protect and hold
PG&E, its officers, directors, employees, agents and contractors harmless from and against any and all Losses arising out
of or in any way connected with the Subject Pipeline(s) or Site(s) and occurring as a result of any inspection of the
Subject Pipeline(s) or entry upon the Site(s) or activities conducted thereon prior to the Closing by Buyer, its agents,
contractors, employees, consultants, or other representatives of Buyer. Buyer shall return the Subject Pipeline(s) and
Site(s) as nearly as possible to the same condition as they were in prior to such entries or activities, or shall pay PG&E all
costs of doing so.

5.3 Buyer’s Right to Terminate. Buyer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by written notice
to PG&E given prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period or no later than five (5) business days thereafter (the
“Due Diligence Related Termination Period”), if any of the following events occur: (i) Buyer is not satisfied with the
results of its inspections, or (ii) Buyer is unable to obtain the necessary Rights-of-Way or any other consents, permits, or
licenses which are necessary to own, operate, or maintain the Subject Pipeline(s), or (iii) PG&E withholds approval of or
imposes conditions unacceptable to Buyer with respect to Buyer’s environmental investigations regarding Hazardous
Substances; or (iv) the landowner withholds an approval required for Buyer’s due diligence investigation, or (v) PG&E
. fails or refuses to provide access to information in its possession which is reasonably deemed material by Buyer.

54 Buyer’s Election and Obligation to Notify PG&E. Before the end of the Due Diligence Period or the
end of the Due Diligence Related Termination Period, as applicable, Buyer shall either:

(a) notify PG&E in writing of the completion of Buyer’s due diligence investigations and review,
approval of the results thereof, and Buyer’s intention to complete the Transaction on Buyer’s part; or

) notify PG&E in writing of Buyer’s intention to exercise its right to terminate this Agreement
pursuant to Section 5.3 “Buyer’s Right to Terminate,” if applicable.

Buyer’s notice of termination shall specify in detail the basis for Buyer’s termination of this Agreement.
If Buyer elects not to terminate this Agreement, in addition to all other claims waived by Buyer hereunder, Buyer shall be
deemed to have waived any and all rights or claims against PG&E with respect to matters discovered during the Due
Diligence Period, except with regard to PG&E’s obligations under Sections 3.3, 8.2, 9.1 and 9.2. If Buyer elects to
terminate this Agreement, Buyer shall promptly provide PG&E with copies of any and all inspection reports and other

items, as provided in Section 5.1(f). If Buyer fails to comply with the provisions of this Section 5.4, PG&E shall be
released from all of its obligations under this Agreement.
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6. CERTAIN AGREEMENTS

6.1 Confidentiality.
(a) Each Party shall treat information furnished or made available to it by the other Party, pursuant

to this Agreement, as confidential and use it solely for purposes of evaluation and consummation of the Transaction (i) if
the document in which the information is presented is clearly marked as confidential, or (ii) if information provided
orally is identified as confidential at the time of the disclosure and in a letter transmitted within two (2) weeks of the
disclosure, or (iii) if the information is obtained during the course of the negotiations leading to the execution of this
Agreement, or as part of due diligence (including documents and material of the type provided for in Section 5.1 “Due
Diligence”), or as a result of due diligence inspections or investigations, or as a result of investigation of the other Party,
the Subject Pipeline(s), or Site(s), or in the preparation of agreements, schedules or other documents relating to the
consummation of the Transaction. All information referred to above in this Section 6.1 is defined as “Confidential
Information” for purposes of this Agreement. The term Confidential Information will not, however, include information
that (i) is or becomes publicly available other than as a result of a disclosure by the receiving Party or its representatives,
(11) is or becomes available to the receiving Party without confidentiality restrictions from a source other than the other
Party or its representatives, which source, to the receiving Party’s knowledge after due inquiry, is not prohibited by any
legal obligation or fiduciary duty to the other Party from disclosing such information to the receiving Party, or (iii) is
used by the Buyer after the Closing in the operation of the Subject Pipeline(s). If this Agreement is terminated (i) neither
Party will use any Confidential Information furnished by the other Party in its own or any of its Affiliate's business or for
any other purpose, and (ii) each of the Parties will return to the other all originals and copies of Confidential Information,
including documents and material of the type provided for in Section 5.1 “Due Diligence” or referred to in this Section
6.1, that have been furnished in connection with this Agreement, and (iii) each Party will destroy, and certify through its
corporate secretary or responsible officer, the destruction of all records containing Confidential Information of the other
Party that the receiving Party may have prepared.

(b) Upon written notice to the other Party, either Party may provide the other Party's Confidential
Information to the CPUC or any other Governmental Authority with jurisdiction, as required (by such Governmental
Authority) to obtain any necessary regulatory approvals related to the Transaction. The disclosing Party shall seek
confidential treatment for the other Party's Confidential Information so provided to a Governmental Authority unless this
requirement is waived in writing by the other Party. To the extent possible, the disclosing Party shall notify the other
- Party within a reasonable time in advance of its-intention to release to-a Governmental Authority any Confidential
Information that such Party has obtained from the other Party pursuant to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
shall preclude either Party from providing a Governmental Authority with Confidential Information that such Party is
required to provide pursuant to any law, or any decree, order or regulation of any Governmental Authority.

(c) The provisions of this Section 6.1 shall survive termination of this Agreement or the
Closing of the Transaction.

6.2 Taxes, Prorations and Closing Costs.
(a) Taxes.

@) In General. Buyer shall pay all Taxes, including sales, use and transfer Taxes, arising in
connection with the transfer of the Subject Pipeline(s), except that PG&E and Buyer shall each pay their own net income
Taxes. State and local real and personal property Taxes relating to the Subject Pipeline(s) for the Tax year of the Closing
shall be prorated between Buyer and PG&E on the following basis: PG&E shall be responsible for the payment of all
such Taxes for the period up to the Closing; and Buyer shall be responsible for payment of all such Taxes for the period
on and after the Closing. All such Taxes assessed on an annual basis shall be prorated on the assumption that an equal
amount of Tax applies to each day of the year, regardless of how any installment payments are billed or made, except that
any supplemental property Taxes or assessments which arise out of a revaluation of the Subject Pipeline(s), which
revaluation would not have occurred except for the change in ownership, shall be paid by Buyer. Any payments due one
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Party from the other pursuant to this Section 6.2 shall be paid at the Closing. If the Closing year’s Taxes and assessments
are not available as of the Closing, for purposes of apportionment between Buyer and PG&E and payment pursuant to
this Section 6.2, the amount thereof shall be estimated on the basis of the final Tax statements; but, within forty-five (45)

days after such statements are provided by one Party to the other, the Party owing any amount to the other hereunder shall
pay that amount.

(ii) Assessment and Payment of Property Taxes. Buyer acknowledges that the property Tax
on the Subject Pipeline(s) is assessed by the California State Board of Equalization as of January 1 of each year, and
PG&E must pay real property Taxes on the Subject Pipeline(s) for the subsequent fiscal year. If the Closing occurs
between January 1, and June 30, Buyer shall deposit with PG&E the full amount to pay real property Taxes allocable to
the Subject Pipeline(s) for the tax year beginning on July 1, in addition to the prorated amount of real property Taxes
allocable to the Subject Pipeline(s) for the tax year (ending June 30). PG&E shall pay the Taxes for the subsequent tax

year before they become delinquent; provided, however, that PG&E shall have the right to pay such Taxes in installments
as permitted by law.

(i)  Refunds and Credits. PG&E will be entitled to any and all refunds or credits of Taxes
relating to the Subject Pipeline(s) for the period prior to the Closing Date. Buyer will promptly notify PG&E and
forward to PG&E the amounts of any such refunds or credits within fifteen (15) days after receipt thereof.

(iv)  Notices Regarding Taxes. After the Closing, Buyer will notify PG&E in writing, within
fifteen (15) days after Buyer’s receipt of any correspondence, notice or other communication from a taxing authority or
any representative thereof, of any pending or threatened tax audit, or any pending or threatened judicial or administrative
proceeding that involves Taxes relating to the Subject Pipeline(s) for the period prior to the Closing; and Buyer will
fumnish PG&E with copies of all correspondence received from any taxing authority in connection with any audit or
information request, with respect to any such Taxes relating to the Subject Pipeline(s) for the period prior to the Closing.

) Rents and Fees. Any rents and fees due or payable by PG&E under any Rights-of-Way, or other
permits, licenses or other agreements relating to the Subject Pipeline(s) shall be prorated as of the Closing Date. The
amount due PG&E at the Closing shall be adjusted by the prorations calculated pursuant to this Section 6.2(b).

. (c) Buyer’s Closing Costs. Buyer will pay (i) all costs of (1) any title policy and all endorsements
thereto that Buyer elects to obtain, and any other costs for title-related work charged by the title company issuing the title
policy; (2) all necessary filings required of Buyer under the HSR Act; (3) compliance with CEQA requirements;
(4) Buyer’s Due Diligence Inspections, investigations and reviews; (5) obtaining the authorizations, consents, licenses,
permits and approvals pursuant to Section 6.8(b) “Buyer Responsibility;” (ii) all document recordation costs; (iii) all
documentary transfer taxes due in connection with the transfer of the Subject Pipeline(s) to Buyer; and (iv) all other

closing costs as may be necessary to complete the Transaction, except to the extent that any such cost is specifically
allocated to PG&E in this Agreement.

(d) PG&E’s Closing Costs. PG&E will pay (i) all costs of PG&E’s filing for CPUC Approval of the
Transaction; (ii) all costs of necessary filings required of PG&E under the HSR Act; and (iii) all costs of any other

approval or authorization that PG&E deems appropriate to seek and is not stated as one of Buyer’s responsibilities under
this Agreement.

6.3 Operation of the Subject Pipeline(s). Except as set forth in Schedule  “MODIFICATIONS OF
PG&E’S SYSTEM AND/OR THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S),” in Sections 6.4 “Modifications of PG&E’s System and/or
the Subject Pipeline(s)” and 6.5 “Capital Expenditures” below, and as contemplated herein or otherwise consented to by
Buyer in writing, from the date of this Agreement through the Closing, PG&E will use reasonable efforts under the
circumstances not to do or permit to be done anything in respect of the Subject Pipeline(s) other than in the ordinary
course of business as presently conducted, or as provided in this Agreement.
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6.4 Modifications of PG&E’s System and/or the Subject Pipeline(s). PG&E will make modifications in

or to PG&E’s gas plant, gas transmission system and/or the Subject Pipeline(s), as specifically set forth in Schedule 6
“MODIFICATIONS OF PG&E’S SYSTEM AND/OR THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S),” for the purpose of separating the
Subject Pipeline(s) from PG&E’s gas plant (“Transition Modifications”). All such Transition Modifications, as
specifically set forth in Schedule 6 hereof, will be performed by PG&E at Buyer’s expense (“Transition Modification
Costs”) after the Closing, subject to Buyer’s payment to PG&E of the total sum of $0 at the Closing, which payment shall
cover all Transition Modifications specifically set forth in Schedule 6 “MODIFICATIONS OF PG&E’s SYSTEM
AND/OR THE SUBJECT PIPELINE(S),” on the Effective Date, but no other modifications..

6.5 Capital Expenditures. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, from the
Effective Date through the Closing, PG&E may make Capital Expenditures in accordance with the Existing CPIOA.
Buyer shall pay to PG&E the amount expended by PG&E on account of all Capital Expenditures made between the
Effective Date and the Closing in accordance with the Existing CPIOA. If Buyer fails to authorize PG&E to make such
Capital Expenditures, then PG&E shall have the right to retire the affected Facilities, and all obligations of PG&E to
Buyer with respect to the affected Facilities shall be automatically extinguished and PG&E shall be released from any
and all liabilities relating thereto.

6.6 Risk of Loss. If, prior to the Closing Date, the Subject Pipeline(s) are totally or partially damaged or
destroyed, and the cost of repair is reasonably estimated to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the Purchase Price specified in
Section 3.1 (a “Major Loss”), Buyer and PG&E shall each have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving to the
other Party written notice of termination within ten (10) days of PG&E’s notice to Buyer of such destruction or damage.
In the event that neither Party elects to terminate this Agreement following such damage or destruction, or in the event of
any other damage to the Subject Pipeline(s) the repair cost of which is less than a Major Loss, Buyer shall remain
obligated to perform all of its obligations under this Agreement, and the provisions of Section 6.5 “Capital Expenditures”
shall apply to the affected Facilities. If PG&E performs such repairs Buyer shall, within thirty (30) days of the date of
PG&E’s invoice, pay to PG&E the actual cost of such repairs. [The Closing Deadline, as defined in Section 7.6(b), will
be extended by the estimated time period for completion of such repair or replacement plus thirty (30) days.] All other
costs of repair to the Subject Pipeline(s) shall be deemed to be Capital Expendltures with the exception of Ordinary
Maintenance Expenditures, which shall be borne by PG&E.

6.7 Buyer’s Insurance Regmrement From and after the Closing, Buyer or Guarantor shall maintain
insurance coverage with respect to the acquired Subject Pipeline(s) against liabilities of the kinds customarily insured
aganst by companies in the same or similar businesses of comparable types and scale (including self-insurance).

6.8 Regulatory Matters and Other Consents.

(a) PG&E Responsibility. PG&E will use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to obtain the CPUC
Approval of the Transaction and any other authorization, consent, or approval that PG&E, in its sole discretion, deems
necessary or appropriate regarding the Transaction.

(b) Buyer Responsibility. Except as provided in Section 6.8(2) “PG&E Responsibility,” it is Buyer’s
responsibility to obtain the following (collectively, the “Required Consents”):

(i) all authorizations, consents, licenses, permits and approvals of Governmental Authorities
and Third Parties required by applicable law or by Third Parties in connection with the consummation of the Transaction
or Buyer’s operation of the Subject Pipeline(s); and

18



(ii) without limiting the generality of clause (i) above, the specific consents to the

assignment from PG&E to Buyer of (or, as applicable, the reissuance of) easements pursuant to Section 2.3.1
“Easements.”

With respect to Required Consents of Third Parties, Buyer will promptly use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to obtain
all Required Consents. Upon PG&E’s request, Buyer will promptly provide a detailed report as to the status of each
Required Consent and Buyer’s efforts to obtain the same. After the Closing, Buyer will promptly notify all relevant
Governmental Authorities and all Third Parties of the change in ownership of the Subject Pipeline(s) resulting from the
Transaction to the extent required by applicable law or the specific underlying agreements.

() Hart-Scott-Rodino. The Parties will comply with the provisions of the Hart-Scott-Rodino
Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 (“HSR Act”) to the extent applicable to the Transaction. If applicable, the Parties
will make the required filings under the HSR Act, and it will be a condition precedent to Closing for both PG&E and
Buyer that all waiting periods under the HSR Act expire prior to Closing, and that no order, decree, judgment or
injunction enjoining or prohibiting the consummation of the Transaction has been issued. If any Governmental Authority
having jurisdiction under the HSR Act requires the filing of any additional information, each Party will provide that
information in a prompt and diligent manner. Buyer and PG&E will pay their respective filing fees under the HSR Act,
and each Party will bear its own costs of the preparation of any filing.

@ CEQA Compliance. Buyer will pay for compliance with all CEQA requirements, to the extent
applicable to the Transaction.

(e) Cooperation. Each Party will use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to assist the other Party in
its efforts to obtain the consents, approvals, permits and licenses required pursuant to this Section 6.8 and will cooperate
with the other Party in executing the applications and other documents that are reasonably required. Each Party will bear
its own costs for these applications and proceedings except as otherwise provided in Section 6.2 “Taxes, Prorations and
Closing Costs.”

® No Transfer if Consent or Approval Not Obtained. PG&E is not obligated to assign or transfer
any interest in the Subject Pipeline(s) or any claim, right or benefit arising under or resulting from the Subject
Pipeline(s), if an assignment or transfer or an attempt to make such an assignment or transfer without the consent of a
- Third Party would breach a contractual or equitable obligation owed to a Third Party, or violate any law, decree, order or
regulation of any Governmental Authority.

(2) No Transfer if Utility Status, It is not Buyer’s intent to become or operate as a public utility. In
requesting CPUC Approval of the Transaction, the Parties shall specifically request that the CPUC issue a conclusion of
law or finding of fact stating that Buyer’s deliveries of gas to PG&E and the provision of equal access and non-
discriminatory gas gathering services to producers connected to the Subject Pipelines do not by themselves cause Buyer
to be subject to CPUC regulation as a public utility defined in California Public Utilities Code, Part 1. Buyer is not
obligated to accept transfer of the Subject Pipelines unless the CPUC shall have made a finding in response to the Parties’
request for CPUC Approval of the Transaction regarding Buyer’s status as a public utility and such finding shall be
acceptable to Buyer in its sole discretion.

7. THE CLOSING
7.1 Conditions Precedent to the Closing. The obligations of each Party under this Agreement to complete

the purchase and sale of the Subject Pipeline(s) as contemplated hereby shall be subject to the satisfaction, on or prior to
the Closing, of each of the following conditions precedent:
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(2) Approval of Governmental Authority. CPUC Approval shall have been obtained no later than
twelve (12) months following the Effective Date of this Agreement and shall be in full force and effect. Each Party shall
notify the other in writing no later than sixty (60) calendar days following the date of such approval stating whether or
not such approval is in a form satisfactory and acceptable to it. If either Party notifies the other that such approval is not
satisfactory, this Agreement shall automatically terminate. All approvals from the other Governmental Authorities listed
on Schedule 11 “REQUIRED GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS,” as such Schedule may be amended prior to the
Closing by mutual agreement of the Parties, shall have been received and been approved by both Parties no later than
twelve (12) months following the Effective Date of this Agreement and shall be final and not subject to rehearing appeal
or judicial review, and in full force and effect on the Closing Date.

) Due Diligence. Buyer shall have completed and approved the results of its due diligence
inspections and review, in connection with the purchase of the Subject Pipeline(s) within the Due Diligence Period, and
Buyer shall have notified PG&E in accordance with Section 5.4(a).

(c) CEQA Compliance. Any environmental review required under CEQA with respect to the
Transaction contemplated hereby shall have been undertaken and completed, and the applicable statute of limitations for
filing a judicial challenge to such réview shall have expired without any challenge of this kind.

@ Equal Access and Non-Discriminatory Service. Buyer shall have provided to PG&E, in a form
and substance acceptable to PG&E, as Exhibit D herein, Buyer’s assurance that Buyer will provide equal access and non-
discriminatory services to producers, connected to the Subject Pipeline(s) at the time of Closing, and their successors,
desiring to delivery their gas to the PG&E gas pipeline system.

7.2 Additional Conditions Precedent to Obligations of Buyer. In addition to the conditions set forth in
Section 7.1 “Conditions Precedent to the Closing,” the obligations of Buyer under this Agreement to complete the
Transaction contemplated hereby will be subject to the satisfaction, at or prior to the Closing, of each of the conditions
precedent set forth in this Section 7.2, any one or more of which may be waived by Buyer at its option:

(@) Compliance with Provisions. PG&E has performed or complied in all material respects with all
covenants, agreements and conditions contained in this Agreement required to be performed or complied with by PG&E
at.or prior to the Closing. : . R .

(b) Approvals. Buyer has received and approved all authorizations, consents, licenses, permits and
approvals of Governmental Authorities and Third Parties required by applicable law or required by any such Third
Parties in connection with the consummation of the Transaction contemplated by this Agreement and with Buyer’s
operation of the Subject Pipeline(s) At PG&E’s option, Buyer will be deemed to have received and approved all of such
authorizations, consents, licenses, permits and approvals of Governmental Authorities and of Third Parties unless Buyer
has notified PG&E in writing of the failure of this condition on or before the first anniversary of the Effective Date.
PG&E may extend the aforestated time period at PG&E'’s discretion.

() No Adverse Proceedings or Events. No suit, action or other proceeding against any Party or its
Affiliates is pending before any court or Governmental Authority which seeks to restrain or prohibit the Transaction

contemplated by this Agreement or to obtain material damages or other material relief in connection with this Agreement
or the Transaction contemplated hereby.

@ Transfer Documents. PG&E has delivered or caused to be delivered to Buyer at the Closing the
documents referenced in Schedule 4 “CLLOSING DELIVERIES BY PG&E.”

© Interconnection Agreement. PG&E has executed and delivered to Buyer the Interconnection
Agreement.
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63) Balancing Agreement. PG&E has executed and delivered to Buyer the Balancing Agreement.

(® PG&E’s Certificate of Incumbency. PG&E has delivered to Buyer PG&E’s Certificate of

Incumbency.

(th) Hart-Scott-Rodino. The condition precedent set forth in Section 6.8(c) “Hart-Scott-Rodino” is
satisfied.

(i) No Termination. Neither Party has exercised any termination right such Party is entitled to
exercise pursuant to Section 7.6 “Termination.”

G PG&E'’s Certificate of Compliance. PG&E shall have delivered to Buyer a certificate signed by
an officer of PG&E stating that, to PG&E’s Knowledge, PG&E has complied with all of its obligations and covenants

under this Agreement necessary for Closing, and that all of its representations and warranties made herein are true and
correct as of the Closing Date.

$9) Public Utility Status. Buyer has received and accepted (in its sole discretion) the CPUC finding
regarding Buyer’s status as a public utility, pursuant to Section 6.8(g).

7.3 Additional Conditions Precedent to Obligations of PG&E. In addition to the conditions set forth in
Section 7.1 “Conditions Precedent to the Closing,” the obligations of PG&E under this Agreement to complete the
Transaction contemplated hereby will be subject to the satisfaction, at or prior to the Closing, of each of the conditions
precedent set forth in this Section 7.3, any one or more of which may be waived by PG&E at its option:

(a) Compliance with Provisions: Buyer has performed or complied in all material respects with all
covenants, agreements and conditions contained in this Agreement required to be performed or complied with by Buyer
at or prior to the Closing.

)] PG&E’s Receipt of Approvals of Governmental Authorities: PG&E has received and approved -
in form and content satisfactory to PG&E (in its sole discretion) the CPUC Approval, and each specific approval and
decision requested by PG&E as part of the CPUC Approval, any other authorization, consent and approval that PG&E
deems necessary or appropriate for the completion of the Transaction, and any and all other approvals from the other
Governmental Authorities listed on Schedule 11 “REQUIRED GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS,” as such Schedule
may be amended prior to Closing by mutual agreement of the Parties, and which approvals are in full force and effect on
the Closing Date. This Agreement may be voided by either Party, by written notice delivered to the other, at any time
within thirty days after (i) the effective date of a CPUC decision disapproving, in whole or in part, either (A) this
Agreement or the Transaction contemplated hereby, including, but not limited to, a request for approval under Section
851 of the Cal. Pub. Util. Code or (B) any other filing made by PG&E relating to cost or rate recovery related to this
Agreement or the transaction contemplated hereby; or (ii) the failure of any condition set forth in this Section 7.2(b)
“Approvals”; or :

(c) Other Approvals: Buyer has received and approved, in form and content, satisfactory to PG&E
in its sole discretion, all authorizations, consents, licenses, permits and approvals of Governmental Authorities and Third
Parties required by applicable law or required by any such Third Parties in connection with the consummation of the
Transaction contemplated by this Agreement and Buyer’s ownership and operation of the Subject Pipeline(s). No
adverse effect on PG&E’s pre-existing rights and interest has resulted or is likely to result, in PG&E’s sole judgment,
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from Buyer’s acquisition of such authorizations, consents, licenses, permits or approvals. At PG&E’s option, Buyer will
be deemed to have received and approved all of such authorizations, consents, licenses, permits and approvals of
Governmental Authorities and of Third Parties unless Buyer has notified PG&E in writing of the failure of this condition

on or before the first anniversary of the Effective Date. PG&E may extend the aforestated time period at PG&E’s
discretion.

(d) No Adverse Proceedings or Events: No suit, action or other proceeding against any Party or its
Affiliates is pending before any court or Governmental Authority which seeks to restrain or prohibit the Transaction

contemplated by this Agreement or to obtain material damages or other material relief in connection w1th this Agreement
or the Transaction contemplated hereby.

(e No Material Adverse Change: No material adverse change in Buyer’s or Guarantor’s financial
condition, as determined by PG&E in its sole discretion, has occurred since the Effective Date.

® No Adverse Effect: No adverse effect on PG&E’s permits, licenses, franchises, easements or
other rights or approvals has resulted or is likely to result from the sale of the Subject Pipeline(s), or the completion of
the Transaction contemplated hereunder, as determined in PG&E’s sole judgment.

(2 Cash Closing Payment: Buyer has delivered to PG&E the Purchase Price as required by Section
3.1 “Purchase Price.”

(h) Closing Deliveries: Buyer has delivered to PG&E (i) the documents referenced in Schedule
“CLOSING DELIVERIES BY BUYER;” and (ii) payments specified in Section 6.3 “Operation of the Subject

Pipeline(s),” 6.4 “Modifications of PG&E’s System and/or the Subject Pipeline(s),” Section 6.5 “Capital Expenditures,”
and Section 6.6 “Risk of Loss.”

(i) Interconnection Agreement: Buyer has executed and delivered to PG&E the Interconnection
Agreement.

G) Balancing Agreement: Buyer has executed and delivered to PG&E the Balancing Agreement.

(k) Board Resolutions: Buyer has delivered to PG&E certified copies of resolutions adopted by the
Board of Directors of Buyer authorizing the Transaction contermplated by this Agreement.

)] Creditworthiness Requirements: Buyer has met the Creditworthiness Requirements as set forth
in Section 12.10; and, if requested by PG&E, has delivered security in a form and amount acceptable to PG&E in
accordance with Section 12.10.

(m)  Guaranty: If requested by PG&E, Buyer has delivered to PG&E: (i) the Guaranty executed by
Guarantor, and (ii) evidence demonstrating that Guarantor continues to meet the Creditworthiness Requirements (as set
forth in Section 12.10) as of the Closing Date.

(n) Hart-Scott-Rodino: The condition precedent set forth in Section 6.8(c) “Hart-Scott-Rodino” is
satisfied.

(0) Buyer’s Certificate of Incumbency: Buyer has delivered to PG&E, Buyer’s Certificate of

Incumbency.
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) Buyer’s Certificate of Compliance: Buyer shall have delivered to PG&E a certificate signed by
an officer of Buyer stating that, to Buyer’s Knowledge, Buyer has complied with all of its obligations and covenants
under this Agreement necessary for Closing, and that all of its representations and warranties made herein are true and
correct as of the Closing Date.

@ No Termination: Neither Party has exercised any termination right such Party is entitled to
exercise pursuant to Section 7.6 “Termination.”

7.4 The Closing. The closing of the sale of the Subject Pipeline(s) to Buyer (the “Closing™) shall take place
at the offices of PG&E, 77 Beale Street, San Francisco, California, at the date and time determined by the Parties, which
date shall be as soon as reasonably practicable following the date on which all of the conditions set forth in this Article 7

have been satisfied or waived by the Parties. The day and time of the Closing is herein also referred to as the “Closing
Date.” '

(a) At the Closing, PG&E will deliver to Buyer the following, at the expense of PG&E:

() Appropriate transfer documents consisting of Bill(s) of Sale with respect to the Subject
Pipeline(s), substantially in the form of Exhibit B;

(ii) Any other documents required to be delivered on or prior to the Closing, if such delivery
has not already occurred.

(b) At the Closing, Buyer will deliver to PG&E, at the expense of Buyer:

@) An amount equal to the purchase price as specified in Section 3.1 “Purchase Price,” as
adjusted pursuant to Sections 6.2 “Taxes, Prorations and Closing Costs”, 6.4 “Modifications of PG&E’s System and/or

the Subject Pipeline(s),” Section 6.5 “Capital Expenditures,” Section 6.6 “Risk of Loss,” and Section 12.2 “Costs and
Expenses™;

- (i) Any other documents required to be delivered on or prior to the Closing, if such delivery
has not already occurred. . _ )

7.5 Passage of Title. Legal title with respect to the Subject Pipeline(s) shall not pass to Buyer until the
Subject Pipeline(s) are transferred at the Closing.

7.6 Termination. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement may be
terminated at any time prior to or on the Closing Date:

(a) By the mutual written consent of the Parties; or

® By either Party, upon ten (10) days written notice delivered to the other Party, if the Closing shall
not have occurred within 365 days from the execution of this Agreement by PG&E, (the “Closing Deadline™), and either

Party may exercise this right at any time after the Closing Deadline but before the Closing Date has been determined by
the Parties in accordance with Section 7.4; or
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(c) By either Party, immediately upon written notice delivered to the other Party, if there has been
any material misrepresentation, or any material breach of any covenant or warranty contained in this Agreement on the
part of the other Party which that Party has not cured by the earlier of the Closing Date or the date thirty (30) days after
receipt of a written notice specifying such breach or misrepresentations; or

@ By either Party in accordance with Section 6.7 “Risk of Loss;” or

(€) By either Party, immediately upon notice delivered to the other, if there has been entered a final,
nonappealable order or injunction of any Governmental Authority restraining or prohibiting the consummation of the
Transaction contemplated by this Agreement or any material part hereof: or

® By Buyer, prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, under the conditions set forth in
Section 5.3 “Buyer’s Right to Terminate;” or

(® By PG&E on thirty (30) days’ written notice any time after a CPUC decision approving this
Agreement and the consummation of the Transaction contemplated hereby, or approving any other request related hereto
filed separately by PG&E, if PG&E in its sole discretion does not accept one or more of the terms or conditions of the
CPUC decision, including, without limitation, terms and conditions relating to PG&E’s ability to recover its costs of
Remediation, or relating to the purchase price (as set forth in Section 3.1 “Purchase Price”), or to any matter for which
PG&E may request specific approval of the CPUC.

(h) By Buyer on thirty (30) days’ written notice any time after a CPUC decision approving this
agreement and the consummation of the Transaction contemplated hereby, or approving any other request related hereto,
if Buyer in its sole discretion does not accept one or more of the terms or conditions of the CPUC decision, including,

without limitation, terms and conditions relating to Buyer’s status as a public utility (as described in Section 6.8(g)
hereof.

8. INDEMNIFICATION

8.1 Indemnification by Buyer.

(@) PG&E Claims. From and after the Closing Date, Buyer shall assume the entire responsibility
and liability for and will indemnify, defend and hold harmless PG&E, its Affiliates, successors and assigns (collectively,

the “PG&E Group”) from and against all Losses which arise out of or relate to the following (collectively, the “PG&E
Claims™):

1) any Third Party Claims for personal injury or property damage (other than the Third
Party Claims described in subsections (2), (4), (6) and (7) below) resulting from or arising out of the ownership,
maintenance or operation of the Subject Pipeline(s), regardless of any prior active or passive negligence of PG&E in the
construction, maintenance or operation of the Subject Pipeline(s), but only where the alleged personal injury or property
damage giving rise to the claim occurs after the Closing Date;

2) any Third Party Claims: (i) for personal injury caused by any Post-Closing

Environmental Condition; (ii) for personal injury caused by any Pre-Closing Environmental Condition for exposure

occurring after the Closing; (iii) for property damage caused by any Post-Closing Environmental Condition; or-(iv) for

property damage resulting from or arising out of any Pre-Closing Environmenta] Condition where the alleged property
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damage occurred after the Closing or after Buyer or its transferees, or their successors, assignees, or respective

employees, agents or contractors took an action that exacerbated such Pre-Closing Environmental Condition, as described
in Section 9.3 (d) (1).

: (3) beginning on the first anniversary of the Closing Date, any and all Environmental Costs
regardless of when the release occurred or whether the injury, damage, claim, demand or cost is caused by or results from

Pre-Closing Environmental Conditions or Post-Closing Environmental Conditions, subject to PG&E’s obligations under
Section 9.1 (c).

(4) any and all Environmental Costs for which PG&E is not expressly liable.

(5) the failure, after the Closing Date, of Buyer to pay or otherwise discharge when due the
Assumed Liabilities or Buyer’s obligations under Article 9 “ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS;”

(6) any loss or damages resulting from or arising out of the ownership or operation of the
Subject Pipeline(s) after the Closing (other than the Third Party Claims described in subsections (1), (2) (3) and (4)
above); provided that loss or damages resulting from PG&E’s failure to comply with its obligations under Section 3.3
shall not be included in this provision; and

(7)  any assignment of easements or other land rights by PG&E to Buyer including, but not
limited to, obligations to remove pipelines or other Facilities, or to restore the Site(s), or any claims of landowners
against PG&E or the PG&E Group or against Buyer or the Buyer Group, arising out of or in connection with any such
assignment by PG&E to Buyer.

(b) Buyer Exceptions. PG&E Claims will not include Losses, for which PG&E has agreed to
provide indemnification pursuant to Section 8.2 “Indemnification by PG&E,” or those which PG&E has agreed to retain
pursuant to other provisions of this Agreement. PG&E Claims will not include any Losses arising out of property
damage or injury to person caused by PG&E’s operations after the Closing Date at or adjacent to the Site(s).

(c) Buyer Limitations. The PG&E Group will not in any event be entitled to any punitive or
consequential damages resulting from or arising out of any PG&E Claim. .

8.2 Indemnification by PG&E.
(a) Buver Claims. PG&E will indemnify, defend and hold harmless Buyer, its successors and
assigns (collectively, the “Buyer Group”), from and against all Losses, which arise out of or relate to the following
(collectively, “Buyer Claims”):

¢}) any Third Party Claims for personal injury or property damage (other than the Third
Party Claims described in subsections (2) or (3) below) resulting from or arising out of the ownership, maintenance or
operation of the Subject Pipeline(s) by PG&E prior to the Closing, but only if the alleged personal injury or property
damage giving rise to the claim occurred before the Closing Date;

@ any Third Party Claims (i) for personal injury caused by Pre-Closing Environmental
Conditions or (ii) for property damage caused by Pre-Closing Environmental Conditions, but only if the personal injury
or property damage occurred prior to the Closing; and

3 any Third Party Claims resulting from or arising out of the disposal, by PG&E or at
PG&E’s direction at an Offsite Disposal Facility, before the Closing Date, of Hazardous Substances generated by PG&E
at a Facility.
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®) PG&E Exceptions. Buyer Claims will not include any Losses, with respect to which Buyer has
agreed to provide indemnification pursuant to Section 8.1 “Indemnification by Buyer” or which Buyer has agreed to
assume pursuant to other Sections of this Agreement, or which (i) relate, are associated with, or arise in any manner out
of a Volunteered Line or Volunteered Lines or the operation thereof, or (ii) relate to Hazardous Substances which are
present at any time on Site(s) where a Volunteered Line is located; and for clarity of intention, it is expressly agreed that
PG&E’s liability for Remediation related to Third Party Claims for property damage under this Section 8.2 shall be
subject to and limited by the provisions of Section 9.3 and the same PG&E Remediation Time Limit and PG&E
Remediation Liability Cap as provided in Section 9.1.

(©) PG&E Limitations. The Buyer Group will not in any event be entitled to any punitive or
consequential damages resulting from or arising out of any Buyer Claims, including damages for lost revenues, income,
or profits, diminution in value of the Site or the Subject Pipeline(s) or any other damage or loss resulting from the
disruption to or loss of operation of the Subject Pipeline(s).

d) BUYER’S RELEASE OF PG&E. BUYER, FOR ITSELF AND ON BEHALF OF THE
BUYER GROUP, DOES HEREBY RELEASE, HOLD HARMLESS AND FOREVER DISCHARGE EACH
MEMBER OF THE PG&E GROUP FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, LIABILITIES (INCLUDING
FINES AND CIVIL PENALTIES) OR CAUSES OF ACTION AT LAW OR IN EQUITY (INCLUDING ANY
ACTIONS ARISING UNDER ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS), DESTRUCTION, LOSS OR DAMAGE OF ANY
KIND OR CHARACTER, WHETHER KNOWN OR UNKNOWN, HIDDEN OR CONCEALED, TO THE
PERSON OR PROPERTY OF ANY MEMBER OF THE BUYER GROUP INCLUDING THOSE RESULTING
FROM OR ARISING OUT OF ANY HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE, AT, ON, UNDER, IN OR ABOUT THE SITE,
AND FROM ALL ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS, EXCEPT AS TO PG&E’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER SECTION
9.1 “PG&E’S RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES,” SECTION 9.2 “PG&E’S REMEDIATION OBLIGATION,”
SECTION 8.2 “INDEMNIFICATION BY PG&E,” AND SECTION 3.3 “RETENTION OF LIABILITIES.”
BUYER’S RELEASE DOES NOT INCLUDE ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS FOR WHICH BUYER IS NOT
RESPONSIBLE UNDER PARAGRAPH 9.3(g). BUYER HEREBY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHTS AND
BENEFITS THAT IT NOW HAS, OR IN THE FUTURE MAY HAVE CONFERRED UPON IT BY VIRTUE OF
THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 1542 OF THE CIVIL CODE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (OR ANY

OTHER STATUTE OR COMMON LAW PRINCIPLES OF SIMILAR EFFECT), WHICH PROVIDES AS
FOLLOWS: : S

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE
CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR AT
THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM

MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE
DEBTOR.

IN THIS CONNECTION, BUYER HEREBY AGREES, REPRESENTS, AND WARRANTS THAT IT
REALIZES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT FACTUAL MATTERS NOW UNKNOWN TO IT MAY HAVE
GIVEN OR MAY HEREAFTER GIVE RISE TO CLAIMS THAT ARE PRESENTLY UNKNOWN,
UNANTICIPATED AND UNSUSPECTED, AND IT FURTHER AGREES, REPRESENTS, AND WARRANTS
THAT THIS RELEASE HAS BEEN NEGOTIATED AND AGREED UPON IN LIGHT OF THAT
REALIZATION AND IT NEVERTHELESS HEREBY INTENDS TO RELEASE EACH MEMBER OF THE
PG&E GROUP FROM THE CLAIMS, DEMANDS AND LIABILITIES DESCRIBED IN THE FIRST
SENTENCE OF THIS SECTION 8.2(d).

Initials of Buyer’s authorized representative

Initials of PG&E’s authorized representative _|
’ 26




83 Notice of Claim. Subject to the terms of this Agreement and upon obtaining knowledge of a claim for
which it is entitled to indemnity under this Article 8, the Party seeking indemnification hereunder (the “Indemnitee”) will
promptly notify the Party against whom indemnification is sought (the “Indemnitor”) in writing of any damage, claim,
loss, liability or expense which the Indemnitee has determined has given or could give rise to a claim under Section 8.2
“Indemnification by PG&E” or Section 8.1 “Indermification by Buyer.” (The written notice is referred to as a “Notice of
Claim.”) A Notice of Claim will specify, in reasonable detail, the facts known to the Indemnitee regarding the claim.
Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the failure to provide (or timely provide) a Notice of Claim will not affect the
Indemnitee’s rights to indemnification, except as otherwise provided by the specific time frames set forth in Section 8.2
“Indemnification by PG&E” and Section 8.1 “Indemnification by Buyer;” provided, however, that the Indemnitor is not
obligated to indemnify the Indemnitee for the increased amount of any claim which would otherwise have been payable,
to the extent that the increase resulted from the failure to deliver a timely Notice of Claim.

84 Defense of Third Party Claims. The Indemnitor will defend, in good faith and at its expense, any claim
or demand set forth in a Notice of Claim relating to a Third Party Claim for which the Indemnitee is entitled to indemnity
pursuant to this Article 8; and the Indemnitee, at its expense, may participate in the defense with counsel of its choice.
The Indemnitee shall not settle or compromise any Third Party Claim so long as the Indemnitor is defending it in good
faith. If the Indemnitor elects not to contest a Third Party Claim, the Indemnitee may undertake its defense, and the
Indemnitor will be bound by the result obtained by the Indemnitee. If the Indemnitor confirms its indemnity obligation
with respect to the claim or claims, then the Indemnitor may at any time request the Indemnitee to agree to the
abandonment of the contest of the Third Party Claim or to the payment or compromise by the Indemnitor of the asserted
claim or demand. If the Indemnitee does not object in writing within fifteen (15) days of the Indemnitor’s request, the
Indemnitor may proceed with the action stated in the request. If within that fifteen (15) day period the Indemnitee
notifies the Indemnitor in writing that it has determined that the contest should be continued, the Indemnitor will be liable
under this Article 8 only for an amount up to the amount which the Third Party to the contested Third Party Claim had
agreed to accept in payment or compromise as of the time the Indemnitor made its request. This Section 8.4 is subject to
the rights of any Indemnitee’s insurance carrier that is defending the Third Party Claim.

8.5 Cooperation. The Party defending the Third Party Claim will (a) consult with the other Party
throughout the pendency of the Third Party Claim regarding the investigation, defense, settlement, trial, appeal or other
resolution of the Third Party Claim; and (b) afford the other Party the opportunity to be associated in the defense of the
Third Party Claim. The Parties will cooperate in the defense of the Third Party Claim. The Indemmitee will make
available to the Indemmitor or its representatives all records and other materials reasonably required by them for use in
contesting any Third Party Claim (subject to obtaining an agreement to maintain the confidentiality of confidential or
proprietary materials in a form reasonably acceptable to Indemnitor and Indemnitee). If requested by the Indemnitor, the
Indemnitee will cooperate with the Indemnitor and its counsel in contesting any Third Party Claim that the Indemmitor
elects to contest or, if appropriate, in making any counterclaim against the Person asserting the claim or demand, or any
cross-complaint against any Person. The Indemnitor will reimburse the Indemnitee for any expenses incurred by the
Indemnitee in cooperating with or acting at the request of the Indemnitor.

8.6 Mitigation and Limitations on Claims. As used in this Agreement, the term “Indemnifiable Claim”
means any Buyer Claims or PG&E Claims. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein:

(a) Reasonable Steps to Mitigate. The Indemnitee will take all reasonable steps to mitigate all
losses, damages and the like relating to an Indemnifiable Claim, including availing itself of any defenses, limitations,
rights of contribution, claims against third Persons and other rights at law or equity, and will provide such evidence and
documentation of the nature and extent of the Indemnifiable Claim as may be reasonably requested by the Indemnitor.
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The Indemnitee’s reasonable steps include the reasonable expenditure of money to mitigate or otherwise reduce or
eliminate any loss or expense for which indemnification would otherwise be due under this Article 8, and the Indemnitor
will reimburse the Indemnitee for the Indemnitee’s reasonable expenditures in undertaking the mitigation.

(b) Net of Benefits. Any Indemnifiable Claim is limited to the amount of actual damages or Losses
sustained by the Indemnitee, net of the dollar amount of any insurance proceeds receivable by the Indemnitee (or any
member of the PG&E Group or Buyer Group indemnified hereunder, as applicable) with respect to the Indemnifiable
Claim.

9. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

9.1 PG&E’s Rights and Responsibilities.
(a) From the Closing Date until the expiration of “the PG&E Remediation Time Limit” or until a

total aggregate cost to PG&E of an amount equal to the “PG&E Remediation Liability Cap”, whichever of these limits is
reached first, PG&E agrees to pay for Remediation of any Pre-Closing Environmental Condition to the extent it is
required by a Governmental Authority with jurisdiction to require Remediation under Environmental Laws and subject to
the following conditions:

'6)) Buyer has provided PG&E with a Notice, either during the Due Diligence Period or
during the PG&E Remediation Time Limit;

(i) Buyer shall pay for Remediation of Pre-Closing Environmental Conditions up to and
including an aggregate limit of [Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) as escalated by the CPI, (“the PG&E Remediation
Liability Floor”), and Buyer shall not be entitled to assert any rights under this Article 9 unless and until the aggregate of
all such Remediation costs paid by Buyer is equal to or exceeds the PG&E Remediation Liability Floor.

(iii)  For purposes of this Section 9.1 (a), “Notice” shall mean a notice of the existence of Pre-
Closing Environmental Conditions, which notice shall include the results of laboratory tests evidencing the presence of
Hazardous Substances.

(b) PG&E has the right, but not the obligation, at its sole option, to undertake: (1) the Remediation
described in Section 9.1(a) above; (2)any Remediation that PG&E reasonably determines is required under
Environmental Laws; and (3) any additional Remediation relating to Pre-Closing Environmental Conditions as PG&E
reasonably deems necessary or appropriate.

(©) PG&E has no obligation to pay for or undertake Remediation of: (1)any Post-Closing
Environmental Condition; or (2) any Pre-Closing Environmental Condition of which PG&E does not receive Notice
during the Due Diligence Period or the PG&E Remediation Time Limit, or to the extent that it causes PG&E’s total
aggregate Remediation costs to exceed the PG&E Remediation Liability Cap; or (3)any environmental condition
beneath, about, around, or resulting from operation of a Volunteered Line or Volunteered Lines; however, for a Pre-
Closing Environmental Conditions where Remediation was commenced or as to which a Notice (including laboratory test
results) was provided by Buyer to PG&E during the PG&E Remediation Time Limit, solely with respect to such Pre-

Closing Environmental Condition, PG&E’s obligation shall extend until the PG&E Remediation Liability Cap has been
reached.

(d) PG&E shall have no obligation with respect to any Environmental Costs or environmental
conditions for which PG&E is not expressly liable pursuant to this Agreement.
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9.2 PG&E’s Remediation Obligation. PG&E’s agreement under Section 9.1 “PG&E’s Rights and
Responsibilities” to pay for certain Remediation is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in Schedule 5
“ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION.”

9.3 Buyer’s Responsibilities.

(a) Buyer will comply with all Environmental Laws and Environmental Requirements and directives
of all Governmental Authorities, including those concerning the presence of Hazardous Substances in, on, at, near or
about the Subject Pipeline(s) or the Site(s), including Hazardous Substances in soil or groundwater, and including all
Governmental Authorities’ directives requiring Remediation. Should PG&E opt to undertake (instead of to pay for)
Remediation related to a Facility in accordance with Section 9.1, Buyer’s obligation under this Section is excused only to
the extent of the Remediation undertaken by PG&E.

)] Buyer agrees that it will not develop the Site(s) or any adjacent land or any portion thereof for
use as a permanent or temporary lodging (including hotels, motels, and the like), hospital or other health-care facility,
school, day care center for children, park, playground or other recreational use, or other use that: (1) could cause a
Governmental Authority with jurisdiction over the Subject Pipeline(s) or Site(s) under Environmental Laws to require
more extensive or additional Remediation of any Pre-Closing Environmental Condition than the Remediation appropriate
for the Facility under its current use; or (2) could enhance the risks of human exposure to or movement of Hazardous
Substances. Buyer will indemnify, defend and hold harmless each member of the PG&E Group from and against all
damages, claims, losses, liabilities and expenses, including reasonable legal, accounting and other expenses, which arise
out of or relate to any breach of this Section. Any defense of PG&E under this provision shall be by attorneys
satisfactory to PG&E. Buyer will incorporate its obligations under this Section into any sales or lease agreement
hereafter executed by Buyer for the Subject Pipeline(s) or the Site(s) (or any portion thereof) and any tenant, operator, or
subsequent purchaser or transferee will be required to comply with all obligations of Buyer relating to use of the Subject
Pipeline(s) and Site(s) set forth in this Section.

(c) Buyer agrees to assume and pay for all costs of Remediation relating to the Subject Pipeline(s) or
Site(s) that (i) are incurred by anyone after the PG&E Remediation Time Limit (except as set forth in the last sentence of
Section 9.1(c); or (ii) exceed the PG&E Remediation Liability Cap (as defined in Section 9.1 (a)); or (iii) are costs of
Remediation, or a portion of such costs, up to the PG&E Remediation Liability Floor specified in that Section 9.1(a); or
(iv) relate to or result from or in connection with any Post-Closing Environmental Condition(s); or (v) for which PG&E is
not expressly liable.

(@ Buyer agrees to pay for all losses, damages, and costs incurred by PG&E due to or arising out of
the Pre-Closing Environmental Conditions or Post-Closing Environmental Conditions to the extent such loss, damage, or
cost results from or arises out of any of the following:

) the exacerbation of a Pre-Closing Environmental Condition due to any acts or omissions
of Buyer or its transferees, or their successors, assignees, or respective employees, agents or contractors;

) the relocation at Buyer’s request of the equipment used by PG&E for the Remediation of

any Pre-Closing Environmental Condition, including the relocation costs and any increased costs or expenses in
conducting such Remediation; or

3) any Post-Closing Environmental Conditions.

(e) Buyer shall also have the obligations specified in Schedule 5 “ENVIRONMENTAL
REMEDIATION.”
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, (f) Except for PG&E’s obligations under Section 8.2 with respect to personal injury occurring prior to
the Closing, Buyer expressly agrees that beginning on the first anniversary of the Closing Date, Buyer will be liable for
and shall indemnify, defend and hold PG&E harmless against all Environmental Costs, regardless of when the release of
Hazardous Substances occurred and whether they constitute Post-Closing Environmental Conditions or Pre-Closing
Environmental Conditions, except as set forth in the last clause of Section 9.1 (c). Any defense of PG&E under this
provision shall be by attorneys satisfactory to PG&E.

(8) Buyer’s responsibilities under this Section 9.3 shall not include costs of Remediation or
Envifonmental Costs to the extent caused by PG&E’s operation of pipelines or other facilities after the Closing at Sites to
which Buyer received a shared easement pursuant to Section 2.3.1(a) hereof.

10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

10.1  The total aggregate liability of PG&E, if any, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement,
whether based on contract, tort (including negligence) warranty or otherwise, shall in no event exceed: (i) ten percent
(10%) of the Purchase Price paid by Buyer pursuant to Section 3.1, or (ii) if PG&E has not received the Purchase Price
when its liability arises then the lesser of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) or ten percent (10%) of the Purchase Price
(the “Contract Liability Cap”), excepting solely PG&E’s liability as specifically set forth in Article 8
“INDEMNIFICATION” and in Article 9 “ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS;” provided that, PG&E’s total aggregate
liability under Article 9, “ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS,” shall in no event exceed the PG&E Remediation Liability
Cap as defined in Section. 1.1.

10.2 IN NO EVENT SHALL PG&E BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOST REVENUES, LOST
PROFITS, COST OF CAPITAL AND DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF CLAIMS BY THIRD PARTIES INCLUDING
BUT NOT LIMITED TO CLAIMS BY ANY TRANSFEREES, ASSIGNEES, OR SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST OF
BUYER, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES ARE FORESEEABLE, AND REGARDLESS OF ANY
NEGLIGENCE OF PG&E WHETHER ACTIVE OR PASSIVE.

o y BUYER SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, OR .
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOST REVENUES, LOST PROFITS, OR
COST OF CAPITAL.

NOTHING IN THIS SECTION 10.2 SHALL LIMIT OR AFFECT THE OBLIGATIONS OF THE
PARTIES AS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT.

11. CERTAIN POST-CLOSING COVENANTS

11.1  Release of Subject Pipeline(s) from First and Refunding Mortgage. Within a reasonable time

following the Closing, PG&E shall seek from the trustee the release of the Subject Pipeline(s) from PG&E’s First and
Refunding Mortgage. A failure of the trustee to release the Subject Assets from PG&E’s First and Refunding Mortgage
shall not be construed as a breach by PG&E of this Agreement, and in the event of such a failure of the trustee, Buyer’s
right to terminate this Agreement and PG&E’s obligation to return the Purchase Price specified in Section 3.1, paid by
Buyer at the Closing, shall constitute Buyer’s sole and exclusive remedy.
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11.2  Transfer or Disposition of Subject Pipeline(s) by Buyer. Any transfer or other disposition by Buyer,

or by its assignee or transferee, or by any subsequent assignee or transferee, of all or any portion of the Subject
Pipeline(s) after the Closing shall not in any way alter or affect the applicability of this Agreement or release Buyer from
any of its obligations under this Agreement and Buyer shall continue to be subject to its obligations hereunder and under
the this Agreements regardless of any action or omission of any future transferee(s).

12. MISCELLANEOUS AGREEMENTS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

12.1  Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in
writing and, unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, shall be deemed to have been duly given (i) when delivered in
person, or (ii) when dispatched by telegram or electronic facsimile transfer (confirmed in writing by mail simultaneously
dispatched), or (iii) one (1) business day after dispatch by a nationally recognized overnight courier service, to the
appropriate Party at the address specified below:

(a) If to Buyer, to:

with a copy to:

(b) If to PG&E, to: Steve Whelan
Director, Wholesale Marketing and
Business Development
245 Market Street, N15A
San Francisco, CA 94105

with a copy to: Rod Boschee
Manager, Business Development
245 Market Street, N15A
San Francisco, CA 94105

Notices to PG&E regarding due diligence investigations, pursuant to Section 5.1(c):
Rod Boschee

Manager, Business Development
245 Market Street, Mail Code N15A

San Francisco, CA 94105
Telephone: (415) 973-2908
Facsimile; (415) 973-6112

or to such other address or addresses as a Party may designate from time to time.
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12.3  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the Parties hereto
and their respective successors and permitted assigns, but neither Party may assign or delegate its rights or its obligations
hereunder without the prior written consent of the other Party in its sole discretion; provided that, PG&E may, upon
notice to Buyer, assign its rights concurrently with a delegation of its obligations under this Agreement to an Affiliate of

PG&E or to another Person in conjunction with the transfer of the Subject Pipeline(s) or the business function to which
this Agreement pertains.

In the event of an assignment or delegation of Buyer’s rights or obligations under this Agreement, Buyer
shall remain liable for all of Buyer’s obligations hereunder and for the performance of those obligations, regardless of
any such assignment or delegation or of PG&E’s consent thereto. Any assignment or delegation by Buyer of Buyer’s
rights or obligations under this Agreement is expressly conditioned on (i) execution by a guarantor acceptable to PG&E
and delivery to PG&E of the Guaranty attached hereto as Exhibit A and (i) compliance with the Creditworthiness

Requirements (as stated in Section 12.10). Any assignment or delegation without the execution and delivery of the
Guaranty by Buyer to PG&E shall be void and of no force or effect.

In the event of an assignment of PG&E s rights or obligations under this Agreement, PG&E shall remain

liable for all of PG&E’s obligations hereunder and for the performance of those obligations, regardless of Buyer’s
consent thereto.

124  Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including the Schedules and Exhibits hereto) and the Guaranty,
constitute the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the Transaction contemplated hereby,
and supersede any other agreements, negotiations, representations, warranties, commitments, offers, or
contracts, whether written or oral, that may have been made or entered into by either Party hereto or any
of its respective Affiliates (or by any director, officer, employee, or representative of such Party or
Affiliate) relating to the matters contemplated hereby.

125 Amendments and Waivers. No waiver, modification, or amendment of any provision of this
Agreement shall be effective unless specifically made in writing and signed by authorized representatives of the Parties.

12.6  No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended or will be
construed to confer upon or.give any Person, other than the Parties hereto, any rights or remedies under or by reason of
this Agreement or any transaction contemplated hereby.

12,7  Dispute Resolution. :
(a) Applicable Law. This Agreement and the legal relations between the Parties hereto will be

governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of California, without giving effect to any
principles of conflict of laws.

M) Venue and Jurisdiction. PG&E and Buyer hereby irrevocably submit to the exclusive
jurisdiction of any State of California or federal court sitting in the City of San Francisco over any suit, action or
proceeding arising out of or related to this Agreement or any of the documents or instruments referred to herein. Each of
PG&E and Buyer hereby waives any objection to jurisdiction or venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not
assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based on forum non conveniens.

12.8  Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.
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129  Certain Interpretive Matters.
(a) Titles and headings to Articles and Sections herein are inserted for convenience of reference only

and are not intended to be a part of or to affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. Ambiguities or
uncertainties in the wording of this Agreement will not be construed for or against any Party, but will be construed in the
manner that most accurately reflects the Parties’ intent as of the date they executed this Agreement.

(b) The inclusion of any matter on any Exhibit attached hereto will not be deemed an admission by
PG&E that such listed matter has or would have a material adverse effect.

(© Nothing contained in this Contract shall be construed as an agreement by the Parties as to
whether Buyer should file for public utility status.

(d) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall ever be construed to create an association, trust,
partnership, or joint venture, or impose a trust or partnership duty, obligation, or liability on or with
regard to any Party.

12.10 Creditworthiness Requirements. In order for PG&E to evaluate Buyer’s Credit Worthiness, Buyer
shall provide to PG&E’s Credit Risk Management Unit the following financial information:

(1) Buyer’s most recent audited annual report, or
(2) Buyer’s most recent U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Form 10-K, or

(3) Buyer’s most recent audited annual financial statement (including a balance sheet, income
statement, notes to financial statements and cash flow statement).

(a) Requirement for Security. If in PG&E’s assessment, Buyer fails to meet the Credit Worthiness
Requirements, Buyer shall furnish to PG&E security in a form and amount that is acceptable to PG&E.
Acceptable forms of security are:

(1) -Corporate Guaranty in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, or
(2) . Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.1 or
(3) Evidence of Insurance, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.2 or

(4) cash deposit

(b) The corporate Guarantor executing the Guaranty to be provided to PG&E as a condition precedent to the
Closing shall as of the Date of Closing have a demonstrable current rating of its long-term unsecured debt by
Moody’s, Investor Service, Inc. (Moody’s), Standard and Poor’s Rating Service (“S & P”), or an equivalent
rating service, of Baa2 or higher by Moody’s, or BBB or higher by S & P, or an equivalent credit rating by
an equivalent rating service. In the event of an assignment of this agreement by the Buyer, the Buyer’s
assignee shall as of the Date of Closing or of the assignment, whichever is the later date, meet the same
Creditworthiness Requirements as stated in this paragraph.

The issuing bank of the Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit shall, as of the Date of Closing, have a
demonstrable current rating of its long-term unsecured debt by Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. (Moody’s),
Standard and Poor’s Rating Service (“S&P”), or an equivalent rating service, of A2 or higher by Moody’s,
or A or higher by S&P, or an equivalent credit rating by an equivalent rating service.
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The insurance company issuing the Insurance Policy shall, as of the Date of Closing, have a demonstrable
current rating of its long-term unsecured debt by Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. (Moody’s ), Standard and
Poor’s Rating Service (“S&P”), or an equivalent rating service, of A2 or higher by Moody’s or A or higher
by S&P, or an equivalent credit rating by an equivalent rating service.

12.11 Survival. The representations and warranties of PG&E contained in Section 4.1 “Representations,
Warranties and Disclaimers of PG&E” of this Agreement, and the representations and warranties of Buyer contained in
Section 4.2 “Representations and Warranties of Buyer” of this Agreement, shall (except as otherwise stated in this
Agreement) survive the Closing and continue for a period of twelve (12) months thereafter and shall thereupon expire and
be of no further force and effect. Any claim for breach of any such surviving representations or warranties must be made
within such twelve month period or shall be waived. The following Articles and Sections shall survive the Closing:
Sections 2.3.1, 2.3.2, 3.2, 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, 5.2, 6.1, 6.2, 6.4, 6.5, 6.7, 6.8, Articles 8, 9 and 10 in their entirety, and
Sections 11.1, 11.2, 12.3, 12.4, 12.5, 12.6, 12.7, 12.9, 12.10, 12.11, and 12.12, as applicable. The following Articles and
Sections shall survive the termination of this Agreement: Sections 4.3, 4.4(b) and (c), 5.1(d) and (f), 5.2, 5.4, 6.1, and
Article 10 in its entirety. In addition, all provisions of this Agreement which by their purpose or nature are intended to
survive the Closing or the termination of this Agreement shall survive the Closing and/or the termination of this
Agreement.

12.12 Effect of Closing On Known Unsatisfied Conditions or Breached Representations, Warranties or

Covenants. If PG&E or Buyer elects to proceed with the Closing knowing of any failure of any condition in its favor to
be satisfied by the other Party, or of the breach of any representation, warranty or covenant by the other Party, the
condition that is unsatisfied or the representation, warranty or covenant which is breached will be deemed waived by such
Party on the Closing Date, and such Party will be deemed to fully release and forever discharge the other Party on
account of any and all claims, demands or charges, known or unknown, with respect to the same.

12.13  Schedules and Exhibits. The following Schedules and Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference into this Agreement:

Schedule.1 . “DESCRIPTION OF PIPELINE(S) TO BE SOLD”

Schedule 1.1 “PIPELINE MAP”

Schedule 2 “BUYER LITIGATION”

Schedule 3 “CLOSING DELIVERIES BY BUYER”

Schedule 4 “CLOSING DELIVERIES BY PG&E”

Schedule 5 “ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION”

Schedule 6 “MODIFICATIONS OF PG&E’S SYSTEM AND/OR THE SUBJECT
PIPELINE(S)”

Schedule 7 “LIST OF EASEMENTS”

Schedule 8 “PG&E AUTHORIZATION AND ENFORCEABILITY”

Schedule 9 “PG&E LITIGATION”
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Schedule 10
Schedule 11
Schedule 12
Schedule 13

Schedule 14

EXHIBIT
EXHIBIT A
EXHIBIT A.1
EXHIBIT A.2
EXHIBIT B
EXHIBIT C
EXHIBIT D

EXHIBIT E

EXHIBIT F

EXHIBIT H

“RELATED CONTRACTS”

“REQUIRED GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS”
“SCHEDULE OF PG&E OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES”
“SCHEDULE OF BUYER OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES”

“COMPLIANCE EXCEPTIONS”

“FORM OF GUARANTY”

“FORM OF LETTER OF CREDIT”

“FORM OF EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE”

“FORM OF BILL OF SALE”

“FORM OF FIRPTA CERTIFICATE”

“EQUAL ACCESS AND NON-DISCRIMINATORY SERVICE”

“CALIFORNIA PRODUCTION INTERCONNECTION AND
OPERATING AGREEMENT” (“CPIOA”)

“CALIFORNIA PRODUCTION BALANCING AGREEMENT”

“FORM OF ASSIGNMENT OF EASEMENT”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth below.

PG&E: BUYER:

PACTFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY VINTAGE PRODUCTION CALIFORNIA LLC

By: | By: , i

Name:{_¢ PR T HT:&.‘»M . Neme: S lUARSD OClrNGUHEE
Tite: Mt Prs 8k Title: VY :/ Gavgede AlfIdGin

Date: k'l‘n ~0§0

Date: E-L-of
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Schedule 1
Description of Pipeline(s) to be Sold

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

See Schedule 1.1 of this Agreement for description and location of pipeline to be sold.



Schedule 2

Buyer Litigation

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

| Vintage Production California LLC has no knowledge of any litigation involving the
subject transaction or the subject matter thereof.



Schedule 3

Closing Deliveries by Buyer

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

Upon execution of the Closing Documents by Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E),
Vintage Production California LLC will wire transfer the balance of the purchase price to
PG&E in accordance with PG&E's instructions.



Schedule 4

Closing Deliveries by PG&E

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

All documentation pertaining to this section of pipeline will be provided to Buyer.



SCHEDULE 5
Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement

ENVIRONMENTAIL REMEDIATION

1. PG&E’S REMEDIATION OBLIGATION

(a) PG&E shall have the exclusive right to negotiate and enter into agreements with any

Person regarding the nature, technical remediation approach, scope, cleanup objectives or any other
aspect of any Remediation undertaken by PG&E.

(b) PG&E agrees that prior to proposing any work plan for Remediation to a Governmental
Authority with jurisdiction over the Facility or Site(s) under Environmental Laws, PG&E will provide
Buyer with a copy of the work plan. The work plan will set forth the type and nature of the Remediation,
the specific locations at the Site(s) where the Remediation will be conducted, and the type and nature of
any equipment that will be used on or installed for purposes of conducting the Remediation.

(c) PG&E will consult in good faith with Buyer regarding the nature, technical Remediation
approach, scope, and cleanup objectives of any Remediation and the placement of and the location of
PG&E’s remediation and testing equipment. PG&E will avoid, to the extent reasonably practicable and
consistent with sound Remediation practices, proposing a method for Remediation that: (i) is materially
inconsistent with any planned expansion of the Facility that has been disclosed in writing by Buyer to
PG&E; or (ii) will materially decrease the economic value of the Facility.

(@ If PG&E is undertaking the Remediation under the supervision of a Governmental
Authority, PG&E will use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to obtain written evidence of such

Governmental Authority’s approval of such work plan and, if and when obtained, will provide Buyer with
such evidence.

(e) PG&E will use reasonable efforts to inform Buyer orally at least twenty-four (24) hours
in advance of all material actions to be taken near the Facility, which notice may be in the form of a
schedule of activities. No notice will be required for any action taken in connection with an emergency.

® Buyer understands that the Remediation may interfere with the use of the Facility after
the Closing. PG&E will, to the extent reasonably practicable and consistent with sound Remediation
practices, undertake the Remediation in a manner that will not unreasonably disrupt Buyer’s operations of
the Facility. All Remediation work will be done in substantial compliance with Environmental Laws.



2, BUYER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

(a) Should PG&E opt to perform Remediation near a Facility, Buyer will grant to PG&E a
non-exclusive license for the purpose of conducting Remediation, subject to the terms and conditions of
this Agreement, and Buyer agrees to cooperate to enable Remediation work to be performed, to assist
PG&E in obtaining access to the Facility and the Site(s), and to off-site property if necessary (including
consents of the respective landowners), for the implementation of the Remediation work, and support
PG&E in its negotiations with any Governmental Authority with respect to the Remediation. Buyer
agrees that it will comply, and will cause other Persons (other than any member of the PG&E Group) at
the Facility and Site(s) to comply, with any requirements, directives, instructions, or plans issued by any
Governmental Authority or PG&E for the purpose of protecting the health and safety of Persons during
Remediation activities conducted on or in the vicinity of the Facility or Site(s).

(b) Buyer acknowledges that PG&E will have the right, but not the obligation, to undertake
the Remediation of the Pre-Closing Environmental Conditions and therefore Buyer will not initiate or
permit the initiation of any Remediation of the Pre-Closing Environmental Conditions, or submit, or
cause to be submitted, orally or in writing, any information or comments to any Governmental Authority
concerning the Pre-Closing Environmental Conditions or Remediation thereof (other than documents or
information routinely and customarily submitted to such Governmental Authority) without the prior
consent of PG&E, unless in the reasonable judgment of Buyer such actions are required by Environmental
Laws or Environmental Requirements or to protect the immediate health and safety of individuals or the
environment. Buyer will notify PG&E as soon as reasonably possible of any information developed by
Buyer or received by Buyer from any Person other than PG&E regarding the presence or suspected
presence of Hazardous Substances that Buyer believes to be a Pre-Closing Environmental Condition.
Buyer may submit such information to a Governmental Authority, if in the reasonable judgment of Buyer
such submission is required by Environmental Laws or Environmental Requirements, or to protect the
immediate health and safety of individuals or the environment.

(c) Buyer will not relocate, disturb or interfere with, or permit the relocation, disturbance, or
interference with, the equipment used by PG&E or PG&E’s agent for any Remediation without obtaining
PG&E’s prior written consent. Upon written request from Buyer, PG&E will relocate such equipment to
accommodate Buyer’s operations of the Facility, to the extent such relocation can be accomplished
without materially delaying or disrupting the Remediation.

(@) Buyer will notify PG&E at least ten (10) business days in advance, and will consult in
good faith with PG&E, before commencing any planned extraction, excavation or removal of any soil or
groundwater near the Facility, or commencing any other action that could disrupt or disturb any soil or
groundwater near the Facility. Without derogating from or otherwise modifying Buyer’s obligations in
Section 8.1 “Indemnification by Buyer” and Section 9.3 “Buyer’s Responsibilities,” Buyer will make
Commercially Reasonable Efforts to avoid taking any action, and to cause other Persons (other than any
member of the PG&E Group) to avoid taking any action, that could: (1) increase the risk that a
Governmental Authority would require any Remediation relating to any Pre-Closing Environmental
Condition; (2) increase the cost of any such Remediation; (3) increase the risk of human exposure to or
movement of Hazardous Substances; or (4) increase the risk that a Third Party Claim with respect to a
Pre-Existing Environmental Condition, or the Remediation thereof, could arise.

(e With respect to a Pre-Closing Environmental Condition, PG&E and Buyer will, upon the
written request of the other Party, provide to the requesting Party copies of all material reports,
correspondence, notices and communications regarding any Pre-Closing Environmental Condition or the
Remediation thereof sent to or received from any Governmental Authority with jurisdiction under
Environmental Laws over such Remediation.



Schedule 6

Modifications of PG&E’s System
and/or the Subject Pipeline(s)

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement

Dated

Remove Cathotic Protection Bonding from pipeline at the time of sale.
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Schedule 8
PG&E Authorization and Enforceability

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

NONE



Schedule 9

PG&E Litigation

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

PG&E has no knowledge of any litigation involving the subject transaction or the subject
matter thereof.



Schedule 10

Related Contracts

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

This section of pipe includes a river crossing for which PG&E has a lease from the State
Lands Commission. The lease is coded into PG&E land document records as LD# 2201-
06-0389. The lease may be assigned subject to the approval of the SLC. There is also a
permit associated with the same crossing from the State Reclamation Board LD# 2201-
06-0387. Neither of these two documents are recorded in the public records of San
Joaquin Courty. The remainder of the pipeline section is covered by private easements
which may be assigned upon CPUC 851 approval of the sale and purchase. They are as
follows:

LD# 2201-06-0013, Easement from Raymond A. Muller, et ux and Frank G. Terry,
Recorded in Official Record of San Joaquin County in Book 3035 at Page 10.

LD# 2201-06-0227, Easement Frank G. Terry, et al, Recorded in Official Records of San
Joaquin County in Book 2602 at Page 542.

LD# 2201-06-0225, Easement Frank G. Terry, et al, Recorded in Official Records of San
Joaquin County in Book 2587 at Page 571.



Schedule 11

Required Governmental Approvals
Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated 4

Will require approval from the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) of an 851
Filing covering the sale of the subject pipeline in this Agreement.



Schedule 12

Schedule of PG&E Officers and Employees
Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

Thomas B. King
President and CEOQ

Robert T. Howard
Vice President
Energy Delivery, Gas Transmission and Distribution

Steve Whelan
Director, Wholesale Marketing and Business Development



Schedule 13

Schedule of Buyer Officers and Employees
Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

Richard W. Oringderff
President

Michael D. Gooding
Assistant Secretary

Harley Pinson
Assistant Secretary

Rocky Rasley
Production Area Foreman



Schedule 14

Compliance Exceptions

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

NONE



Exhibit A

Form of Guaranty

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

GUARANTY

1. Guarantee of Payment and Performance. For valuable consideration, Vintage Production
California LLC (“Principal”) and Occidental Petroleum Corporation (“Guarantor”) jointly and
severally unconditionally guarantee payment to Pacific Gas and Electric Company (“PG&E”), its
successors and assigns, of all amounts owed to PG&E by Principal and of the performance of all
obligations of Principal under that certain “Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement” (the
“Agreement”) between Principal and PG&E dated 2006 (the “Obligations™). The
joint and several liability of Principal and Guarantor hereunder is a continuing guaranty of
payment and performance when any amount is owing or when any provision of the Agreement is
breached, without regard to whether such payment or performance obligation is contingent or
absolute, liquidated or not, or whether recovery may be or has become barred by any statute of
limitations or otherwise may be unenforceable. In addition to the amounts for which payment is
guaranteed hereunder, Guarantor agrees to (a) pay reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs
and expenses incurred by PG&E in enforcing this Guaranty or any action or proceeding arising
out of or relating to this Guaranty and (b) to perform any and all of Prmc1pal’s Obligations upon
demand for the same by PG&E.

2. Guarantor’s Creditworthiness. If at any time during the term of this Guaranty PG&E
determines that Guarantor’s creditworthiness has materially changed, PG&E may declare
Guarantor and Principal to be in default under this Guaranty and Principal to be in default of the
Obligations and may exercise its remedies under the Obligations and relevant provisions of
PG&E’s filed tariffs.

3. Independent Liability. Except for performance by the Guarantor on demand, the obligations
of Guarantor hereunder are independent of the Obligations of Principal. The liability of
Guarantor hereunder is independent of any security for or other guaranty of payment received by
PG&E in connection with the Agreement and is not affected or impaired by (a) any indebtedness
of Principal to PG&E that exceeds Guaranty’s liability hereunder, or (b) any other guaranty as to
amounts owed to PG&E by Principal, or (c) any partial payment by Principal or any other party
acting under a separate guaranty, or (d) any dissolution, reorganization, or insolvency of
Principal, or (¢) any payment to PG&E by Principal that PG&E subsequently returns to Principal
pursuant to court order in any bankruptcy or other debtor-relief proceeding, or (f) any indemnity
agreement Principal may have from any party, or (g) any insurance that may be available to
cover any loss. Guarantor waives any right to the deferral or modification of Guarantor’s
obligations hereunder by virtue of any such debtor-relief proceeding involving Principal.

4. Term. The term of this Guaranty is coincident with the term of any Obligation of Principal
under the Agreement, and this Guaranty may not be terminated early for any reason.



S. Waivers of Defenses by Guarantor. (a) Guarantor waives, to the fullest extent permitted by
law, the benefit of any statue of limitations affecting its liability under this Guaranty or the
enforcement of this Guaranty. (b) Guarantor waives any right to require PG&E to (i) proceed
against Principal, (ii) proceed against or exhaust any security held from Principal or any other
party acting under a separate agreement, or (iii) pursue any other remedy available to PG&E. (c)
Guarantor waives any defense based on or arising out of any defense of Principal other than
payment in full of the amount(s) owed or full and satisfactory performance of Principal’s
obligations under the Agreement, including without limitation any defense based on or arising
out of the disability of Principal, the unenforceability of the indebtedness from any cause, or the
cessation from any cause of the liability of Principal other than payment in full of the amount(s)
owed or full and satisfactory performance of Principal’s obligations. (d) PG&E may, at its
election, foreclose on any security held by PG&E, whether or not the means of foreclosure is
commercially reasonable, or exercise any other right or remedy available to PG&E without
affecting or impairing in any way the liability of Guarantor under this agreement, except to the
extent the amount(s) owed to PG&E by Principal have been paid. (¢) Guarantor waives all rights
and defenses arising out of an election of remedies by PG&E, even though that election of
remedies may impair or destroy Guarantor’s rights of subrogation and reimbursement against
Principal by operation of Section 580d of the California Code of Civil Procedure or otherwise.
(f) Until all amounts owed by Principal to PG&E are paid in full, even though such amounts may
in total exceed Guarantor’s liability hereunder, Guarantor shall have no right of subrogation,
waives any right to enforce any remedy that PG&E has or may have against Principal, and
waives any benefit of and any right to participation in any security from Principal now or later
held by Guarantor. (g) Guarantor assumes all responsibility for keeping itself informed of
Principal’s financial condition and all other factors affecting the risks and liability assumed by
Guarantor hereunder, and PG&E shall have no duty to advise Guarantor of information known to
it regarding such risks.

6. Liens and Setoffs. PG&E shall have a right of setoff against any amounts owed by PG&E to
Guarantor under any agreement or judgment and a lien against any money or other security of
Principal held by Guarantor, without regard whether such money or security is held in relation to
this Guaranty or otherwise, and every such lien and setoff may be exercised by PG&E without
notice to or demand on Guarantor.

7. No Waiver of Rights by PG&E. No right or power of PG&E under this Guaranty shall be
deemed to have been waived by any act or conduct on the part of PG&E, or by any neglect to
exercise a right or power, or by any delay in doing so, and every right or power of PG&E
hereunder shall continue in full force and effect until specifically waived or released in a written
document executed by PG&E.

8. Governing Law. This Guaranty is made under and shall be governed in all respects by the
laws of the State of California, and its provisions may not be waived, altered, modified or
amended except in writing executed by an officer of each of Guarantor and PG&E. If any
provision of this Guaranty is held invalid under the laws of California, this Guaranty shall be
construed as though the invalid provision has been deleted, and the rights and obligations of the
parties shall be construed accordingly.



9. Construction. All parties to this Guaranty are represented by legal counsel. The terms of this
Guaranty and the language used herein shall be deemed to be the terms and language chosen by
the parties hereto to express their mutual intent. This Guaranty shall be construed without regard
to any presumption or rule requiring construction against the party causing such instrument or
any portion thereof to be drafted, or in favor of the party receiving a particular benefit under this
Guaranty. No rule of strict construction will be applied against any person.

10. Notice. Any notice given hereunder by either Guarantor or PG&E shall be made by
facsimile to the person and at the address specified by each party for this purpose. Such notice
shall be effective upon actual receipt if received during the recipient’s normal business hours, or
at the beginning of the recipient’s next business day after receipt if receipt is outside of the
recipient’s normal business hours. Either party may periodically change any address to which
notice is to be given it by providing notice of such change as provided herein.

For Occidental Petrolenm Corporation: For Vintage Production California LLC:
(Guarantor) (Principal)
Date Date: é’ (/173

Agreed to by PG&E for purposes of establishing the creditworthiness of Principal, as security for
the Agreement. '




Exhibit A.1

Form of Letter of Credit
Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated
ISSUING BANK LETTERHEAD
ADDRESS
Date:
Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit Number:
Beneficiary:  Pacific Gas and Electric Company Applicant:
77 Beale Street, Mail Code B28L Address:

San Francisco, CA 94105
Attn: Credit Risk Management Unit

[Advising Bank, if applicable]
[Confirming Bank, if applicable]

At the request of [insert name of Applicant], we, [insert name of Issuing Bank] hereby issue our
Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit No. [insert Letter of Credit number](“Letter of Credit™)
effective immediately in your favor for the account of [insert name of account party] (“Account
Party”) in the amount of United States Dollars [spell out amount followed by

(USS )] (hereinafter, as may be reduced from time to time in accordance with
provisions hereof, referred to as the “Stated Amount”). This Letter of Credit can be drawn against
presentation of the following documents:

1. Your sight draft, in the form of Annex A.
AND

A Beneficiary Certificate signed by an authorized officer of Pacific Gas and
Electric Company in the form of either Annex B or Anmex C.

Special Conditions:

1. Partial and multiple drawings are permitted.

2. All banking charges associated with this Letter of Credit are for the account of the
Applicant.

3. This Letter of Credit expires at our counters located at [address] on

, (the “Expiration Date”) but such Expiration Date shall be automatlcally

extended without amendment for a period of one year and on each successive
Expiration Date, unless at least sixty (60) days before the then current Expiration
Date, we notify you by registered mail or courier that we elect not to extend the
Expiration Date of this Letter of Credit for such additional period.



4. Documents are to be presented at our office located at the address below no later than the
Expiration Date.

5. This Letter of Credit is not transferable.

6. Each drawing request honored by us shall reduce the Stated Amount by the amount
honored.

7. A drawing for an amount greater than the Stated Amount of the Letter of Credit is
allowed, however, payment shall not exceed the Stated Amount of the Letter of Credit.

- We hereby engage with you that draft(s) drawn under and in compliance with the terms of this
Letter of Credit will be duly honored if drawn and presented for payment at any time before the
close of business {insert time] at our counters located at [insert address] on the then current
Expiration Date or in the event of a Force Majeure, as defined under Article 17 of the Uniform
Customs and Practice for Documentary Credits (1993 Revision) International Chamber of
Commerce Publication No. 500 (“UCP 500”), that interrupts our business, within thirty (30) days
after resumption of our business, whichever is later.

Except as otherwise stated herein, this Letter of Credit is subject to UCP 500 and, with respect to
matters not so covered by UCP 500, this Letter of Credit is subject to and governed by the laws of
the State of New York.

If you have any questions regarding this Letter of Credit, please call [Telephone No.}).

By:

Authorized Signature

Name:

Title:




Exhibit A.2

Form of Evidence of Insurance
Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

/N
oxy

Q' OCCIDENTAL PETROLEUM CORPORATION 10885 WILSHIRE BOULEVARD
L.OS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 80024

TELEPHONE (310) 443-8588
FACSIMILE  (310) 443-6520
E-MAIL JIM_GARRETT@OXY.COM

JAMES E. GARRETT
* ASSISTANT DIRECTOR-PROPERTY INSURANCE

February 16, 2006

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Mr. Rod Boschee, Manager Contract Development
77 Beale Street, Mail Code B16A

San Francisco, CA 94105

RE: Andreotti Pipeline
Dear Mr. Boschee:

Vintage Production California LLC (VPCL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Occidental
Petroleum Corporation which is a multi-national corporation with assets in excess of $21
billion dollars and stockholders’ equity in excess of $10.5 billion. Occidental, like other muiti-
national corporations, self-insures, directly or indirectly, through deductibles and other risk
finance alternatives, the majority of its primary layers of casualty and property insurance.
This letter will serve as evidence that Occidental agrees to self-insure any insurable liabilities
assumed by VPCL relative to the captioned and will recognize its insurable contractual
liability obligations as if we were insured.

Sincerely,

Lot

cc: John Tierce



Exhibit B
Pacific Gas and Electric Company Form of Bill of Sale 8592

Bill of Sale and Sale Agreement Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
) & Dated _

SELLER: Pacific Gas and Electric Company BUYER: Vln.ﬂx)? 7 Proeg.%(a:ht]ﬁ?tél-l. Galifornia
Materials Department Attn: LLC
Investment Recovery Group )

245 Market Street, Mail Code N5F 28590 Hwy 1191002
San Francisco, CA 94105 Tupman, CA 83276

We offer to purchase the following items for the Purchase Price shown and subject to the attached Terms
and Conditions.

ITEM QTY UNIT DESCRIPTION PURCHASE PRICE

01 1 EA No representations are made by PG&E as to condition of
pipe. Pipe is in "as is" condition. Buyer shall not cut with fire
or spark generating tools since flammable condition may be
present in the pipe due to prior natural gas transportation
use.

1 1 EA 3,523 foot section of 8" gas gathering line on each side of $0.00
and crossing the San Joaquin River .

Sub Total $0.00

Tax@ 0.00% $0.00
Total $0.00

REMARKS:

Disposition Number: 88403
Bid Number:;

Sales Location: NO TAX

Ref Order Number: 9702041

Seller shall add State of California sales tax for property delivered in California OR the appropriate sales tax
of the state to which shipment is sent UNLESS Buyer claims exemption of such tax.

TAX EXEMPT BECAUSE:

RESALE PERMIT # TYPE OF PAYMENT RECEIVED "1 COMPANY/PERSONAL CHECK g
{CHECK ONE - Cash not accepted) 71 CASHIER'S CHECK {1 MONEY ORDER .

THE ATTACHED TERMS AND CONDITIONS ARE PART OF THIS OFFER AS EFFECTIVELY AS
THOUGH THEY PRECEDE THE SIGNATURE OF BUYER BELOW

SELLER (Signature) " BUYER (Signature)
TITLE - TITLE B ) -
~ TELEPHONE TELEPHONE o

DATE OF ACCEPTANCE T T T T DATE OF OFFER

Investment Recovery Copy (not vahd wuthout Investment Recovery’s initial in non-black ink) h/ 6

e macimnmmb b ALE VM deat AMall Nada RIEF QN aw Crmaalana MA NA4AS



Exhibit C

Form of FIRPTA Certificate

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code provides that a transferee of a U.S. real
property interest must withhold tax if the transferor is a foreign person. To inform the
transferee that withholding of tax is not required upon the disposition of a U.S. real
property interest by Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), the undersigned hereby
certifies the following on behalf of PG&E: 1. PG&E is not a foreign corporation, foreign
partnership, foreign trust, or foreign estate (as those terms are defined in the Internal
Revenue Code and Income Tax Regulations); 2. PG&E's U.S. employer identification
number is 94-0742640; and 3. PG&E’s office address is 77 Beale Street, San Francisco,
California 94105. PG&E understands that this certification may be disclosed to the
Internal Revenue Service by transferee and that any false statement contained herein

-could be punished by fine, imprisonment, or both. Under penalties of perjury I declare
that I have examined this certification and to the best of my knowledge and belief it is
true, correct and complete, and I further declare that I have authority to s1gn this
document on behalf of PG&E

PACIFIC C COMPN\@

(51gnature)

'L{%avr Ho wirlD

(pnnt name)
Titte:_\J 3 L2 V 3\
Date: (;; L6 ( 0 5

\




Exhibit D
Equal Access and Non-Discriminatory Service

Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

Operations Proposal
PG&E Line 304
San Joaquin River Crossing and Adjacent Pipeline
Total Segment Length 3,523 feet

May 10, 2006

In connection with its purchase of the subject pipeline segment from Pacific Gas and Electric
Company (PG&E), Vintage Production California LLC (Vintage Production) proposes to operate
said pipeline segment as a non-regulated pipeline. Vintage Production also agrees upon request
to make any capacity in excess of its actual production requirements available to third party
producers of natural gas in the area served by the subject pipeline segment for the gathering of
natural gas. Prior to the gathering of any third party natural gas, Vintage Production and said
third party producer shall in good faith enter into a mutually acceptable written gathering
agreement that shall provide for the prompt payment of revenues to the third party producer and
which shall include among its terms and conditions, provisions that accomplish the following:

a.

Vintage Production shall use commercially reasonable efforts to market any such third
party natural gas and said third party producer shall be responsible for producing the
quantities of natural gas he/she/it nominates. Vintage Production shall not be held liable
to said third party producer with respect to marketing decisions under any theory of
liability with the exception of any harm which is determined to be the result of the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of Vintage Production.

Should the BTU content of such third party producer natural gas be of such quality that
when blended with Vintage Production natural gas jeopardizes deliveries to the custody
transfer point, then prior to the acceptance of such gas for gathering, said third party
producer shall be responsible at his/her/its sole risk and expense to make his/her/its gas
compatible with the requirements of the custody transfer point. In addition, the third
party gas shall not have a sulphur, carbon dioxide, oxygen, water, and other contaminant
content more than the natural gas then moving through the subject pipeline segment, such
that the transmission, corrosion, and marketability characteristics of the natural gas
stream moving through the pipeline segment shall not be degraded.

All third party gas will be gathered on an interruptible service basis. In the event of
capacity constraints, the shortages will be allocated on a through put basis among the
third party natural gas producers such that Vintage Production gas shall have a priority
right to the pipeline capacity. In the event of any such constraint, Vintage Production
shall not have any obligation to enlarge the lines, install compression, or do any other act



to increase capacity. Vintage Production obligations shall be strictly limited to fairly
allocating between the third party producers the gathering capacity remaining after
Vintage Production pipeline capacity requirements have been satisfied.

Gathering services for all third parties will be priced at a value per thousand cubic feet of
natural gas gathered at a rate calculated to recover: (i) the direct actual costs of operating
and maintaining the pipeline segment; (ii) the purchase price of the initial transaction and
any capitalized items installed on or connected to said pipeline, or otherwise reasonably
associated with said segment, by way of a depreciation charge in accordance with
generally accepted accounting standards; and (iii) a delivery fee not to exceed 12% of the
above mentioned costs.

This statement of operation shall have no application to or create any obligation in
Vintage Production with regard to any Vintage Production owned pipelines that have not
been acquired from PG&E pursuant to this transaction to which this statement is a part.

Vintage Production agrees the obligations undertaken herein shall run with the pipelirje
segment and bind it and its successors and assigns, if any.



Exhibit E

California Production Interconnection
and Operating Agreement (“CPIOA”)
Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

CALIFORNIA PRODUCTION
INTERCONNECTION AND OPERATING AGREEMENT

No.

between

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

and

PRODUCER



California Production Interconnection and Operating Agreement
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California Production Interconnection and Operating Agreement

This Agreement, (hereafter "Agreement”) dated

is between
“Producer” and PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY (PG&E), individually and
collectively also referred to as “Party” or “Parties™

PURPOSE:

1. Producer owns or otherwise cohtrols, or may hereafter own or otherwise control,
natural gas (“Gas”) produced from the Well(s) specified in Appendix A, located in
County; and

2. PG&E is willing to connect Producer's Gas Delivery Facilities to accept
Producer's Gas into PG&E’s Gas Plant for transportation to PG&E’s customers
(“Customers™); however, this Agreement is not intended to be an agreement for
transportation services, and it does not entitle Producer to deliver or obligate PG&E
to receive Producer’s Gas for transportation. PG&E provides transportation services
pursuant to applicable rules, schedules, tariffs, and agreements.

3. This Agreement establishes the terms and conditions for the installation,
operation, and maintenance of certain facilities (which may include taps, tie-ins,
measurement facilities, valves, associated piping, and other such equipment as may
be required from time to time) to connect Producer's Gas Delivery Facilities to and
accept Gas into PG&E's Gas Plant; and

4. This Agreement also establishes the terms and conditions for the delivery of Gas
into PG&E’s Gas Plant (including gas quality, pressure, and measurement) and

other conditions intended to govern the contractual relationship of the Parties.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants set forth herein, the Parties
agree as follows:

cpioa703.doc 3



California Production Interconnection and Operating Agreement

Definitions: The following terms when used in this Agreement shall mean:

“Article” - A numbered Article of this Agreement. An Article includes all the numbered

sections of this Agreement that begins with the same number as that Article.

“British_Thermal Unit” or “Btu” - The amount of energy required to raise the
temperature of one pound of water one degree Fahrenheit. Of the several precise
definitions of a Btu, this agreement shall use the gas industry accepted International
Table Btu (BtujT) which is equal td 1,055.05585262 joules (exact) or rounded to

1,055.056 joules for most applications. (A joule is approximately equal to one watt-
second.)

“CPUC” - The California Public Utilities Commission or any successor regulatory body.
“Cubic Foot” - (Also a Standard Cubic Foot of Gas) The volume of Gas which occupies
one cubic foot when the Gas is at the standard reference conditions of sixty degrees
Fahrenheit and fourteen and seventy-three hundredths (14.73) pounds per square inch
absolute. V '

“Delivery Facilities” - Producer’s facilities at which Gas is transferred from Producer to
PG&E's Gas Plant.

“Facilities™ - General term which includes ail Measurément Facilities, Odorization
Facilities, and Gas Sampling Facilities used to receive Producer's Gas into PG&E's Gas
Plant. '

“EERC” - The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or any successor regulatory
body. '

“Gas” - Natural gas produced from gas wells or casing head gas produced in
association with crude ail.

“Gas Plant” - The gas pipeline system, and all related facilities which are owned and
operated by PG&E within the state of California.

“Sampling Facilities” - Equipment used to monitor the quality of Producer's Gas.
“Heating Value” - The amount of heat, measured in Btu per standard cubic feet,
produced by the complete combustion of a dry Cubic Foot of Gas. The Heating Value
shall be the gross or higher Heating Value which is obtained when all of the products of
combustion are cooled to 60 degrees Fahrenheit.

“Master Meter” - The Meter which measures volumes of Gas consolidated from two or
more Meters.

cpioa703.doc 4



California Production Interconnection and Operating Agreement

“Measurement Faclilities” - Equipment associated with the measurement of Gas,
which may include but is not limited to the block valves, back-flow check valve, relief
valves, straightening vanes, orifice tube, orifice plate, orifice fitting, flow meter, solar
panel, and associated fittings, tubing and piping.

“Meter” - A measurement device used to determine the quantity of Gas that flows from
Producer's Well(s) into the PG&E Gas Plant.

“Odorization Facilities” - Equipment used to inject odorant into PG&E's Gas Plant.
“Producer” - Person or persons ’(|e§al or natural) owning a Working Interest in, or
otherwise controlling a Well and having the right to deliver or sell Gas from such Well. If
more than one Producer are signatories to this Agreement, the term “Producer” shall
mean the Producers signatories to this Agreement jointly and severally.

“Physical Operator” - May be designated under the terms of this agreement as
Producer’s duly authorized representative for the purposes stated in Paragraph 3.2
hereof. .

“PSIG” - Pounds per Square Inch Gauge gas pressure, measured with reference to the
local atmospheric pressure. '

“Recelpt Point” - The interconnection point between Producer's Gas Delivery Facilities
and PG&E's Gas Plant, where Gas is measured by PG&E for delivery into PG&E's Gas
Plant. ' ’

“Section” - A numbered section of this Agreement included within the Article that
begins with the same number as that section.

“Specifications” - PG&E's General Specifications for Producer Installation of
Measurement Facilities and Related Equipment for Gas Gathering Interconnections,
Appendix C to this Agreement, as required, and/or other specifications provided by
PG&E for the installation of Facilities by Producer.

“Volunteered Line” - Pipelines, valves, and other attached appurtenances owned by
PG&E, as listed on Appendix E, which are located between the Measurement Facility
and Producer’s Gas Well(s).

“Well(s)” - Well(s) listed on Appendix A, attached hereto and made a part of this
Agreement.

“Working Interest” - Percentage of ownership of production from a Well(s) under a gas

lease.

cpioa703.doc 5



California Production Interconnection and Operating Adgreement

Article 1

1. Warranty of Title: Producer hereby warrants that Producer has the right to
nominate and deliver all Gas to be delivered to PG&E at the Receipt Point(s) and that
such right is free and clear of all liens and adverse claims. of any kind. Producer will
hold harmless, indemnify and defend PG&E against all claims, suits, actions, debts,
accounts, damages, liabilities, costs (including reasonable attorneys fees), losses, and
expenses, for or arising from or out of any: (1) adverse claims of any and all persons to
the Gas; (2) royalties, overriding royalties, or other payments with respect to the Gas;
and (3) taxes, licenses, fees or charges, relating to the Gas or its delivery or sale, which
are or may be applicable. '

Article 2
2. Well Connection and Facilities

2.1. Existing Facilities: If fhere are existing Facilities for receipt of Producer's Gas into
PG&E'’s Gas Plant and PG&E has determined that they are adequate for receipt of Gas
for transportation purposes, then these Facilites may, in PG&E’s sole discretion, be
used for such purposes. Existing Facilities will not be used for the measurement of Gas
that does not meet the quality requirements as provided in Section 4.1 of this
Agreement. If Producer and PG&E determine or PG&E determines that additional
Facilities, modifications or upgrades are required, then the conditions set forth in
Sections 2.2, 2.3 and 2.5 below shall apply.

2.2. New Facilities: If new Facilities are required to connect a new Well or Wells, the
following conditions shall apply:

2.2.1. Request for Tie-In Connection Location: Producer shall request PG&E to

identify a specific tie-in connection location. At the time such request is made,
Producer shall: (1) pay to PG&E a non-refundable application fee in the amount
specified in Appendix F, as amended from time to time; (2) identify the exact well-
site location; and (3) provide proof of mineral rights and the assignment of
applicable easements, rights of way, and other necessary land rights to PG&E.
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222 Connection Location(s): PG&E shall identify the tie-in connection
location(s) with compatible Gas quality and available capacity for the receipt of
Producer’s Gas, after PG&E has: (1) received all items described in Section 2.2.1
above; (2) performed or withessed a back pressure test; and (3) collected or
received Gas sample(s). The back pressure test and collection or receipt of gas
samples shall take place within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the items
described in Section 2.2.1 above.

PG&E may refuse to accept Producer's Gas if the Gas quality is not compatible,
PG&E does not have available system "capacity, or in PG&E's reasonable
judgment the delivery of Producer's Gas may have other adverse effects on
PG&E's operations, Gas Plant or Facilities, or on the operations or property of
Customers or other producers. |

2.23. PG&E Installs Measurement Facilities, Odorization Facilities and/or Gas

Sampling Facilities: If Producer requests PG&E to install Facilities at the Receipt
Point and PG&E in its sole discretion agrees to install such Facilities at Producer's
expense, the following conditions shall apply:

(@) Upon identification of the tie-in connection location(s), PG&E shall inform -
Producer of the cost to install the Facilities contemplated hereunder. Such costs
may include, but not be limited to, engineering, PG&E's land survey and land
rights acquisition, and/or equipment costs. - Identification of the tie-in connection
location(s) shall not obligate PG&E to maintain capacity available on its Gas Plant
for Producer's Gas.

(b) Producer shall pay PG&E for PG&E's actual costs to provide and install
Facilities pursuant to this Agreement, including all direct and overhead costs as
allocated to such Facilities by PG&E. PG&E shall provide PG&E's estimate of
these costs to Producer and Producer shall pay this estimated amount to PG&E
prior to construction. After completion of the Facilities, PG&E will provide a
statement to Producer showing the difference, if any, between such estimated
costs and the actual costs. If the actual costs exceed the estimated costs paid by
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Producer, Producer shall submit payment to PG&E within thirty (30) calendar days
of the date of PG&E's invoice. If the actual costs are less than the estimated costs
paid by Producer, PG&E will refund the difference to Producer within the same
time period.

All payments shall be made referencing account number UZB

on Producer's check, to the following address:

Mailing Address:
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
C/O Payment Processing
Mail Code B5C
Box 770000
San Francisco, CA 94177

Street Address:
PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
C/O Payment Processing
Mail Code B5C
77 Beale Street
San Francisco, CA 94105

(c) After PG&E and Producer have reached agreement on the specific tie-in
location(s) as stated in Section 2.2.3.(a) above, Producer may not change the
location without PG&E’s written concurrence. Producer shall pay to PG&E any
additional costs associated with a change in location.

2.2.4. Producer Instalis Measurement Facilities, Odorization Facilities and/or Gas
Sampling Facilities: If Producer elects to install Facilities, the following shall apply:

(a) Producer may furnish and/or install Facilities in accordance with specifications,
plans, standards and procedures provided by PG&E and subject to PG&E’s
inspection for compliance with PG&E’s specifications, plans, standards and
procedures. Producer shall use qualified licensed contractors for such work.
Producer shall ensure that the Facilities meet all of the applicable requirements of
all governmental authorities having jurisdiction.
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(b) Prior to construction, Producer shall pay PG&E for PG&E’s estimated cost of
labor, material and overhead to provide engineering review, identification of the
required tie-in connection location(s), Facilites, and inspections and tap
installation. After PG&E has performed these activities, Producer shall pay to
PG&E the difference, if any, between the estimated cost and the actual cost of
these activities and any other actual costs to PG&E associated therewith. PG&E
shall provide a statement to Producer, and Producer shall pay PG&E for such
actual costs as provided in Section 2.2.3(b).

(c) After Producer has completed the installation of the Facilities, Producer shall
request in writing that PG&E connect the Facilities to PG&E's Gas Plant. At the
time of this connection request, Producer shall provide: (1) an assignment to
PG&E of all applicable easements, rights of way, and other necessary land rights;
(2) engineering specifications; (3) an "as-built" drawing with survey location of the
Facilities and pipeline(s); and (4) Producer's warranty that the Facilities were
constructed in conformance with- CPUC General Order No. 112-E, or any
successor regulations, and the Specifications.

2.2.5. Contributions in Aid of Construction:

(a) If PG&E determines that an amount with respect to Producer's Contributions in
Aid of Construction (CIAC) is includable in PG&E’s gross income, PG&E will
calculate the CIAC gross up amount based on the methodology approved by the
CPUC from time to time for that purpose; and Producer agrees to pay this CIAC
gross up amount to PG&E, within thirty (30) days from PG&E’s demand for
payment, plus interest; the interest will be computed at the “CPUC Rate” from the
due date (without extensions) of the federal tax return for the taxable year in which
such amount is includable until the date Producer pays to PG&E the total amount
described herein; the “CPUC Rate” is interest at the average three-month
commercial paper rate as published in the Federal Reserve Bulletin, or such other
rate as the CPUC may establish from time to time to replace the rate in paragraph
18 of its conclusions of law in Decision 87-09-026.
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(b) The CIAC gross up amounts, if demanded, shall be paid in addition to
Producer’s reimbursements to PG&E, or Producer's expenditures, for the costs of
facilities and their installation as provided in this Agreement.

(c) The payment of the CIAC gross up amount shall be made by Producer,

pursuant to Section 2.2.5(a), when PG&E reasonably determines that an amount

with respect to Producer's contribution is includable in PG&E’s gross income

based upon IRS ruling, regulation, court decision (including tax court), or other

pertinent tax authority, or when an IRS revenue agent issues a notice of proposed
- adjustment or other notice indicating that such an amount is so includable.

2.2.6. Facility Inspection and Connection:

(a) PG&E will make reasonable efforts to inspect the Facilities during construction

- and as soon as practicable after consfruction. However, due to possible
emergency situations or manpower constraints, PG&E’s inspection within thirty
(30) days after Producer’s notice of completion shall constitute compliance with the
provisions of this Section 2.2.6(a).

(b) PG&E will connect Facilities to PG&E’s Gas Plant after PG&E has inspected
the Facilities and has verified that the Facilities meet PG&E’s applicable standards
and the Specifications.

(c) All connections to and from the PG&E system shall be performed solely by
PG&E or PG&E'’s contractor. For tap installations, Producer shall pay PG&E's
actual cost of materials, equipment and labor (which labor charge shali include
wages, benefits, and payroll taxes).

2.2.7. Failure to Request Connection: If Producer fails to request connection to
PG&E's Gas Plant of the Facilities installed by Producer within one-hundred and
twenty (120) days following the date of PG&E's identification of a specific tie-in
connection location (pursuant to Section 2.2.2 above), then Producer shall request
the following before requesting connection of the Facilities to PG&E's Gas Plant:
(1) verification and a written statement from PG&E that capacity remains available
at the identified tie-in connection location for the receipt of Producer’s Gas; and (2)
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that Producer's gas is still compatible with PG&E’s gas plant. If, at the time
Producer requests such verification, capacity is no longer available at that tie-in
connection location and Producer still desires to connect the Facilities to PG&E's
Gas Plant, then Producer shall request a new tie-in connection location pursuant
to Section 2.2.1 above.

2.2.8. Failure to Connect: If Producer's Well is not connected to PG&E's Gas
Plant within six () months from the date of Producers request for a tie-in
connection location, then PG&E shall render to Producer an itemized invoice for all
unpaid costs of the work undertaken to idenﬁfy a specific tie-in connection location
in excess of the non-refundable application fee paid to PG&E pursuant to Section
2.2.1 hereof. If such failure to connect is not caused by PG&E, Producer agrees
to reimburse PG&E for the actual cost of such work.

2.2.9. Payments: All amounts invoiced by PG&E, pursuant to this Article 2, shall
be due and paid within thirty (30) calendar days following the date of PG&E's
invoice, except as otherwise stated herein.

2.3. Qwnership of Facilities: PG&E shall have sole ownership, custody and control of
all Facilities, regardless of which Party installed the Facilities. Upon completion of
construction, instaltation, inspection, and PG&E's finding that the Facilities conform to
PG&E's specifications, title to the Facilities shall immediately transfer into the name of
PG&E, whether or not the Parties have executed any documentation formalizing such
transfer.

PG&E may at any time while this agreement is in effect transfer ownership of
Facilities to Producer. In that event, Producer agrees to accept the ownership of such
Facilites and the obligation to maintain and operate such Facilities at Producer's
expense. PG&E shall have the right, at any time to access Facilities to do any of the
following: (1) inspect Facilities to verify the proper maintenance and operation thereof to
the extent PG&E deems it necessary; and (2) test and calibrate the Measurement
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Facilities to verify the accuracy of instruments as provided in Article 5. If Producer does
not grant access to the Facilities as provided herein, PG&E shall have the right to refuse
to accept Producers Gas until such access is granted in accordance with this
Agreement. '

2.4. No Dedication of Facilities: Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a
dedication by either PG&E or Producer of its respective facilities to the other Party.

2.5. Repairs, Upgrades, Medifications and Replacements: If PG&E determines that

Faciliﬁes, or the gas gathering pipeline(s) used to transport Producer's Gas to PG&E’s
transmission system, are in need of repairs, upgrades, modifications or replacements,
PG&E shall notify Producer accordingly. If Producer requests PG&E to make the
necessary repairs, upgrades, modifications or replacements, and PG&E agrees to do
so, Producer shall pay PG&E for all (or a prorated portion if more than one Producer is
served by the pipeline(s) and/or Facilities) of PG&E's actual costs of such work in
accordance with the same provisions as applicable to Facilities under Section 2.2.3(b)
above. If Producer fails to request that PG&E make the repairs, upgrades,
modifications or replacements at Producer’s expense, or if not all producers served by
the pipeline(s) and/or Facilities request PG&E to perform such work at their expense,
PG&E shall have the right to refuse to accept Producer's Gas. However, if Producer
wishes to build its own pipeline, Producer may enter into a new CPIOA for a new
connection and delivery of Gas at an appropriate Receipt Point.

If Producer takes ownership of Facilites, PG&E will not perform repairs,
upgrades, modifications or replacements of such transferred Facilities.

2.6. Specific Equipment:

2.6.1. Pressure Regulations: Producer shall install (upstream of the
Measurement Facilities), test, and maintain in good working condition the
necessary pressure regulation equipment to protect PG&E's Gas Plant from
exposure to pressures in excess of the specified maximum pressure. Such
Facilities and the installation and maintenance thereof shall conform with CPUC
General Order No. 112-E, or any successor regulations.
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2.6.2. Qdorization and/or Gas Sampling: If under the laws, rules or regulations of
any local government or regulatory body having jurisdiction, or in PG&E's sole
judgment as a public utility, it is required that all or any of Producer's Gas be
odorized or that Producer's gas be monitored for quality, then Sections 2.2, 2.3,
24, and 2.5 above shall apply as they relate to such Odorization Facilities.
Producer agrees to obtain a grant of easement at a suitable location and to grant
PG&E a non-exclusive license to exercise the rights conveyed to Producer under
said grant of easement for the purpose of installing, operating and maintaining
said Odorization Facilities or Gas Sampling Facilities.

Future Well Additions

2.,7.1. New Well Connection and Well Recompletions: PG&E may or may not
accept Gas from a reworked, recompleted, or new well, at the same
interconnection point and/or through the meters identified in Appendix A. PG&E

will determine the tie-in location, and may refuse to accept such Gas, based upon
the same criteria as set forth in Section 2.2.2.

2.7.2. Acceptance of New Gas: If PG&E refuses to accept new Gas at the
existing Receipt Point, the Producer may request a new tie-in connection location

for the Additional Well(s) by executing a separate CPIOA.

Certain Costs Payable By Producer: Charges payable by Producer pursuant to

Sections 2.2.1, 2.2.3, 2.2.4, 2.2.6, 2.2.8, 2.5, 3.5.3 and 5.3 shall be based on the costs
stated in Appendix F, which is subject to Section 7.7. Appendix F will be amended from
time to time when PG&E reviews and recalculates its actual costs to keep the charges

current.
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Article 3
3. Operations and Maintenance

3.1. Appointment of Producer's Nominations Agent: As a condition of interconnection

of Producer’s Gas Delivery Facllities with PG&E's Gas Plant, under this Agreement,
Producer shall appoint one authorized representative as Producer's sole agent with
exclusive authority to place nominations for Producer on PG&E's system, for
transportation of Producer's Gas to be delivered at the Receipt Point(s). That agent
shall also be referred to as “Producer’s Nominations Agent”; and the appointment shall
be made pursuant to Appendix B “Appointment of Producer's Nominations Agent.” The
executed Appointment of Producer's Nominations' Agent shall be returned to PG&E,
addressed as follows:

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
Gas System Operations Department
Scheduling and Accounting Director

Mail Code B16A '

P. O. Box 770000

San Francisco, CA 94177

Producer may change its Producer’s Nominations Agent, by providing a new
Appointment of Producer's Nominations Agent to PG&E pursuant to PG&E'’s applicable - -
procedures. If Producer and PG&E enter into a separate agreement regarding
nominations, balancing and other issues relating to the transportation of the Gas
delivered under this Agreement, with respect to the Well(s), it shall govern with respect
to the procedures for the appointment and/or change of Producer’'s Nominations Agent.

Producer acknowledges and agrees that Producer’s failure to appoint an agent
with exclusive authority to make nominations for Producer may cause Producer, PG&E,
or third parties to incur damages or liabilities; therefore, Producer agrees that if
Producer fails to comply with this Section 3.1, Producer will hold PG&E harmiess and
will indemnify PG&E from and against any and all damages and liabilities that may be
incurred by PG&E, Producer or third parties as a result of or in connection with the
nominations of Producer’s Gas made by anyone.
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3.2. Appointment of Physical Operator: Producer may appoint an authorized
representative to serve as Physical Operator for the Well(s). Except as set forth in
Section 3.1 above, the Physical Operator shall be duly authorized to act for Producer as
follows: to give and receive notices and requests, make and witness tests, deliver
quantities of Gas hereunder; and do and receive all things as provided herein regarding
the physical operation of the Well(s). Producer shall notify PG&E in writing of the
appointment and change of the Physical Operator. Producer expressly agrees that
PG&E may rely on any and all acts and notices of the Physical Operator to the same
extent as if they were performed or provided by Producer.

Producer hereby appoints as Physical Operator:

Physical Operator's Address

Telephone: _ ' Telephone:
Telecopier: Attention:

3.3. Maintenance of Facilities: Maintenance of Facilities owned or controlled by PG&E
will, in PG&E’s sole discretion, be provided by PG&E at PG&E's expense, subject to
Section 2.3 above. Producer acknowledges that PG&E intends to submit to the CPUC
for approval an operating and maintenance fee (O&M Fee) to be charged to Producer,
based on PG&E's actual costs to operate and maintain facilities, pipelines and
equipment, for the receipt of Gas, as determined from time to time by PG&E pursuant to
Appendix D. Such O&M Fee may include, without limitation, meter reading, gas
sampling and analysis, gas odorization, equipment maintenance and calibration, direct
and indirect expenses, and administrative and general office allocated costs. Producer
agrees to start paying the O&M Fee when it is approved by the CPUC.
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3.3.1. Atfter the approval of the O&M Fee by the CPUC, PG&E will mail to Producer
a statement (on or before the 15th day of each month), setting forth the applicable
O&M Fee for the previous month. Producer shall pay the O&M Fee to PG&E on or
before the twenty-fifth (25th) calendar day of the month or the tenth (10th) calendar
day following receipt of PG&E’s statement, whichever is later. Any late payments by
Producer to PG&E shall accrue interest at the rate prescribed for pipeline refunds as
provided in Section 154.67(c)(2) of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s
Regulations under the Natural Gas Act (or any successor thereto).

34. Rights and Obligations

3.4.1. Operations: PG&E shall retain the full and exclusive right to operate its Gas
Plant in a manner which, in PG&E's sole judgment, is consistent with safe and
proper operating conditions, obligations of PG&E to others, laws, and regulations of
governmental authorities having jurisdiction, without incurring any liability to
Producer.

3.4.2. Tampering: Producer shall not alter, or in any manner disturb, manipulate,
or tamper with any Facilities owned or controlled by PG&E.

3.4.3. Gas Pressures: Producer shall deliver Gas at the Receipt Point(s) at the
Gas well pressure required by PG&E, which may be up to, but not to exceed the
maximum allowable operating pressure (MAOP) in PG&E's Gas Plant downstream
of the Receipt Point. PG&E shall have the right to upgrade the MAOP of PG&E’s
Gas Plant, and in such event Producer shall increase the pressure of its Gas if and
to the extent required by PG&E, upon ninety (90) days’ written notice to Producer.

3.4.4. Refusal of Gas: PG&E shall have the right, without incurring any liability to
Producer, to refuse acceptance of Gas at the Receipt Point(s) when:

(@) Producer is operating Gas Delivery Facilities in a manner which in PG&E’'s
reasonable judgment has or may have an adverse effect on PG&E's operations, Gas
Plant or Facilities, or on PG&E’s customer’s operations or property; or
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(b) Producer’s handling or failure to properly collect or dispose of liquids of
Producer's Gas Well(s) affects PG&E's operations, Gas Plant, or real property
(leased or owned) or any other property of PG&E; or

(c) It is necessary or desirable to test, maintain, modify, enlarge, or repair any
facility or property that is part of PG&E's Gas Plant, or related to its operation.

PG&E shall give reasonable notice to Producer prior to the date on which shut-in of
Well(s) is required, except for emergency repair which may require an immediate
shut-in. '

In addition to the rights stated above in this Section 3.4.4., PG&E shall have the
right to retire and/or remove all or any portion of PG&E's Facilities at the Receipt
Point and to terminate this Agreement effective upon notice to Producer if:

(i) Producer has not delivered Gas, which meets the specifications set forth
in this Agreement, through the Measurement Facilities at an average quantity of at
least 50 Mcf per day for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days; PG&E may extend
the shut-in- date if the Producer provides to PG&E in writing reasons acceptable to
PG&E as to why production should not be shut-in; or

(if) - Producer has not remedied, within thirty (30) days of PG&E'’s notice of
refusal to accept the Gas, the conditions stated in Paragraphs (a) and/or (b) above,
as applicable.

3.5. Volunteered Lines: This Section 3.5 shall apply only if Producer has been
delivering Gas through a Volunteered Line. If Producer has been delivering Gas
through PG&E's pipeline, specified in Appendix E, PG&E shall have the right to
terminate this Agreement for cause at any time with thirty (30) days notice, unless a
mutually acceptable arrangement for the delivery of Producer’s Gas into PG&E’s system
has been made prior to such termination.
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3.5.1. Control & Possession of Gas: Producer shall be deemed to be in control and
possession of Gas produced into the Volunteered Line(s) from the gas well to the
upstream fitting where Gas is delivered to PG&E. PG&E shall be deemed in control
and possession of the Gas at the downstream fitting of Producer's Gas Delivery
Facilities.

3.5.2. Operation of Lines: Notwithstanding the above, if PG&E in its sole discretion -
desires to operate the Volunteered Line(s) or any portion thereof at a higher
pressure, or to have the direction of flow changed, Producer shall shut-in the Well(s)
connected thereto during any such work on the Volunteered Line(s), upon thirty (30)
days prior written notice to Producer.

3.5.3. Repair and Replacement: If PG&E determines that the Volunteered Line(s)
require repair or replacement, PG&E shall provide Producer with a written
description of such work and a statement detailing the costs to perform that work,
including materials, direct, indirect, and overhead costs. If Producer desires PG&E
to proceed with such work, Producer shall, within fifteen (15) business days from the

: daté of PG&E's notice, pay PG&E the amount set forth therein. If Producer does not
pay PG&E within fifteen (15) business days of PG&E's notice, PG&E shall have the
right to refuse to accept Producer’s Gas and to remove or retire all or any portion of
the Volunteered Line(s). - | o |

3.6. Volume Report: PG&E shall provide Producer, once a month, a report containing
the volume of Gas received by PG&E at the Receipt Point(s) for each day of the
previous calendar month. If a future separate agreement between Producer and PG&E
regarding nominations, balancing, and other issues relating to transportation of the Gas
delivered under this Agreement, contains a provision that addresses the subject matter
of this Section 3.6, the provisioh of such other agreement shall supersede this
Section 3.6.
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Article 4
4. Gas Quality

4.1. Gas Quality Requirements: Producer represents, warrants and guarantees that
the Gas delivered to PG&E for transportation under this Agreement shall mest the
following requirements:

41.1. Rule 21: Gas shall be merchantable pipeline quality Gas and shall conform
to the quality specifications as prescribed in Rule 21(C) of PG&E's CPUC approved
Tariff Schedule (Rule 21), as amended from time to time; and

4.1.2. Unnatural Substances: Gas shall not contain any substances that are not
naturally contained in natural gas, excepting only those substances which PG&E
specifies as additives for operating or Gas compatibility reasons; and

4,1.3. Heating Value: - Gas shall have a Heating Value within the Operation BTU
level required by PG&E for its pipeline system at the Receipt Point. PG&E may
refuse to accept all or any portion of Gas of which the Btu content has significantly
changed since the back pressure test and gas sample collections referred to herein.

4.1.4. | Indemnity: If the Gaé delivered to PG&E under this Agreement fails to meet
the requirements of this Article, Producer shall indemnify and hold PG&E harmless
against and from all losses, costs, damages, claims, suits, and liabilities arising out
of or in connection with such failure.

4.2. Gas Quality Testing: Tests to determine the quality of the Gas delivered to PG&E
may be performed by PG&E at any time. If Gas delivered by Producer fails to fully
conform to the Gas quality specifications as stated herein, then PG&E may refuse to
accept the Gas upon notice to Producer of any such failure. Producer shall revise any
outstanding nominations for the affected Receipt Points to reflect no deliveries.
Producer shall not resume deliveries of Gas untii PG&E is satisfied that the problems
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have been corrected and that the Gas conforms to the applicable quality specifications.
PG&E's acceptance of Gas that does not conform to the specifications stated herein
shall not constitute a waiver of the Gas quality specifications stated in this Agreement or
any remedies of PG&E or obligations of Producer with respect to such a nonconformity.

4.3. Refusal of Gas: PG&E shall have the right, without incurring any liability to
Producer, to refuse acceptance of Gas at the Receipt Point(s) when the Gas does not
meet the temperature, delivery pressure, or quality specifications described in this
Agreement. '

Article 5

5. Measurement and Tests

5.1. Measurement and Computation: The volume of Gas delivered under this
Agreement shall be measured by orifice meter(s), and computations made, as
prescribed in the American National Siandards JInstitute/American Petroleum Institute
2530 (ANSI/API 2530), also published as A.G.A. Report No. 3 as revised from time to
time. '

5.2. Custody, Maintenance and Records: Except as otherwise set forth in Section 2.3,
during the term of this Agreement, all Measurement Facilities shall be in the sole
custody and control of PG&E. The reading, calibration, and adjustment of Measurement
Facilities and changing of charts, if reqdired, shall be performed by PG&E or its agent at
intervals determined by PG&E. The records from Measurement Equipment shall remain
the property of PG&E, but Producer shall have access toﬂ PG&E's Meters relating to this

Agreement and shall be allowed to inspect all charts or other records of measurement
pertaining to the Gas delivered into PG&E's Gas Plant under this Agreement, at any
reasonable time, for the purpose of verifying their accuracy. PG&E shall preserve, for a
period of at least three (3) years, all test data, charts, and/or other records of Gas
measurements. Transfer of Gas custody shall occur at the meter.
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5.3. Meter Accuracy Verification: Producer may request at any time, but not exceeding
two (2) times in any calendar year, that the accuracy of PG&E's Measurement
Equipment be verified by testing. Producer may witness requested tests. Producer may
not alter or in any manner disturb, manipulate, or tamper with any equipment or
Facilities owned or controlled by PG&E. Within a reasonable time of such a request,
PG&E will give at least two (2) working days prior notice to Producer of the time and
date of the test. If upon such requested verification the measurement equipment is
determined to be registering correctly, as specified in PG&E’s Tariff Rule 17, or in any
amendment thereto, the cost of such requested verification shall be charged to and paid
by Producer, and no recalculation of quantities delivered shall be made.

If an inaccuracy of greater than specified in Rule 17 is discovered, PG&E will
bear the cost of such test, and volume adjustments will be made pursuant to Section 5.5
of this Agreement.

5.4. Manufacturer’s Specifications: Flow measurement and volume computations will
be made by PG&E within the accuracy prescribed by the manufacturer of the
measurement and computing- equipment,

5.4.1. Gas Temperature: Flowing gas temperature shall be continuously measured
or recorded. If a temperature chart recorder is used, the arithmetical average
temperature recorded during each day shall be used for volume computations.

5.4.2. Sampling: Relative density (G), carbon dioxide (CO»), nitrogen (No) and

Heating Value, shall be determined, from time to time as deemed to be required by
PG&E, from samples taken by PG&E at the Measurement Facilities. Determination
of Heating Value and relative density by compositional analysis shall comply with the
methods specified in the American Society for Testing and Materials ASTM D 3588,
as revised from time to time. The physical properties of the constituent gases used
to calculate Heating Value and relative density shall be taken from the Gas
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Processors Association GPA 2145, as revised from time to time. Chromatography,
calorimeters, densitometers, or other means acceptable in the industry may be used
to determine Heating Value or relative density of the Gas.

5.4.3. Atmospheric Pressure: The average atmospheric (barometric) pressure
shall be assumed to be 14.73 psia at sea level. Corrections for higher elevations
shall be determined by PG&E by using an industry acceptable equation or by taking
actual measurements at the point of measurement.

5.4.4. Gas Compressibility: Gas Compressibility shall be calculated at the flowing
pressure and temperature under which Gas is metered in accordance with the
recommendations contained in A.G.A. Report No. 8, “Compressibility Factors of
Natural Gas and Other Related Hydrocarbon Gasses’, as amended from time to
time. If a chart recorder is used, the average flowing pressure and temperature for
the day may be used to calculate an average compressibility for that day.

5.45. Other Tests: Tests for other quality parameters of the Gas delivered
hereunder shall be made from time to time by PG&E using approved standard
methods acceptable in the industry.

546. Service Fees: The Part_i-es may executé~~a Service Fee Agreement if
operational services, that are different from or in addition to the normal service
provided by PG&E, are requested by Producer and provided by PG&E in PG&E’s
sole discretion.

5.5. Inaccuracies: If an inaccuracy is discovered at any time, or if a Meter is out of
service, the following action will be taken for volume correction or determination:

5.5.1. Incorrect Constant: When the inaccuracy is a result of using an incorrect
constant value in the volume calculation, the quantity of metered gas shall be
recalculated. If the duration of the error cannot be determined, the adjustment shall
be made based on one-half of the time since the last Meter and instrument
inspection, or three months, whichever is the shorter period of time. Examples of
using incorrect constant values include, but are not limited to, basing calculations on
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the incorrect orifice plate size, orifice tube size, differential pressure range, or static
pressure range.

5.5.2 Incorrect Calibration: When the inaccuracy is a result of errors in the
calibration or operation of flow computers, transducers, recorders, or measurement
devices for relative density or Heating Value, that result in an error greater than that
specified in PG&E’s Tariff Rule 17, as revised from time to time (at a reading
corresponding to the average rate of flow for the period since the preceding test) the
quantity of Gas shall be recalculated. Recalculations, due to differential pressure
calibration errors, shall be limited to inaccuracies greater than that specified in Tariff
Rule 17, of the transducers' or recorders' full scale reading. If the percentage of
error is not ascertainable by calibration, test, or mathematical calculation, the
correction shall be made by PG&E by estimating the quantity or quality of Gas
delivered based upon deliveries under similar conditions during a period when the
equipment was deemed to be registering accurately. Where the duration of the
inaccuracy in measurement is not known or agreed upon, the period of inaccuracy
shall be deemed to be one-half of the time elapsed since the date of the last test or
three (3) months, whichever is the shorter period of time. Basis for calculation
specified in this section may be modified by a PG&E Rule or applicable standard.

5.5.3 Pulsation Induced Errors: When the inaccuracy is caused by compressor

induced pulsations and the measurement error is greater than one percent (1%), the
quantity of metered gas shall be recalculated based on the percent error determined
by a Square Root Error Indicator developed by the Southern Gas Association’s
Pipeline Compressor Research Commitiee. If the duration of the error cannot be
determined, the adjustment shall be made based on one-half of the time since the
last pulsation check, or three months, whichever is the shorter period of time.
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Article 6

6. Compression: In the event that Producer owns, or at some future time instalis
compressor plants upstream of the Measurements Facilities, in order to deliver gas to
PG&E's Gas Plant, the following shall apply:

6.1. Operation: Producer shall install and operate its compressor so that its operation
will not adversely affect PG&E’s Gas, Gas Plant, or customers, or impair the accuracy of
the measurement of the Gas at the Meter. Producer shall eliminate compressor induced
pulsation or vibration before Gas is passed through PG&E's Meter. PG&E shall not be
required to take Gas if compressor induced pulsation and/or vibration exists.

Article 7

7. General Conditions

7.1. Termm: This Agreement shall be effective from the date of execution by PG&E and
shall, subject to the termination rights contained herein, continue in full force and effect
for a period of one (1) year from that date (the “Initial One Year Period”) and thereafter
until it is terminated as provided in this Agreement.

7.2. Termination:

(a) Termination for Convenience: Either Party may terminate this Agreement after
the Initial One Year Period upon thirty (30) days written notice.

(b) Termination for Cause: Either Party may terminate this Agreement during or
after the Initial One Year Period, immediately upon notice: (i) if the other Party is in
breach of this Agreement; or (i) if the portion of PG&E'’s gathering system to which
Producer’s Delivery Facilities are connected is sold by PG&E; or (i) if the CPUC or
the FERC at any time asserts (1) that Producer is a public utility or subject to
regulation by such a reguiatory body, or (2) that such a regulatory body may prevent
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PG&E from complying with this Agreement; or (iv) if any state or federal legislation,
decision or rule of any governmental authority, enacted or issued after the effective
date of this Agreement, affects either Party or this Agreement in a manner that is
unacceptable to either Party.

(c) Additional Termination Rights: PG&E may also, during or after the Initial One

Year Period, terminate this Agreement as provided in this Section 7.2(c) or in other
Articles of this Agreement.

Producer acknowledges that PG&E is a public utility regulated by the CPUC, that
PG&E's Gas transportation services are exempt from the jurisdiction of the FERC
pursuant to Section 1(c) of the Natural Gas Act (15 U.S.C. § 717(c)) commonly
referred to as the “Hinshaw Amendment,” and that PG&E has received a “blanket
certificate” from the FERC pursuant to 18 CFR §284.224. Producer agrees that if at
any time the CPUC, the FERC, a court, or PG&E, determines that PG&E’s status as
aforestated is or may be affected in any respect as a result of this Agreement or the
transportation of Gas delivered into PG&E’s Gas Plant pursuant to this Agreement,
PG&E may, in its sole discretion, refuse to perform such transportation services
and/or refuse to accept Producer's Gas under this Agreement, and/or terminate this
Agreement upon ten (10) days written notice.

If Producer breaches a term or condition of this Agreement, or fails to comply
with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, orders, ordinances, and codes, including
any existing or future applicable tariffs or schedules, and Producer does not
immediately correct such breach or failure, then in addition to all remedies provided
by law or by this Agreement, PG&E shall have the right, without notice, to: (1)
refuse to accept Producer's Gas into PG&E's Gas Plant and suspend its
performance under this Agreement until the breach or failure has been corrected
and PG&E has been fully compensated for all damages and costs incurred, and/or
(2) terminate this Agreement, prior to or following such a suspension.

(d) Certain Rights and Obligations: Termination of this-Agreement shall not release
either Party from its obligation to make payments or compensate the other Party for
damages or costs, if any are due or have been incurred.
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Upon termination of this Agreement, PG&E shall have the right to disconnect
from PG&E's Gas Plant the Facilities used to receive Producer's gas.

7.3. Sunvival: The following Sections shall survive the termination of this Agreement:
414,72,74,75, 76, 7.7, 7.9, 710, 7.11, and 7.18. All other provisions of this
Agreement, which by their nature or content are intended to survive termination of this
Agreement, shall also survive.

7.4. WARRANTY DISCLAIMER: ALL INSTALLATION, CONNECTION,
MAINTENANCE AND OTHER SERVICES PERFORMED BY PG&E AND MATERIAL,
EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO MEASUREMENT
EQUIPMENT AND VOLUNTEERED LINES PROVIDED BY PG&E OR MADE
AVAILABLE BY PG&E FOR USE, IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, ARE
PROVIDED “AS IS,” WITHOUT ANY WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR
STATUTORY. ALL WARRANTIES ARE HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED BY
PG&E INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NO
WARRANTIES SHALL APPLY TO ANY SERVICES, MATERIAL, EQUIPMENT OR
FACILITIES PROVIDED BY PG&E OR MADE AVAILABLE BY PG&E UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT.

7.5. Exclusive Remedy: In lieu of all Warranties_express, implied, or statutory, PG&E's
sole obligation and total liability, and Producer's sole and exclusive remedy, relating to
or arising out of the installation or connection of equipment or Facilities or the furnishing
of equipment, material, or Facilities or of any services by PG&E, shall be limited, at
PG&E's option, to (1) reperformance of the installation or connection work or other
services at PG&E’s expense up to a cost equal to the amount paid by Producer for such
installation or connection work, or other services, excluding any amounts paid for
equipment, material or Facilities or other costs, or (2) a refund by PG&E to Producer of
an amount equal to the amount paid to PG&E by Producer for said installation or
connection work or other services, excluding any other costs, or (3) a refund of the
amount paid by Producer to PG&E for equipment, material or Facilities, as applicable.

Except as specifically stated above in this Paragraph 7.5, PG&E shall have no obligation
or liability and shall be released from any and all liability for losses, costs or damages of
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any kind with respect to or arising out of installation or connection work, or other
services, equipment, material or Facilities installed, connected, or in any way provided
by PG&E or made available by PG&E pursuant to this Agreement, whether arising in
contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability, warranty, or otherwise.

7.6. CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES: IN NO EVENT, SHALL EITHER PRODUCER OR
PG&E BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
AGREEMENT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION LOST PROFITS OR REVENUES,
WHETHER ARISING IN CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT
LIABILITY, WARRANTY, OR OTHERWISE, AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH
DAMAGES ARE FORESEEABLE.

7.7. Governmental Authority: This Agreement shall at all times be subject to all
applicable present énd future rules, tariffs and: schedules of PG&E, and to all valid
legislation with respect to the subject matter hereof, either state or federal, and to all
valid present and future decisions, rules, regulations, orders and ordinances of all duly
constituted governmental authorities having jurisdiction; this Agreement shall at all times
be subject to any and all amendments to such rules, tariffs, and schedules of PG&E,
legislation, and decisions, rules, regulations, orders and/or ordinances of governmental
authorities.

If at any time the CPUC or any branch thereof issues a finding or opinion, formal
or informal, that this Agreement is inconsistent with CPUC rules, regulations, decisions,
or policy, then this Agreement shall be amended to eliminate any inconsistency. This
Agreement shail at all times be subject to such changes or modifications by the CPUC
as it may from time to time direct in the exercise of its jurisdiction.

PG&E will file for CPUC approval of all or part of this Agreement, and this
Agreement shall be subject to such approval.
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7.8. Compliance with Laws: Producer shall comply with all applicable federal, state
and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and codes and shall obtain all applicable
licenses and permits for the conduct of its business and the performance of this
Agreement.

7.9. Environmental Indemnification: Producer shall indemnify, defend, and hold PG&E
harmless against and from all claims, suits, liabilities, damages, costs (including
attorney’s fees), expenses, fines ‘ and penalties, and all applicable judicial,
administrative, and regulatory decrees, directives, judgments, and orders resulting from,
or arising out of or in connection with any environmental contamination or any violation
of environmental or other laws, regulations, rules, ordinances, codes, orders, directives
and similar items of all appropriate governmental authorities relating to Producer’s
Property used by PG&E for the installation and operation of Facilities pursuant to this
Agreement, to the extent that such claims, suits, liabilities, damages, costs, expenses,
fines or penalties arise out of or result from or in connection with: (1) causes or events
occurring prior to PG&E's use of the Property, or (2) acts or omissions of Producer, its
parent, agents, employees, contractors or sudcessors. oceurring at any time. For
purposes of this paragraph, “Property” shall mean any property, real or personal, in or to
which Producer owns or hold any rights including easements, licenses, rights-of-way or
any other contractual or real property rights.

7.10. Arbitration

7.10.1. Disputes: Any disputes arising out of or related to the interpretation or
performance of the provisions of this Agreement, which cannot be settled by the
Parties within a reasonable time, may be 'submitted by either Party to binding
arbitration.

7.10.2. Appointment of Panel: All disputes to be arbitrated shall be submitted to

and decided by a panel of three arbitrators: one to be appointed by Producer, one
by PG&E, and the third one to be chosen by the two arbitrators appointed by the
Parties. If either Party shall fail or refuse to appoint an arbitrator within thirty (30)
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days, after written notice has been given to it by the other party naming the latter's
arbitrator, the Party giving such notice shall have the right to request the Presiding
Judge of the Superior Court of the State of California in and for the City and County
of San Francisco to appoint an arbitrator for the other party so in default.

If the two arbitrators thus chosen shall be unable to agree upon a third arbitrator
within thirty (30) days, such arbitrapr shall be appointed, upon application of either
party, by the Presiding Judge of the Superior Court of the State of California in and
for the City and County of San Francisco. Except as otherwise specifically provided
in this Section 7.10, any arbitration shall be subject to the provisions of Title 9 of Part
3 of the Code of Civil Procedure of the State of California.

7.10.3. Venue for Arbitration and Costs: Venue for érbitration hereunder shall be
the City and County of San Francisco unless another location is unanimously
selected by the arbitrators. The cost of the arbitrator appointed by Producer shail be
paid for by Producer; the cost of the arbitrator appointed by PG&E shall be paid for
by PG&E; and the cost of the third arbitrator and any attendant costs shall be bome
equally by Producer and PG&E. Each Party shall bear its own attorney’s fees and
other expenses in connection with such arbitration.

7.10.4. Binding Decision: The decision of a majority of the arbitrators, after a
hearing at which the Parties shall have an opportunity to be heard and to introduce
evidence, shall be binding upon the Parties hereto and judgment thereon may be
entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.

7.10.5. Jurisdiction, Choice of Litigation Location: Any suit or action brought
between the Parties relating to this Agreement shall be litigated only in a California
State Court of competent jurisdiction or, if jurisdiction over the action cannot be
obtained in a California State Court, in a Federal Court of competent jurisdiction
situated in the State of California.
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7.11. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted in
accordance with the laws of the State of California, excluding any choice of law rules
which may direct the application of the laws of another jurisdiction.

7.12. Easements and Rights of Way: Producer shall grant and assign to PG&E,
insofar as Producer has the right to do so, and without any charge to PG&E, all
necessary easements and rights-of-\n(ay for the installation, operation, maintenance,
replacement, and/or removal of pipelines and Facilities necessary or convenient to the
receipt and the measurement of Gas covered by this Agreement.

7.13. Force Majeure: Neither PG&E nor Producer shall be considered in default in the
performance of its obligations under this Agreement, except obligations to make
payments hereunder, to the extent that the performance of any such obligation is
prevented or delayed by any cause, existing or future, which is beyond the reasonable
control of the affected Party. Causes beyond the reasonable control of a Party shall
include, but not be limited to, acts of God, a public enemy, or a governmental authority,
strikes, lockouts, riots, rebellions, injunctions, breakage of or accident to wells,
machinery, equipment, or lines of pipe, washouts, earthquakes, floods, storms, exireme
weather conditions, freezing of lines, or ény cause or causes of whatsoever nature
(whether like or unlike those herein enumerated) beyond the reasonable control of either
Party. in the event either Party claims that performance of its obligations was prevented
or delayed by any cause beyond its reasonable control, that Party shall promptly notify
the other Party of the circumstances preventing or delaying performance. Such Party so
claiming a cause-déiayed performance shall endeavor, to the extent reasonable, to
remove the obstacles which preclude performance.

7.14. Waivers: No waiver, expreséed or implied, by either Party, of any default by the
other Party in the performance of its obligations hereunder shall be deemed or
construed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent default whether of like or different
nature. A failure of either Party to declare the other Party in default, regardless of how
long such failure continues, shall not constitute a waiver by such Party of any of its
rights hereunder.
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7.15. Amendments and Modifications: Except as otherwise specifically set forth in this

Agreement, this Agreement may be amended or modified only by an instrument in
writing executed by all Parties hereto.

7.16. Enforceability: In the event that one or more of the provisions contained in this
Agreement, shall for any reason be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, in any respect, this
shall not affect any other provision cont_ained in this Agreement.

7.17. Ambiguities: Any ambiguities or uncertainties in the wording of this Agreement
shall not be construed for or against any Party, but shall be construed in a manner
which most accurately reflects the intent of the Parties at the time of its execution.

7.18. Headings: The headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and shall
not vary the meaning of the text.

7.19. Notices: Except as otherwise provided herein, any notice, request, demand, or

statement (“Notice”) regarding this Agreement, including notices of Arbitration, shall be
in writing and deemed given when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid,
directed to the address of the Parties as follows:

Producer Address

Telephone:  ( )

Aftention:
Telecopier:  ( )
Pacific Gas and Electric Company
77 Beale Street, B16A :
P.O. Box 770000
Telephone: (415) 973-5128 San Francisco, CA 94177
Telecopier: (415) 972-6002 Tel: (415) 973-5128
Atin.: Atin: Transportation Services
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Notices may also be given by facsimile or other electronic transmittal, provided
that such facsimile or electronically conveyed Notice is confirmed in writing and
delivered as aforesaid within three (3) days of the facsimile or other electronic Notice.
Routine communications may be exclusively communicated by facsimile or other
electronic means. v

Either Party may from time to time change its address for Notices upon a thirty
(30) day prior Notice, given pursuant to this Article 7.19.

7.20. Assignments: The rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder shall bind and
benefit the Parties’ successors and assigns; provided, however, that neither Party may
assign its rights or delegate its obligations hereunder, without first obtaining the written
consent of the other Party, except for an assignment of the entire interest in this
agreement of the assigning Party (an assignment of all rights coupled with a delegation
of all of the obligations of such Party under this Agreement) to a corporate parent or
affiliate of the assigning Party or to an entity succeeding to all or substantially all of the
business, properties or assets of the assigning Party related to or directly used in the
performance of this Agreement. An assignment pursuant to the aforestated exception
shall become effective on the date of notice thereof to the other Party. For purposes of
this Paragraph 7.20, “affiliate” shall mean any corporation, partnership, or other legal
entity, which controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Party making
the assignment, and fifty percent (50%) or more of the equity shall constitute “control.”
Assignment of thiSJ 'Agreement shall not release Producer from any of its obligations
under this Agreement, unless such release is agreed to in writing by PG&E and by the
assignee.

7.21. Appendices: All of the following appendices and exhibits attached hereto are
incorporated herein by reference:
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7.22. Separate Agreement: Producer acknowledges and agrees that terms and
conditions governing nominations of Producer's Gas for transportation, balancing of Gas
accounts, and other provisions relating to the transportation of Producer's Gas on
PG&E’s system, shall be governed by a separate California Production Balancing
Agreement (CPBA); therefore, Producer agrees to appoint an Authorized Agent, as
defined in the CPBA, and to execute a standard “Appointment of Authorized Agent
(Attachment 1 to the CPBA) for that purpose, as soon as CPUC approval of the CPBA
becomes effective . '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the duly authorized
representatives of the Parties hereto.

Pacific Gas and Electric Company Producer
By: ' By:
Name: | Name:
Title: - Title:
Date: » Date:
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California Production Balancing Agreement
Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement
Dated

Contract No.
Date

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
CALIFORNIA PRODUCTION BALANCING AGREEMENT

This California Production Balancing Agreement (CPBA) is made by and between Pacific Gas
& Electric Company (PG&E), a California corporation, and
hereafter ~ referred to as  Authorized Agent (AA), a(n)

PG&E and the AA are each also referred to

“herein as “Party” and together as “Parties”.

PURPOSE

This CPBA establishes the terms and conditions for the resolution of imbalances on PG&E’s
gas transportation system (the PG&E System) caused by volumes of gas, delivered into the
PG&E System from California production wells, which volumes exceed or are insufficient to
match the nominations made for the deliveries into the PG&E System.

The AA requests that PG&E recognize (1) the AA’s authority to represent and act on behalf of
the parties (party) who own(s) or control(s) gas produced from certain California production
wells (Producer(s)) and who deliver that gas into the PG&E System, for transportation, at the
point(s) of interconnection where gas is measured before delivery into the PG&E System
(Receipt Point(s)), which is (are) specified in Attachment 2 “Receipt Point(s)” (Attachment 2);
and (2) that the AA has been duly appointed to act as agent for the Producer(s) pursuant to
Attachment 1 “Appointment of Authorized Agent” (Attachment 1).

This CPBA is not intended to be an agreement for transportation services. PG&E provides
transportation services pursuant to applicable rules, schedules, tariffs, and agreements.

This CPBA does not apply to gas volumes delivered at the Receipt Point(s) specified in
Attachment 2 for procurement by PG&E under a traditional procurement contract executed
prior to December, 1989, and such deliveries shall not be included in the Cumulative
Imbalance calculation applicable to gas nominated by the AA under this CPBA.

AGREEMENT
The Parties intending to be legally bound agree as follows:

REPRESENTATIONS v

By entering into this CPBA, the AA accepts the obligations of the AA hereunder. The AA
represents that (1) the AA is the exclusive agent for one or more Producer(s), who are
supplying gas to the Receipt Point(s) listed in Attachment 2 of this CPBA, for the purpose of
nominating volumes of that gas for transport by PG&E under PG&E's standard nomination
procedures; balancing those nominations against actual deliveries at the Receipt Point(s);
allocating, prorating and handling administrative matters concerning Receipt Point(s); giving
and receiving payments, notices and requests; and taking such action and exercising such
powers as agent on behalf of the Producer(s) as set forth in Attachment 1; and (2) the AA is
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duly authorized and has all necessary legal rights and powers to enter into this CPBA and to
perform all of the obligations of the AA set forth herein, to grant to PG&E the rights set forth
herein, and to bind the Producer(s) to all obligations, acts and omissions of the AA under this
CPBA; and (3) the AA will comply with all of the obligations set forth in this CPBA,
notwithstanding any agency relationship between the AA and the Producer(s) or other third

party.

WARRANTIES

The AA represents and warrants that (1) it has the right and is duly authorized to nominate all
gas delivered to PG&E at the Receipt Point(s); (2) it has or can transfer good title to such gas,
and all such gas is delivered free from all liens, encumbrances and adverse claims of any kind;
(3) it will comply with all federal, state and local reporting requirements and other applicable
laws or regulations; and (4) PG&E may conclusively rely upon any and all nommatlons made
and information provided by the AA hereunder as correct.

TARIFFS

The Parties agree to abide by the applicable sections of PG&E’s tariffs as they may change
from time to time, as well as the terms and conditions stated in this CPBA and its Attachments.
Such tariffs include but are not limited to the Operational Flow Order (OFO) and Emergency
Flow Order (EFO) provisions of gas Rule 14.

TERM OF AGREEMENT
This CPBA will become effective as of the effective service date of
and will remain in effect until terminated by the AA or PG&E pursuant to this CPBA.

ATTACHMENTS ‘

Attachments, as listed below, are hereby made a part of this CPBA and specify terms and
conditions under which PG&E will recognize the authority of the AA and the Receipt Point(s)
for which the AA is responsible.

(1) Appointment of Authorized Agent (Attachment 1). Appoints the exclusive agent of the
Producer(s) for all purposes stated in this CPBA including, without limitation, all applicable
nominating, balancing, paying, allocating, prorating, and other administrative matters with
respect to the gas to be delivered at the Receipt Point(s) specified in Attachment 2 of this
CPBA.

(2) Receipt Point(s) (Attachment 2). Lists the Receipt Point(s), and their maximum daily
production cap(s), for which the AA will be responsible.

(3) Communications and Operations Contact (Attachment 3). Specifies the notice requirements
applicable to this CPBA.

NOMINATIONS AND SCHEDULED DELIVERIES

The AA shall place nominations with PG&E for transportation of gas from each Receipt Point
consistent with PG&E's nomination procedures. PG&E shall process nominations in
accordance with PG&E’s normal scheduling procedures and communicate the resulting
confirmed nominations to the AA pursuant to Attachment 3.

tJ
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The AA shall verify with the well operator that the confirmed nomination quantity of gas shall
be delivered to each Receipt Point each day for which the gas is nominated. If the delivered
quantity is estimated to be less than the confirmed nomination, the AA shall provide PG&E
with an estimate of the delivered quantity. This estimated quantity, which may not exceed the
volume of gas already confirmed by PG&E, shall become the volume of gas scheduled for
delivery and shall be communicated by PG&E to the AA, by facsimile or other electronic
means, on the day the gas is transported.

PG&E, in its sole discretion, may review the maximum daily production cap volume(s) for the
Receipt Point(s) specified on Attachment 2, and may reduce such volume(s) to better match
actual delivered volume(s) into the PG&E System. PG&E may also revise a maximum daily
production cap upward, if the AA provides PG&E with recent well test documentation for
increased production to be delivered to a Receipt Point.

REFUSAL OF GAS
PG&E, in its sole judgment, shall have the right, without incurring any liability to the AA or to

the Producer(s), to refuse acceptance of gas at the Receipt Point(s) when:

(a) the AA fails to comply with a provision of this CPBA, becomes insolvent or subject to a
bankruptcy proceeding, or fails to establish creditworthiness if requested by PG&E; or

(b) any agreement required by PG&E in connection with the transportation of gas on
PG&E’s System has not been executed, has been terminated, or has expired; or

(c) PG&E deems it necessary or desirable to curtail acceptance of the gas in order to
operate, preserve, or protect the integrity and safety of PG&E’s gas system including,
without limitation, gas quality, gas supply, and/or gas system facilities. PG&E shall use
reasonable efforts to give the AA advance notice of any such curtailment.

ADDING POINTS OF RECEIPT TO THE CPBA ,
The AA shall notify PG&E in writing of any Receipt Point(s) to be added to or deleted from

Attachment 2. Changes will take effect on the first day of the month following PG&E's receipt
of a written notification from the AA of an addition or deletion of a Receipt Point if received
by PG&E no later than ten (10) business days prior to the first day of the month in which the
change is to take effect. The AA shall not nominate or deliver gas to an added Receipt Point
until PG&E notifies the AA that the Receipt Point is included in Attachment 2 by written
amendment.

CALCULATING IMBALANCES

At the end of each month, PG&E shall calculate the difference between the actual delivery and
the scheduled delivery at each Receipt Point listed on Attachment 2. The total net difference
for all Receipt Points, plus any uncleared prior imbalance allowed under the provisions of this
CPBA, shall be the “Cumulative Imbalance”, which shall be maintained in a “Cumulative
Imbalance Account” until cleared under the provisions of this CPBA.

Actual deliveries greater than the scheduled deliveries for all Receipt Point(s) shall be a positive
Cumulative Imbalance. Actual deliveries less than the scheduled deliveries for all Receipt
Point(s) shall be a negative Cumulative Imbalance. PG&E shall issue a “Cumulative Imbalance
Statement” no later than the 15th day of the first month subsequent to the month in which the
Cumulative Imbalance occurred.
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TOLERANCE BAND
The Tolerance Band is equal to plus or minus 150 decatherms of the Cumulative Imbalance for
the month in which the imbalance occurred.

CLEARING IMBALANCES
A Cumulative Imbalance may be cleared by nominating to or from the AA’s Cumulative
Imbalance Account or by trading the Cumulative Imbalance.

1. Cm. ulative Imbalance Account Nominations: Following issuance of the Cumulative
Imbalance Statement, the AA may clear a negative Cumulative Imbalance by nominating,

consistent with PG&E’s nominating procedures, In-Kind (an equivalent amount of gas from
the Receipt Point(s) listed on Attachment 2) to the Cumulative Imbalance Account; or the
AA may clear a positive Cumulative Imbalance by nominating from the Cumulative
Imbalance Account to a Delivery Point, on or before the closmg date for trading
imbalances as described below.

2. Trading Imbalances: Following issuance of the Cumulative Imbalance Statement, the AA
may trade its Cumulative Imbalance with another AA under a CPBA that has a Cumulative
Imbalance from the same calendar month. Any imbalance trade shall move the trading
party’s Cumulative Imbalance toward zero or result in an imbalance that is within the
Tolerance Band. The AA may trade all or a portion of its Cumulative Imbalance by
executing an imbalance trade on or before the last business day of the first month
subsequent to the month in which the Cumulative Imbalance occurred. Executing an
imbalance trade consists of both parties to the trade completing a California_Production
Cumulative Imbalance Trading Form (No. 79-946) or electronic equivalent, and submitting
the form to PG&E.

REMAINING IMBALANCES

After the imbalance trading deadline, a remaining Cumulative Imbalance within the Tolerance
Band will be carried forward to the following month’s Cumulative Imbalance. A remaining
Cumulative Imbalance greater than the Tolerance Band will be automatically cashed out in its
entirety, resulting in a zero imbalance.

CASHOUT

The Commodity cashout prices for each month are established for the following four (4)
imbalance categories: Over-deliveries and under-deliveries in the imbalance range of greater
than zero (0) percent and less than or equal to ten (10) percent of actual deliveries (Tier 1
Cashout), plus over-deliveries and under-deliveries in the imbalance range of greater than ten
(10) percent of actual deliveries (Tier II Cashout).

Each cashout price is based on a two step calculation: First a cashout index is determined
based on an average of the published price date from Natural Gas Intelligence (NGI) and the
BTU Daily Gas Wire for the PG&E interconnect points of Malin (Line 400) and Topock
(Southern California Border). Second. that index is adjusted to arrive at the cashout price for
that imbalance category.

Imbalances greater than zero (0) percent and less than or equal to ten (10) percent of actual

deliveries (Tier 1 Cashout):
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D Over-deliveries
a) The Weighted Over Delivery (WOD) Index equals the lower of the Bid Week
monthly index price or the average of the five (5) lowest average published
daily prices, weighted by the supply mix of all gas received at Malin ind
Topock for on-system End-Use Customers during the month in which the
imbalance occurred. :

b) The cashout price equals mnety five (95) percent of the WOD Index.

2) Under-dehvenes ‘1
a) The Weighted Under Delivery (WUD) Index equals the higher of the Bid Week
monthly index price or the average of the five highest average published daily
prices, weighted by the supply mix of all gas received at Malin and Topock for
on-system End-Use Customers during the month in which the imbalance
occurred.

b) The cashout price equals one hundred five (105) percent of the WUD Index.

Imbalances Greater than 10% of Actual Deliveries (Tier II Cashout):

1) Over-deliveries:
a) The Over Delivery (OD) Index equals the lowest average published daily price
at either Malin or Topock.

b) The cashout price equals fifty (50) percent of the OD Index.

2) Under-deliveries:
a) The Under Delivery (UD) Index is defined as the hxghes average publlshed
daily price at either Malin or Topock. -

b) The cashout price equals one hundred fifty (150) percent of the UD Index.

If no published daily price is reported on a given day, the prior published daily price from that
index service will continue to apply for that day. If an index service is no longer available,
PG&E reserves the right to choose another nationally »reéognized index to replace it.

PAYMENTS

The AA shall pay PG&E for all charges associated with balancing service on behalf of the
Producer(s) supplying gas to any Receipt Point. Details for payment are provided in PG&E's
tariffs. All payments shall be made by wire transfer or check to the address for "Payments" set
forth in Attachment 3.

DISPUTED CASHOUT STATEMENTS

In the event of a dispute as to the amount of a cashout. OFO or EFO Nencompliance Charge
under this CPBA, payment shall nonetheless be made in a timely manner as specified in
PG&E’s tariffs. Such payment shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any rights to recoup any
amounts in dispute, if a written statement setting forth the nature of the dispute is sent along
with payment to the PG&E Statements address in Attachment 3. Any rights to recoup such
amounts may be treated as waived if said written statement is not sent within 6 months of the
Form No. 79-944
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date of the cashout, OFO or EFO Noncompliance Charge statement. If the cashout statement is
determined to be incorrect after PG&E is notified hereunder, PG&E will issue a corrected
statement. Neither PG&E nor the AA shall be obligated to pay interest on a corrected cashout
statement.

ADJUSTMENTS

If an error is discovered in a Cumulative Imbalance Statement, cashout statement, or OFO or
EFO Noncompliance Charge statement, then an appropriate correction shall be made by
PG&E. Claims for errors by either Party shall be made promptly to the other Party, but in no
event more than 6 months after the month in which the statement was issued. Notwithstanding
the provisions of this paragraph, any adjustment resulting from the orders, rules, or regulations
issued by any governmental agency having jurisdiction shall be made promptly by the
appropriate Party, regardless of the 6-month time limitation stated in this paragraph.

Each Party shall have the right, during normal business hours, to receive copies of the records
of the other Party, to the extent necessary to verify the accuracy of any statement, charge
- computation, payment, refund, or demand, made under this CPBA.

CREDITWORTHINESS

If the AA fails to pay two (2) cashout amounts by the due date for payment within a twelve (12)
month period, PG&E shall have the right to require the AA to establish creditworthiness
pursuant to PG&E’s tariff.

SUCCESSION _ :

The AA acknowledges and agrees that the Producer(s) may appoint a successor AA from time
to time, by mailing to PG&E an "Appointment of Authorized Agent" executed by the majority
of Producer(s) pursuant to Attachment 1 to this CPBA. The effective date of such a succession
of an AA shall be the first day of the month following the date on which PG&E confirms in
writing its receipt of the new Appointment of Authorized Agent (Attachment 1). A succession
of the AA, or an assignment or termination of this CPBA by either Party, shall not release the
AA from any of its obligations or liabilities for costs, payments, and damages, due or incurred
prior to the effective date.of the succession, assignment or termination, or resulting from acts
or omissions of the AA which occurred prior to that date. Payment of amounts that the
previous AA owes PG&E as of such effective date shall be made no later than fifteen (15) days
thereafter.

ASSIGNMENT
The respective rights or obligations under this CPBA shall not be assigned or delegated by

either Party without the written consent of the other Party; provided, however, that only a
notice is required if an assignment of PG&E’s rights is made concurrently with a delegation of
PG&E’s obligations hereunder to a parent or affiliate of PG&E, or to an entity acquiring the
business properties or the portion of PG&E's gathering system where the Receipt Point(s)
specified in Attachment 2 is/are located. Any successor to or assignee of the rights of a Party,
whether by voluntary transfer. judicial sale. foreclosure sale, or otherwise, shall be subject to
and bound by all terms and conditions of this CPBA to the same extent as though such
successor or assignee were an original Party. An assignment or delegation of rights or
abligations under this CPBA which is not in conformance with the provisions of this paragraph
shall be null and void.
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TERMINATION

Either Party may terminate this CPBA upon thirty (30) days written notice, or immediately
upon notice if: (1) the other Party is in breach of this CPBA; or (2) the CPUC or the FERC at
any time asserts regulation that may prevent PG&E from complying with this CPBA. Upon
termination of this CPBA, PG&E shall have the right to refuse nominations for deliveries of
gas into the PG&E System.

INDEMNIFICATION

The AA shall indemnify and hold PG&E harmless from and against 2l losses, costs, damages,
claims and liabilities, resulting from a breach of any of the representations or warranties set
forth in this CPBA, and from and against any payments received from or owed to PG&E by the
AA with respect to any gas nominated or delivered by the AA at the Receipt Point(s). The
provisions of this paragraph shall survive the termination of this CPBA by either Party or the
appointment of a successor AA, notwithstanding any other provision of this CPBA.

MISCELLANEOUS _
With the exception of Commission-approved tariff and rule changes, no subsequent waiver,
modification or amendment of this CPBA or of any of its provisions shall be of any effect
unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of each Party.

This CPBA does not change the obligations, restrictions or rights contained in other agreements
between the Parties unless expressly indicated in this CPBA.

The waiver by either Party of any breach of any term, covenant or condition contained in this
CPBA, or any default in the performance of any obligations under this CPBA, shall not be
deemed to be a waiver of any other breach or default of the same or any other term, covenant,
condition or obligation. Nor shall any waiver of any incident of breach or default constitute a
continuing waiver of the same.

Neither Party shall be liable for any special, puhitivé. consequential, incidental, or indirect
damages, whether arising in contract, tort, including negligence or otherwise, related to this
CPBA. :

This CPBA shall be interpreted under the laws of the State of California.

This CPBA and the obligations of the Parties are subject to all valid laws, orders, rules, and
regulations of the authorities having jurisdiction over this CPBA (or the successors of those
authorities).

PG&E shall have the right to terminate this CPBA immediately if the continued performance of
this CPBA or of related services could reasonably be determined to jeopardize continuance of
PG&E’s Hinshaw Exemptions pursuant to Section | (c) of the Natural Gas Act.
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Pacific Gas & Electric Company

Authorized Agent

Company

Signature

Print Name

Signature

Title

Print Name

Date.

Title

Attachments:

Date

Attachment 1: “Appointment of Authorized Agent”

Attachment 2: “Receipt Points”

Attachment 3: “Communications and Operations Contact”
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Contract No.

Date

ATTACHMENT 1
CALIFORNIA PRODUCTION BALANCING AGREEMENT

APPOINTMENT OF AUTHORIZED AGENT

PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT

The parties (party) who own(s) or control(s) gas produced from certain California production
wells (Producer(s)) and who delivers that gas into the PG&E system (the PG&E System) for
transport by PG&E, at the point(s) of interconnection where gas is measured before delivery
into the PG&E System (Receipt Point(s), wishes/wish to appoint an Authorized Agent (AA), of
the Producer(s), to enter into a California Production Balancing Agreement (CPBA) with
PG&E, and to act for and on behalf of the Producer(s) as its/their managing agent in matters
relating to the delivery of gas into the PG&E System at certain Receipt Point(s).

AGENCY AUTHORIZATION

Each Producer who executes this document on behalf of itself and of its successors and
assignees hereby appoint(s) and authorize(s) to act as its
exclusive agent, for all purposes stated in the CPBA with respect to the gas to be delivered at
the Receipt Point(s) specified in Attachment 2 of the CPBA. The powers and authority to act
for the Producer delegated to the AA hereunder shall include without limitation:

(a) execution and performance of the CPBA and all other agreements and documents as may
be necessary or desirable for purposes of or in connection with gas deliveries to the PG&E
System for transportation and the administration thereof, including nominating volumes of
gas under PG&E’s standard nomination procedures; and

(b) balancing, allocating and prorating the Producer's share of gas; and

(c) any other act or function required to perform the obligations of the AA or the Producer set
forth in the CPBA.

The aforestated appointment and delegation of authority shall be irrevocable except as stated in
the paragraph “APPOINTMENT OF SUCCESSOR AA” below.

REPRESENTATIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PRODUCER(S) TO PG&E

To the extent that obligations assumed by the AA pursuant to this document or the CPBA, or
any other agreements of or executed by the AA in connection with the CPBA, are part of an
existing contract between the Producer(s) and PG&E, the Producer(s) shall continue to be liable
to PG&E for the performance of such obligations, and nothing contained in this document or
the CPBA shall release the Producer(s) from its/their obligations under any contracts with
PG&E.

Notwithstanding any other provision contained in this document, the Producer(s) agrees/agree
that where an obligation, promise. responsibility. commitment. risk, liability, warranty, or
representation of the AA is stated in the CPBA. the term “AA” shall mean the AA and the
Producer(s) jointly.
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Each of the undersigned Producers represents to PG&E that it has read and understood all of
the provisions contained in the CPBA which is incorporated herein by this reference and agrees
to be bound thereby.

The Producer(s) specifically authorizes PG&E to rely on the AA for nominations and
allocations related to transport of gas by PG&E, and for all other purposes in connection with
the CPBA, and to conclusively rely upon any and all information provided by the AA under the
CPBA as correct. The Producer(s) will indemnify PG&E and hold it harmless, against all
claims, suits, actions, liabilities, debts, accounts, damages, costs, losses and expenses,

including attorney’s fees, arising from or ‘out of: PG&E’s reliance upon or use of nominations
or other information provided by the AA; any acts, omissions, performance or failure to
perform of the AA under the CPBA or other agreements; any failure to comply with any
federal, state or local reporting requirement or other laws or regulations; or the breach of any
warranty or representation stated in the CPBA or herein.

G&E’S RI TO REFUSE ACCEPTANCE OF GAS

The Producer(s) agree(s) that PG&E, in its sole judgment, shall have the right, without

incurring any liability to the Producer(s) to refuse acceptance of gas for transportation at the

Receipt Point(s) when:

(a) the AA fails to comply with a provision of the CPBA, becomes insolvent or subject to a
bankruptcy proceeding, or fails to establish creditworthiness if requested by PG&E; or

(b) any agreement required by PG&E in connection with the transportation of gas on PG&E’s
gas system has not been executed, has been terminated, or has expired; or

(c) PG&E deems it necessary or desirable to curtail acceptance of the gas in order to operate,
preserve, or protect the integrity and safety of PG&E’s gas system including buit not
limited to, gas quality, gas supply, and /or gas system facilities. PG&E shall use
reasonable efforts to give the AA advance notice of any curtailment.

In the event of any of the occurrences enumerated in items (a) through (c) above or in the event
that at any given time there is no AA appointed and accepted pursuant to the conditions hereof,
the Producer(s) shall, upon five (5) days’ notice by PG&E, disconnect the flow into PG&E'’s
gas system of all gas intended for transportation. " In the event of such a notice, all gas flow into
PG&E’s gas system (through the Receipt Point(s) following the five (5) day period shall be
deemed to be delivered to PG&E at the applicable Cash-Out price.

DAMAGES

The Producer who executes this document agrees on behalf of itself and of its successors and
assignees that PG&E shall not be liable to the Producer or to its successors or assignees for any
special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages arising out of or in connection with the
CPBA or this Appointment of Authorized Agent, whether based in contract, tort (including
negligence) or otherwise.

SUPERSEDING DOCUMENT

This document supersedes any previous appointment by the Producer(s) of an agent, for the
purposes set forth herein or in the CPBA, and shall not be modified except by a written notice
to PG&E, as described in the paragraph "APPOINTMENT OF SUCCESSOR AUTHORIZED
AGENT?” below, executed by the majority of the Producer(s) signatories to this Agreement.
This document shall be binding on all successors and assigns of the interest(s) of the
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Producer(s) in the gas wells(s) associated with the Receipt Point(s) listed in Attachment 2 of the
CPBA.

APPOINTMENT OF SUCCESSOR AUTHORIZED AGENT

The Producer(s) may appoint a successor AA from time to time, by mailing to PG&E an
Appointment of Authorized Agent (in the form of this document) executed by the majority of
the Producers which are signatories to this document. The Producer(s) agree to be bound by
any such majority appointment of a successor AA, regardless of whether each Producer
supports the change of AA. Each Producer signatory to this Agreement hereby appoints the -
other Producer signatories to this Agreement as the Producer’s agent with authority to appoint a
successor AA by majority vote to act on behalf of the Producers as set forth in this document
and in the CPBA. Each Producer agrees to be bound by such an appointment, if the majority
of the other Producer signatories to this Agreement appoint a successor AA pursuant to these
provisions. Such change (succession) shall not be effective until the newly appointed AA: (1)
signed the new Appointment of Authorized Agent, whereby the new AA assumes all of the
obligations of the AA set forth therein; and (2) has been approved by PG&E, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld. When all of the aforestated conditions have been met, the
new (successor) AA shall succeed to and become vested with all the rights and obligations of
the retiring AA.

ASSIGNMENT

The rights and obligations of a Producer under this Appointment of Authorized Agent may be
assigned and delegated concurrently to a successor to the rights of the Producer in the gas
delivered at the Receipt Point(s) set forth in Attachment 2 of the CPBA, provided that the
assignment and delegation shall not become effective until PG&E has received from the _
Producer’s successor a written acceptance of all of the obligations of the assignor Producer;
and provided further that such an assignment and delegation shall not release the assignor
Producer from its obligations under this Appointment of Authorized Agent, the CPBA, or any
other agreements to which the assignor Producer and PG&E are parties, to the extent that the
assignee Producer fails to perform such obligations. PG&E may assign its rights under this
document to a parent or affiliate of PG&E or an entity acquiring the portion of PG&E’s
gathering system where the Receipt Point(s) specified in Attachment 2 are located.

THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY
PG&E shall be a third party beneficiary of this Appointment of Authorized Agent.

AA’S AGREEMENT

By signing this document in the space titled “Acceptance by Authorized Agent the AA
accepts the terms and conditions hereof and agrees to act as the Producer(s) agent as set forth
herein.

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Appointment of Authorized Agent shall become effective following execution by the
Producer(s) and by the AA. and shall continue in effect for the term of the CPBA; provided
that PG&E has accepted the AA by executing a CPBA with the AA and accepting the
Appointment of Authorized Agent concurrently therewith.
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COUNTERPARTS

This document may be executed in counterparts, and if executed in that manner shall have the
same effect as if the Producer(s) and the AA had executed the same document. The AA and
each other party executing a counterpart to this document shall deliver an executed copy of that

counterpart to PG&E.

In Witness Whereof, The Producer(s) and the AA have executed this Appointment of
Authorized Agent, and each signatory to this document represents that the person executing it is

duly authorized to do so.

- Producer:

By:
Signature
Full Name
Tide
Date

Producer:

By:
Signature
Full Name
Title
Date

Accepted by Authorized Agent:
Company Name:

By:

Signature

Full Name

Title

Date

Producer:

By: -
Signature
Full Name
Title
Date

Producer:

By:

. Signature

Full Name
Title .
Date

Accepted by PG&E:

By:

Signature

Full Name

Title

Date
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Contract No.

Date
ATTACHMENT 2
CALIFORNIA PRODUCTION BALANCING AGREEMENT
RECEIPT POINTS
Receipt Point Maximum Daily
Meter No. ‘ ' Production Cap
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Contract No
Date

ATTACHMENT 3

CALIFORNIA PRODUCTION BALANCING AGREEMENT
COMMUNICATIONS AND OPERATIONS CONTACT

Attachment 3 designates the formal contact names, mailing addresses, telephone and telecopier numbers for
the Parties. Either Party may from time to time change or designate any other name or address for such
purposes by providing the other Party with a revised Attachment 3. The revised Attachment 3 shall be
effective upon receipt by the other Party. Any notice, request, demand, cashout, OFQ or EFO
Noncompliance Charge statement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given when
deposited in the United States, mail, postage prepaid, or transmitted and confirmed via telecopier. Routine
operations may be exclusively communicated by facsimile or other electronic means.

Gas Nominations
Business Name:
Mailing Address:

Attention:
Telephone Number:
Telecopy Number:

Notifications and Trades

Business Name:
Mailing Address:

Attention:
Telephone Number:
Telecopy Number:

Payments By Wire
Business Name:

Address:

- ABA Routing Number
Account Name
Account Number:

ments By Check

Business Name:
Mailing Address:

Attention:

To PG&E ToAA

Pacific Gas & Electric Company
P. O. Box 770000. Mail Code B16A
San Francisco. CA 94177

Gas Scheduling
(415) 973-2424 ( )
(415) 973-0649 : ( )

Pacific Gas & Electric Company

P. O. Box 770000. Mail Code B16A
San Francisco. CA 94177

Balancing Coordinator

(415) 972-5295 ( ) :
(415) 9730750 ( )
Wells Furgo Bank. N.A.

San Francisco, CA 93177
121000248
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.

Pacilic Gas & Eleetric Company

P. O. Box 770000, Mail Code B5A
San Fruncisco, CA 94177
Customer Billing Department

For maximum protection of PG&E's system in case of operational conditions and emergencies, the AA
shall notify PG&E's Gas System Operations in writing of its Physical Operator's name, telephone and
facsimile numbers. Notification of physical operation of the Receipt Point by a Physical Operator shall
not constitute a delegation of the AA’s obligations and shall not in any way limit, diminish, or otherwise
affect the AA's obligations under this Agreement. which the AA shall fully perform.

Business Name:
Mailing Address:

Attention:
Telephone Number:
Telecopy Number:

Physical Opevator
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Exhibit H
Form of Assignment of Easement
Pipeline Purchase and Sale Agreement

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND RETURN Tited

Location: City/Uninc

Recording Fee $

Document Transfer Tax $

O Computed on Full Value of Property Conveyed, or

O Computed on Full Value Less Liens & Encumbrances
Remaining at Time of Sale

Signature of declarant or agent determining tax

{SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY)

LD - - ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS

JCN 22-00-041
Name of line, main or G/W

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a California corporation, hereinafter
called PG&E, hereby assigns to (PURCHASER), hereinafter called second party, all of PG&E’s
right, title and interest in and under that certain right of way and easement for gas transmission
facilities, located within the County of , State of California, and
more particularly described as follows: : ,

(APN Number)
(Description of Deed Acquiring Rights)
This assignment shall not be deemed to be effective until (PURCHASER) has

secured the consent of all surface owners of the lands traversed by the easements and permits
assigned herein.

This deed is executed pursuant to authorization contained in the order of
California Public Utilities Commission in Decision No. 89-12-016 dated December 9, 1989,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed these presents this day
of ,200_.

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
By
Name
Title







Attachment 2






For Document Sce

1

Sec /15

E s ‘ 182-198

oEDED STATE OF CALIFORNIA

@ JOVES)
SOPSIST | gz RSN 990106~ 038

10S ANGELES
No._2953.1 PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE SERIES

For such consideration and _speci;’ic purposes 88 are hereinafter set
forth, and subject to such terms, conditions, reservations, restrictions and
time limitations as are hereinafter set forth:

THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, Party of the f;rst part, hereinafter called the
State, acting thmugh the State lands Commiesion and pursuant to the e.uthor-
ity contained in Division 6 of the Public Resources Code and the rules and
regulations adopted thereunder, does hereby. demiae and lease for & term of

Forty-nine (h9) years, beginning __ October 25, 1962
to Pacific Ges and Electric Company, & Californie corporation

0£-5he-COUREY-98-c-voumwoanron e 5-State- oL California,.and
hereinafter called the lLessee, & gas line easement of, in, aund

upon those certain tide and submerged lande situate in the County of
San Joaquin , State of California and more particularly des-

cribed as follows, to wit:

A STRIP OF TIDE AND SUBMERGED IAND ACRCSS THE BED OF THE SAN
JOAQUIN RIVER, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, OF THE UNIFORM WIDIH OF 10
FEET, LYING 5 FEET ON EACH SIDE OF THE FOLIOWING-DESCRIBED"
CENTERLINE :

EEGINNING AT TRIANGUIATION STATION "MURT 1933" (ZONE IIX,
LAMBERT COORDINATES X = 1,755,215.67, Y = 499,294.81); THENCE
NORTH 81° 48' EAST 5611.%4 FEET; THENCE NORTH 73° 34d' EAST 30
FEET TO A POINT ON THE MEAN HIGH TIDE LINE ON THE WEST BANK
OF THE SAN JOAQUIN RIVER, WHICH POINT IS THE TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING OF THE ABOVE DESCRIEED CENTERLINE; TEENCE CONTINUING
NORTH 73° 34! EAST 230 FEET TO A POINT ON THE MEAN HIGH TIDE
LING ON THE EAST BANK OF THE SAN JOAQUIN RIVER, AND CONTAINING
0.053 ACRE.

[T

2201 060389

~la
51.1

P.G. & E. CO.
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The parties of this agreement do hereby convenant and agree as follows:

1. That the term of this agreement shall commence upon the above

recited date of October 25, 1962 and shall continue there-

after (unless sooner terminated as hereinafter provided)until Octobver 2k, 2011

2. That the Lessee shall pay to the State as consideration for the
granting of this agreement, & rental sum which shall be payable in accord-
ence with the following schedule:

One Hundred Forty-seven and Forty-nine One Hundredths Dollars ($147.49) upon
execution of this agreement, being the total rental for the full term, pro-

vided, however, that in the event of termination of this agreement pursuant to
Paragraph 15 herein, no portion of this rental shall be refundable;

3. That the lessee will pay to the State the sald réntal considera-
tion reserved to the State, in accordance with the schedule contained herein,
to the State Lands Commission, Room 305 Californie State Building, 217 West
Pirst Street, Los Angeles 12, California; without deduction, default or delay;
and, in the event of failure of the Lessee 50 to do, or in the event of a
breach of any of the other covenants conteined within this agreement, or
failure to observe the terms, conditions, restrictions or time limitations
herein contained, to be kept, performed and observed, it shall bg lawful for
the State to re-enter into and upon the demised premises, and to remove all
persons and property therefrom, and to re-possess and enjoy the herein des-

cribed demised premises as in the first and former estate of the State, any-

thing to the contrary herein contained notwithstanding;

4, That the described land shall be used during the term hereof only

for lawful commercial purposes, namely for & gas pipeline and appurtenances

5. That construction of facilities to be installed on the described

land shell be started not later fthAn ecemecwmermonccwoeweo—mecnonenco- and

-
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completed not later than -meeeceeeoccmmcmmame oo oo H

6. That the Lessee shall not transfer nor assign this agreement and
shall not sublet said land nor any part thereof, except upon the prior
written consent of the State first had and obtained;

7. That the State expressly reserves the right to grant easement
or crossings, in, upon and under the demised premises, and nothing herein
contained shall be construed as limiting the powers of the State to lease,
convey, or otherwise transfer or encumber, during the life of this agree-
ment, the hereinbefore described State lands for any purpose whatsoever
not inconsistent or incompatible with the rights or privileges granted to
the Lessee by this agreement;

8. That the Lessee shall maintain and keep in good sound repair, all
structures, facilities or appurtenances upon the property and that no sub-
stantial alterations to existing structures or erection of new structures
or removal of any structure shall be undertaken without the prior written
permission of the State first had and obtained;

9+ That the Lessee shall be liable for and agrees to indemnify the
State against any loss, damage, claim, demand or action, caused by, arising
out of, or connecfed with the construction or maintenance of structures
upon, or the use by the Lessee and/or agents therebf, of the demisedbprem-
ises;

10. That the Lessee shall observe and comply with all rgles and regu-
lations now promulgated by any agency of the State of California having
Jurisdiction therein and such reasonable rules and regulations as nay
hereafter be promulgated by any agency of the State of California having
Jurisdiction therein; and the Lessee shall at all times take suitable
precautions to prevent pollution and contamination of waters of the
Sapn Joaquin River 3

11. That the State, through its authorized agents, shall have the

right at all reasonable times to g0 upon the demised premises for the pur-
pose of inspecting the same;

51.1







12, That there is reserved to the State all natural resources, btimber

and minerals, including oil or gas in or upon the described land and the
right to grant in, over and across said langd, leases, easements and/or
rights~of-way to extract or remove such natural resources, timber or
minerals as provided by law and the rules and regulations of the State
Lands Commission and without compensation to the Lesses;

13. That the Lessee shall file with tﬁe State and maintain in full
force and effect at all times during the term of this lease or any exten-
sion thereof, and the additional period of ninety (90) days referred to
in Paragraph 1k hereof, a good and sufficient surety bond drawn in favor

of the State of California in the penal SUM Of =ecemewsmoccraccaann cone

..................... » to guarantee to the State the faithful performance

and observance by the Lessee of all of the covenants and conditions implied
or specified in Paragraphs L to 17, inclusive, of this agreement, and which
specified or implied covenants and conditions are mandatory upon-and are to
be kept and performed by the Lessees

14. That the following specifically enumerated'and described struc-
tures, buildings, pipe lines, machinery and facilities placed or erected
by Lessee or existing and located upon said demised premises shall become
and remain the property of the State upon expiration or earlier termination

of this agreement; none

All other structures, buildings, pipe lines, machinery and facilities placea
or erected by Lessee or existing and located upon said demised premises shall
be salvaged and removed by Lessee, at Lessee!s sole expense and risk, within
ninety (90) days after the expiration of the period of this agreement or
prior to any sooner termination of this agreement; and Lessee in so doing
shall restore said demised premises as nearly as possible to the condition
existing prior to the erection or placing of the structures, buildings, pipe

lines, machinery and facilities so removed;

e
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15. That the lessee may terminate this agreement upon sixty (60) days'

notice of such termination to ihe Sfate; provided, however, that no such
termination shall become effective, and the lessee shall be fully liable for
rent and for the performance of all other obligations on the part of the
Lessee, until said Lessee hes fully complied with and has consummated each
and all of the provisions of Paragraphs 1k and 16 hereof;

16. That the Lessee will, on the last day of said term or sooner
termination of this agreement, peaceably and quietly leave, surrender and
yield up to the State, all and singular, the demised premises in good order,
conditien and repair, reasoneble use and weser thereof and damage by act of
God or the elements excepted; end execute and deliver to State a good and
sufficient quitcleaim deed to the rights arising hereunder. Should Iessee
feil or refuse to deliver to the State a quitclaim deed as aforesaid, a
written notice by the State reciting the failure or refusal of the Lessee
to execute and deliver said quitcleim deed as herein provided shall from the
date of recordation of said notice be conclusive evidence againsf ILessee and
all persons claiming under lessee of the termination of this agreement;

17. That all notices herein provided to be given shall be deemed to
have been fully given when mede in writing and deposited in the United

States mail, registered and postsge prepaid, addressed as follows:

To the State:
State Lands Commission
Room 305
Californie State Building
217 West First Street
Los Angeles 12, California
To the Lessee:
Pacific Gas and Electric Company

245 Market Street
San Francisco 6, California

The address to which the notices shall be mailed as aforesaid may be
changed by written notice as herein provided; but nothing herein contained
shall preclude the giving of any such notice by personal service;

-5-
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18. That time is the essence of each and all the terms and provisions of

this agreement, and the terms and provisions of this agreement shall extend to

and be binding upon and inure to the b.enefit of the heirs, executors, adminis-

trators, successors ard assigns of the respective varties hereto; if more than

one Lessee 1s named herein the obligations of said varties herein contained

shall be joint and several;
19. This agreement may be terminated or the provisions changed, altered

or amended by mutual consent of the parties; '
20. That the Lessee or the heirs and assigns of, or any successor in

interest thereto, shall have the right to renew this agreement for —eeweeceo.

ozmmme reriod ~of, memeana(ead

years - upon such reasonable terms and conditions as

the State, or any successor in interest thereto, might impose.

This agreement will become binding on the State oniy when duly executed
by the Executive officer of the State Lands Commission of the State of
California.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as

of the date hereafter affixed.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
LESSEFO\QRZ PERMITTEE:* STATE LANDS COMMISSION

§ 1962

nreea
[ SRR N

Its Secretary
(SEAL)

§o.
* In'executing this document the following is required:

Corporations.
1. Affixation of Corporate Seal,
2. [ If box is checked, & certified copy of the resolution
or other document authorizing the execution of this
agreement on behalf of the corporation.

Individuals.
Acknowledgrent of signature required.

/ 7 Acknowledgment. of signature not required,

-6- .
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FRANK G, TERRY and BARBARA TERRY, husband and wife,
and PAULINE M. TERRY, a. single woman,

hereinafter called first party, in consideration of value paid by PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
COMPANY, a California corporation, hereinafter called second party, the adequacy and receipt whereof
are hereby acknowledged, hereby grants to second party the right to excavate for, install, replace (of the
initial or any other size), maintain and use such pipe lines as second party shall from time to time elect
for conveying gas, with necessary and proper valves and other appliances and fittings, and devices for
controlling electrolysis for use in connection with said pipe lines, together with adequate protection
therefor, and also a right of way, within the hereinafter described strip of those certain lands which are

situate in the County of San Joaquin
California, and described as follows:

State of

Thet certain parcel of land, situate in Roberts Island, conveyed by
Pauline M. Terry and Freok G. Terry to Pauline M. Terry and Frank G.
Terry by deed dated December 26, 1961 and recorded in the office of the
County Recorder of said County of San "Joaquin in Book 2496 of Official
Records at page 59%. ,

¢ t
¢

The-aforesaid strip extends entirely across said lands and is particularly described as follows:

L. A strip of land of the uniform width of 30 feet extending entirely
across sald lsonds and -lying equally on each side of that certain line-
which begins at the intersection of the northerly boundary line of said
lands with the southeasterly boundary line of the strip of land of the
uniform width of 85 feet described in the deed from Antone F. Terra and
wife to Pacific Gas and Blectric Company dated May 12, 1930 and recorded
in the office of said County Recorder in Book 323 of Official Records at
page 195, and runs thence along the southeasterly boundery dine of sald
strip of land of the uniform width of 85 feet the following three bearings
and distances, namely: S. 41° O7L' W. 767.5 feet to & point herein for
couvenience celled Point "A"; thence continuing S. 41° O73' W. 18.5 feet
to & pomt herein for convenience called Point "B"; and thence continuing

S. 41° 073" W. 50-feet, more or less, to a-point in the southerly boundary
line of said lands.

Oy
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2. A strip of land oft the uniform width of 20 feet extending from the
portimesterly boundary line of the strip of land hereinbefore described
and designated- L northwesterly to the westerly boundary lipe of said
lands end lying equally on each side of thet certain ‘line which begins
&t & point in bhe. nort;hwesterly boundary -line of said-strip of land
designated. 1 from which said Point "A" bears S. 60° 524! B. 15.3 Feet-
distant -and runs thence N. 60° 52%' W, 600 feet; more or-less, to-&
point in the westerly boundery line of said la.nds, seid westerly bound-
ary line being the westerly boundery line of ‘the county road: known as
Roberts Road.

3+ A strip of land of the un:l.form width of 20 feet extending ea.sterly
and northerly from the southeasterly boundary line of said- strip of
land designated 1 and lying equelly on each side of that certain line
which begins at a point in the southeasterly boundary line of said
strip of land designated 1 from which said Point "B" bears S. 89° 5ha'
W. 19.9 feet. distant snd runs thence N. 89° 5hit B. 449.2 feet to &
point herein for convenience called Point "C"; thence continuing N. 8¢9°

545! B. 1323.9 feet; thence N. 6° 08' B, 52,9 feet to & point in said
8.

4. A strip of land of the uniform width of 20 feet extending from the
southerly boundary line of the strip of land hereinbefore described
and designated 3 southerly to the southerly boundsry line of said
lands and lying equally on each side of that certain line which begins
at a point in southerly boundary line of said strip of land designated
3 from which sa:.d Point "C” bears N, 0° 13%' W. 10,0 feet distant and
runs thence S. 0° 133" B. 25 feet, more or less, to & point in the
southerly: boundary line of said lands.

_20w2D87 p372
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« Notary Pnblu n
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My onmission Expires:
July 16,1963

8692e

viaa00 s40 wsres  STATE OF CALIFORNIA
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First party further grants to second party:

(a) the right of ingress to and egress from said strip over and across said lands by means of roads
and lanes thereon, if such there be, otherwise by such route or routes as shall occasion the least practi-
cable damage and inconvenience to first party; provided that such right of ingress and egress shall not
extend to any portion of said lands which is isolated from said strip by any public road or highway now
crossing or hereafter crossing said lands; provided, further, that if any portion of said lands is or shall be
subdivided and dedicated roads or highways on such portion shall extend to said strip, said right of
ingress and egress on said portion shall be confined to such dedicated roads and highways;

(b) the right to use such portion of said lands contiguous to said strip as may be reasonably neces-
sary in connection with the installation and replacement of such pipe lines;

(¢) the right from time to time to trim and to cut down and clear away any and all trees and brush
now or hereafter on said strip and to trim and to cut down and clear away any trees on either side of
said strip which now or hereafter in the opinion of second party may be a hazard to said pipe lines,
valves, appliances or fittings, by reason of the danger of falling thereon, or may interfere with the
exercise of second party’s rights hereunder; provided, however, that all trees which second party is
hereby authorized to cut and remove, if valuable for timber or wood, shall continue to be the property
of first party, but all tops, lops, brush and refuse wood shall be burned or removed by second party;

(d) the right to install, maintain and use gates in all fences which now eross or shall hereafter cross
said strip;
(e) the right to mark the location of said strip by suitable markers set in the ground; provided

that said markers shall be placed in fences or other locations which will not interfere with any reason-
able use first party shall make of said strip.

Second party hereby covenants and agrees:
(a) second party shall not fence said strip;

(b) second party shall promptly backfill any trench made by it on said strip and repair any damage
it shall do to first party’s private roads or lanes on said lands;

(¢) second party shall indemnify firat party against any loss and damage which shall be caused by
the exercise of said ingress and egress or by any wrongful or negligent act or omission of second party
or of its agents or employees in the course of their employment.

First party reserves the right to use said strip for purpeses which will not interfere with second
party’s full enjoyment of the rights hereby granted; provided that first party shall not erect or construct
any building or other structure, or drill or operate any well, or construct any reservoir or other obstruc-
tion on said strip, or diminish or substantially add to the ground cover over said pipe lines.

The provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and bind the suceessors and assigns of the respec-
tive parties hereto, and all covenants shall apply to and run with the land.

5. 0%
IN WITNESS WHEREOF first party has executed these presents this day of

. (P
‘-V//?ZJ//// // :—; ber!
Z

Executed in the presence of M_&%%_W

Wltness

l..ﬁ_:{u.ly

arisen. known to me t0 b: the same person
.. Cosmty of . .Contra. Costs,.. .. . State of DG« B-U8k5
'ﬁaaaﬁf Texry,. Paullne M. 'I'em ........... et Sheet. 1

16 tm h# 1hE pEYSOnR.B..... described in and who T is.,R. 6E"

i
o tasd s
0], 5ign and/exécite’the tame, and that, at .. .. their. reqiml, he, the said afhf f'“' M.D.B.& M.
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N
‘)< THIS INDENTURE mede by and between OCCIDENTAL PETROLEUM CORPORATION, a
SOPY 3Emy
:;‘:f:f"" Celifornia corporation, hereinafter called Occidental, and PACIFIC GAS AWD
A
EIECTRIC COMPANY, a Californis corporation, hereinafter called Pacific,
WITNESSETH that
g WHEREAS Occidental is the owner of the oil and gas lease on those certain
gg lands, situate in the County of San Joaguin, State of California, described
‘;g as follows:
g That certain parcel of land, situate in Roberts Island, conveyed
¥ by Pauline M. Terry snd Frank G. Terry to Pauline M. Terry and Frank
g G. Terry by deed dated December 26, 1961 and recorded in the office
B of the County Recorder of said Comty of Sen Jomquin in Book 2496 of
& Official Records at page 594; and

WHERFAS Pacific has acquired, or proposes to acquire, from the ciners of
the reversion of said lands a right of wey and easement for the excavation for,
the installation, replacement (of the initial or any other size), maintenance,
end use of, such pipe lines as Pacific shall from tine to time elect for conw
veying gas, with necessary and proper valves and other appliances and fittings,
and devices for controlling electrolysis for use in connection with seid pipe
lines, together with adequate protection therefor, within the strips of land
described as follows:

1. A strip of lend of the uniform width of 30 feet extending entirely
across said lands and lying equally on each side of that certain line
which begins at the intersection of ‘the northerly boundary line of
said lends with the southeasterly boundary line of the strip of land
of the wniform width of 85 feet described inm the deed from Antone F.
Terra and wife to Pacific Gas and Electric Company dated May 12, 1930
and recorded in the office of said County Recorder in Book 323 of
Official Records at pege 195, and runs thence along the scutheasterly
boundaxry line of said strip of land of the wniform width of 85 feet
the following three bearings and distances, namely: S. 4° 073t v,
T67.5 feet %o a point herein for convenience called Point "A"; thence
cantinuing S. 41° 073 W. 18.5 feet io & point herein for comvenience
called Point “B"; and thence continuing 5. 419 OT3' W. 50 feet, more
or less, to a.point in the southerly boundary line of said lands;

86 "’2683 ?AEESQB



2. A strip of land of the wniform width of 20 feet extending from
the northwesterly boundary line of the strip of land hereinbefore
described and designated 1 northwesterly to the westerly boundary line
of said lands and lying equally on each side of that certain line
which begins at a point in the northwesterly boundary line of said
strip of land designated 1 from which said Point YA" bears S. 60° 52kt
E. 15.3 feet distant and runs thence N. 60° 52%' W. 600 feet, more.or
less, t0 a point in the westerly boundsry line of sald lands; said
westerly boundary line being the westerly boundary line of the cownty
road known as Roberts Road;

3. A strip of land of the uniform width of 20 feet extending easterly
and northerly from the southeasterly boundary line of said strip of
land designated 1 and lying equally on each side of that certain line
which begins at a point in the southeasterly boundary line of said
strip of land designated 1 from vhich said Point "B" bears 5.899 54E'W.
19.9 Peet distant and runs thence N. 89° 54%' E. Uh9.2 feet to a point
herein for convenience called Point "C%; thence continuing N.89° SWiTE.
1323.9 feet to a point herein for convenience called Point "D"; thence
N.6° 0B' E, 52.9 feet t0 a point in said lands;

I, A strip of land of the uniform width of 20 feet extending from the
southerly boundary line of the strip of lend hereinbefore described
and designated 3 southerly to the southerly boundery line of sald
lands end lying equally on each side of that certain line which begins
at a point in southerly boundery line of said strip of land designated
3 from which said Point “C" bears N. 0° 133 W. 10,0 feet distent and
runs thence S. 0° 13%' E, 25 feet, more or less, to & point in the
southerly boundary line of said lands; and

5. A strip of land of the wniform width of 20 feet extending from the
easterly boundary line of said strip of land designated 3 easterly to
the easterly boundary line of said lards and lying equally on each
side of the line which, begins at a point in the easterly boundary line
of said strip of land designated 3 from which sald Point "D" bears

5. 89° koL' W, 10.0 feet distent and runs thence N. 89° 40i' E. 968.0
feet; thence S. 820 5kit E. 117.6 feet; thence S. 87° 294! E. 65.7
Peet; thence S. 709 13' E. 102.2 feet; thence N. T3° 3‘4%' E. 91.5 feet,
more or less, to a point in the easterly boundary line of said lands;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of valusble consideration
paid\ to Occidentel by Pacific, the receipt whereof ls acknowledged, Occidental
herchy consents to the granting of said right of way and easement by the owners
of the reversion of said lands, and to the extent of Occidental's said leasehold
interest hereby greants to Pacific the right to enter on said lands, and to exer-
cise its rights wnder said right of way and easement and further agrees that
Occidentel will not erect or coastruct any building or other strueture, or drill
or operate any well, within said strips of lend.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF Occidenta). has executed these presents this fé*é

day of TAated , 1963, G
CCCIDENTAL PETROLEUM: CORPORATION
. ~; - - p p - )
OK Foit gu-uneﬂ 1 ?i’ 2 4
[~ S ~
1‘W/ -t ;.":
And By = ) ‘}
| Its s
M’" . =
Stoekton Dwg. B=4845  T.i1S.,Re6B., >
GM 153370 Sheet 1 M.D.Ba& M
Dug. B-4858 207 E
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Y THIS AGREEMENT made by and bet CONTINENTAL AUXILIARY COMPANY, & corporstion,
WY SENT
79 oivision  8s trustee under that certain deed of trust dated December 20, 1961
Y
IS and recorded in Book....2500... ... of Official Records at page...17......., in the office of the County Recorder
of. Sen Joasquin ’ County, State of California, (under which
Bank of Americe National Trust and Ssvings Association, & netional banking
Tg asgociation, is heneficiary),
& hereinafter called first party, and PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a corporation, hereinafter
- called second party,
'3 WITNESSETH that in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) paid by second party, the receipt of which
o - is hereby acknowledged, and at the request of said beneficiary, first party does hereby consent to execution
o B
£8 of a grant of right of way from......Fxgnk G. Terry end others
.i 3 to second party
38 for.pipe lines for conveying. gss
=g across the lands described in said deed of trust, and hereby agrees that any sale made under the provisions

§ g of said deed of trust shall be subject to said right of way.

Said pipe lines shall be installed within the strips of land described upon
the sheet attached hereto marked EXHIBIT "A" and hereby made a part hereof.

¥

IN WITNESS WHEREOF first party bas executed these presents this ¥ 0
W gw*e
i B e

The undersigned hereby represents to said trustee that the undersigned is now the owner and holder of
the note secured by and is the beneficiary under said deed of trust and that the undersigned has not assigned

or transferred said note or said deed of trust and said trustee is hereb; re%uested to execute the fore nin%
consent. BANK OF AMERICA NATTONAL THUST AND
SAVINGS ASSOCIATION .

Signed in the presence of:

By,
ItE
Witness
And By " ]
...TH...B STATE OF GALIFORNIA . ]I‘bs TZZ——7  Becretary
'.(‘mw of. .Sg/ﬁmzm%/
04 shis ol s , tbaa Vﬁgtzﬁpﬁ ﬁ“f:f:ﬂ?;“—;"‘ o, Beneficiary under said deed of trust
duly commmmy‘d, and sworn, personally appeared Stockton
1 . & g GM1533Z&
v .-
~ ) ).ﬂgl{{,{ L wg. B- 5-Sh. 1
ﬁ?m”;r;::t;nht’baummﬁd #be, wif‘ fgx%(l‘ aérfo bo'she. pemm 5 who axam;:; Section 5
instrument on behalf smdcdrpafmantbugmmtm and acknowledged to me thas such ¢ mo ] 2. 1S., R 6 E.
executed she within: mf $ ﬂummm.to lf&b)‘-ldiﬂ: or a vesolution of its board of direciors. s B )
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EXHIBIT "A"

1. A strip of land of the uniform width of 30 feet extending entirely
across seid lands and lying equally on eech side of that certain line
which begins at the intersection of the northerly boundary line of said
lands with the southeasterly boundary line of the strip of land of the
uniform width of 85 feet described in the deed from Antone F. Terra and
wife to Pacific Gas and Electric Company dated May 12, 1930 and recorded
in the office of the County Becorder of said County of San Joaguin in
Book 323 of Official Records at page 195, and runs thence along the
southeasterly boundary line of sald strip of land of the uniform width
of 85 feet the following three bearings and distences, namely: S. 41°
07%' W. 767.5 feet to a poiunt herein for convenience called Point "A";
thence continuing S. 41* OT3' W. 18.5 feet to a polnt herein for eon-
venience called Point "B"; and thence continuing S. 41° 073! W. 50
feet, more or less, to a polnt in the southerly boundary line of sald
lands.

2, A strip of land of the uniform width of 20 feet extending from the
northwesterly boundary line of the sirip of land hereinbefore described
and designated 1 northwesterly to the westerly boundary line of said
lands and lying equally on easch side of that certain line which begins
at a polnt in the northwesterly boundary line of said strip of land
designated 1 from which seld Foiat "A" Bears 8, 60° 52%' B, 15.3 feet
distant snd runs thence N, 60° 523' W, 600 feet, more or less, to a
point in the westerly boundary line of said lands, sald westerly
boundary line being the westerly boundary line of the county road known
as Roberts Road.

3. A strip of land of the uniform width of 20 feet extending easterly
and northerly from the southeasterly boundary line of sald strip of
land designated 1 and lying equally on each side of that certain line
which begins at a point in the southeasterly boundary line of said
strip of land designated 1 from which said Point "B" bears S. 89° 5hit
W. 19.9 feet distant and runs thence N.. 89° S5u3' B, 449.2 feet to a
point herein for convenlence calléd Poinit "C"; thence continuing N. 89°
ih%' E. 1323.9 feet; thence N, 6% 08' E 52.9 feet to & point in said
ands .

L. A strip of land of the uniform width of 20 feet ektending from the
southerly boundary line of the strip of land hereinbefore described and
designated 3 southerly to the southerly boundary line of said lands and
lying equally on each side of that certain line which begins at a point
in southerly boundary iine of said strip of land designated 3 from
which said Point "C" bears N. 0° 133' W. 10.0 feet distant and runs
thence S, 0° 13-15' E. 25 feet, more or less, to a point in the southeriy
boundary line of sald lands.
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WITNESSETH that in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) paid by second party, the receipt of which
is hereby acknowledged, and at the request of said beneficiary, first party does hereby consent to execution

of a grant of right of way from. Frank G.. Terry.and. Berbara. Terry,. husbend and wife,......
.and. Pauline M. Terry. to second party
for..ipe.lines. for . conveying gas

across the lands deseribed in said deed of trust, and hereby agrees that any sale made under the provisions
of said deed of trust shall be subject to said right of way.

y THIS AGREEMENT made by and between..TLTLE. INSURANCE AND. TRUST COMPANY, &. ... ...

o SOPY SE :Qmmtion.
’ 2 ‘ﬁ“ﬂ;‘l 'é"as trustes under that certain deed of trust dated......... Jenuary.10,.1962

E " and recorded in Book........ 2500........ of Official Records at page....20......, in the office of the County Recorder
?g of San_Joaquin County, State of California, (under which
5%  .Joe lepes and Olivia Ioves, husbend snd wlfe,
5§ g is beneficiary),
54 hereginafter called first party, and PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a corporation, hereinafter J
E Z, called second party,
g2
=

Seprember , 19,62

Secretary

The undersigned hereby represents to said trustee that the unders and holder of
the note secured by and is the beneficiary under said deed of trust and that the undersigned has not assigned

or transferred said note or said deed of trust and said trustee is hereby requested to execute the fopegoing
consent.

Signed j \};efloatel nee pf1” .
s I oo gl )

e # _'-(‘ L,
o Witness

FOR NOTARY'S USE ONLY

N r b ivea Lo,oes

Beneficiary under said deed of trust
Stockton

GM 153370

. Dwg. B=UB45, sh.l
. Dwg. B-4858

: T.1S.,R.6E.,
M.D.B.& M.

X : Prepared. M 1
st ' . Checked.«
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TATE OF CALIFORNIA #76 /3? %
UNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN s, '
¥ o September 17,. LOGRL . 2 . i
3 N v v .

{ before me Alex Chaim, .IxT_ - -7, a Notary w
Public in and for said... ‘.S,a'n:\‘;foaqu}n .7 Lounty and, .
State, lly appeared - John A, Roscelll =

2 TR N
known tometobeﬂil;‘ S Vice Presiderit, and

.Robert F. Briscoe .

- Ty s
known to me to be the...Assistant . Secretary of
the corporation that execited the within insttument, and known to me 8
to be the persons who executed the within instrument ‘én behalf of the
corporation therein named, and acknowledged to‘me that such corpo-
ration d the same'p to' its by-laws ora ion .of its -
_l_;gard of directors. o~ S (x - -

AL Cr—r e .
(Seal) i - M
//e)/ Chaiwm,Fr. Notary Pfiblic ‘
i || My Commission Expires: 47126163 Reet No. 543
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CONS .
’ WHEREAS PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a California corporation, herein-
- %
/ after called Pacific, proposes to acquire a right of way for..yﬂlk-%:_.. Lt Lot hnasy
087 SETY
o wmm
on and across those certain lands of
T

.

3 #@&MMM} b h-% MM&QL in kCount.y
...................................... , State of Cahforma, described as follows
W m i ey [a\,...pe /w\'wg & Ik
w L the offesen B C"“"”"?

and

WHEREAS the undergigned ig the tenant in possession of said lands;

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned bereby consents to the use and enjoyment by Pacific
of said right of way when acquired by it from the owner of said lands.

Pacific shall pay the undersigned for any and all damage to the crops, livestock and other
property of the undersigned caused by Pacific, its agents or employees, while_ performing con-
struction work on said right of way or exercismg the right of ingress thereto or egress therefrom,
or caused by any negligent act or omigsion of Pacific, its agents or employees.

Dated.w X (26>
Sy

Wltness

Prepared
Checked

619668 (REV. 10.57) 2.60.1M
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(CAN oot I'd #fi fﬁ(— @[W f], (KH'['/'WO@ For Mireral Interest See/fz'7/ }
topis, B 85.00 ,_

FRANK G. TERRY and BARBARA TERRY, husband and wife,
and. PAULINE M. TERRY | a widow

’??n:i;:i
//, £ I hereinafter called first party, in consideration of value paid by PACIFIC GAS AND XLECTRIC
COMPANY, a California corporation, hereinafter called second party, the adequacy and receipt whereof
are hereby acknowledged, hereby grants to second party the right to excavate for, install, replace (of the
initial or any other size), maintain and use such pipe lines as second party shall from time to time elect
for conveying gas, with necessary and proper valves and other appliances and fittings, and devices for
controlling electrolysis for use in connection with said pipe lines, together with adeguate protection
therefor, and also a right of way, within the hereinafter deseribed strip of those certain lands which are

nt w108 AR

3 s

situate in the County of................. Sen, Joaquin. ... , State of
California, and described as follows:

Consideration or value of inferest catvayed

That certain percel of land, situste in Roberts Islend, couveyed by
Pauline M. Terry and Frank G. Terry to Pauline M. Terry and Frank G. Terzry
by deed dated December 26, 1961 and recorded in the office of the County
Recorder of sald County of Sen Joagwin in Book 2496 of Offieial Records
at page 594.

hetpin dos

The aforesald strip is described as follows:

A strip of land of the wniform width of 20 feel extending from the
easterly bpoundary line of the strip of land described and designoted 3 in
the deed from Frauk G. Texrry and others to Pscific Ges and Electric
Company deted July 20, 1962 easterly to the eagterly boundery line of
saidlandsanam.neequallymeachsideoftbeunewhichbegins at a
point in the easterly boundery line of sald strip of land designated 3
from which the easterly terminus of a course in the center line of said
strip of lend designated 3, vhich course, has a bearing of N. 89° 543 E.
and a length of 1323'? .feet, bears S. 896 Lod* W. 10.0 feet distent and
runs thence N. * E, 968.0 feet; thence S, 82° 5id' B, 117.6 feet;
thence S. 87° 292 E, 65.7 feet; thence S. T0° 13' E. 102.2 feet; theunce
Ne 73 343* B. 91.5 feet, more or less, to & point in the easterly bound-
ary line of said lands.

» CONTINED'
2602 m A2 UED



First party further grants to second party:

(a) the right of ingress to and egress from said strip over and across said lands by means of roads
and lanes thereon, if such there be, otherwise by such route or routes as shall occasion the least practi-
cable damage and inconvenience o first party; provided that such right of ingress and egress shall not
extend to any portion of said lands which is isolated from said strip by any public road or highway now
crossing or hereafter crossing said lands; provided, further, that if any portion of said lands is or shall be
subdivided and dedicated roads or highways on such portion shall extend to said strip, said right of
ingress and egress on said portion shall be confined to such dedicated roads and highways;

(b). the right to use such portion of said lands contiguous to said strip as may be reasonably neces-
gary in connection with the installation and replacement of such pipe lines;

() the right from time to time to trim and to cut down and clear away any and all trees and brush
now or hereafter on said strip and to trim and to cut down and clear away any trees on either side of
said strip which now or hereafter in the opinion of second party may be a hazard to said pipe lines,
valves, appliances or fittings, by reason of the danger of falling thereon, or may interfere with the
exercise of second party’s rights hereunder; provided, however, that all trees which second party is
hereby authorized to cut and remove, if valuable for timber or wood, shall continue to be the property
of first party, but all tops, lops, brush and refuse wood shall be hurned or removed by second party;

(d) the right to install, maintain and use gates in all fences which now cross or shall hereafter cross
said strip;

(e) the right to mark the location of said strip by suitable markers set in the ground; provided
that said markers shall be placed in fences or other locations which will not interfere with any reason-
able use first party shall make of said strip,

Second party hereby covenants and agrees:
(2) second party shall not fence said strip;

(b) second party shall promptly backfill any trench made by it on said strip and repair any damage
it shall do to first party’s private roads or lanes on said lands;

(c) second party shall indemnify first party against any loss and damage which shall be caused by
the exercise of said ingress and egress or by any wrongful or negligent act or omission of second party
or of its agents or employees in the course of their employment,

ﬂi“/ 5 y:nc/yas(é “)Cover over ipe b,
First party reserves the right to use said strip for purposes which will not interfere with second
party’s full enjoyment of the rights hereby granied; provided that first party shall not erect or construct
- any building or other structure, or drill or operate any well, or construct any reservoir or other obstruc-
tion on said strip, or diminish or substantially add to the ground cover over said pipe lines.

*fb:e,,
e

The provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and bind the successors and assigns of the respec-
tive parties hereto, and all covenants shall apply to and run with the land.

I%WH}EREOF first party has executed these presents this.... 5<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>